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3,213,000,000
2024 2024
2024 109.39 103.70
2024
7,194,441 7,589,199

2024 2019

2022 2023

2024 2024

2024 CB 2024

2024 787,000,000

2024 19.67

2027
2022 12 12 CB 3,300,000,000 2027 4.50
2027 2027 61.92
2027 2022 12 13
5662
2027
2027
2027 3,269,000,000
2027 2027
2027 61.92 58.77
2027 53,294,573
56,151,097
2024 29 2027 CB 2027
2027 2022 11 22 11 23
12 12 12 13 2023 2022 12
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2024 31
0 1,000 5,979 3,750,634 0.15
1,001 5,000 11,768 28,126,869 1.10
5,001 10,000 1,446 10,038,930 0.39
10,001 100,000 846 21,955,890 0.86
100,001 83 2,489,972,790 97.50
20,122 2,553,845,113 100.00
2024 31 HKSCC 2,469,069, 643 96.68
2024 31 33.65 2,553,845,113
859
27
25
2024 29
8.1
10 10

2024 29
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2022 12 Jiaxing
Changshu
497 2022 29
455
2023 11 2023 12
Qibao Vanke Plaza 50
2,383.8 2024 20
2024 20
2024 31 154 129
12
2022
1078
2024
7.2A
2023 Buildings Department 2023 10
ii 15.9 a 2024 31
2024 31 0.6

il 2024 31 891 56

84/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.2A

2024 31

S&P

CHIOLI
5.95 BBB+ Baa2 A- 17,426 15,641 0.01
05/08/24

CCBL
3.5 A - A 156,630 156,034 0.06
05/16/24

SHGANG
4 - - A- 94,279 93,600 0.03
05/23/24

YXREIT
3.6 - Ba2 - 30,000 29,873 0.01
05/28/24

HAQHUA
3.375 - Baa2 A 39,863 38,919 0.02
06/19/24

CHIMAO
4 BBB— - - 53,159 51,190 0.02
06/21/24

WB
3.5 BBB Baa2 - 39,923 38,913 0.02
07/05/24

CNBG
3.375 BBB - A- 127,189 124,249 0.05
07/16/24

JOHNEL
4.125 BBB Baal - 41,682 40,235 0.02
07/30/24

600,151 588, 654 0.24

2024 31

0.24 2024 31 7.2C

5.32

linkreit.com
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) )
DBS DBS Bank Ltd. 5.7 35.1
Pty
Investa Asset Management Pty Limited 2.6 16.2
Longinus Investment Consulting 1.5 9.4
Limited
1.3 8.1
CBRE CBRE Limited 1.1 6.7
( ) )
Jetline

Company Limited 131.6 5.0
114.3 4.4
Waihong Environmental Services Limited 92.7 35
Li Hing Environmental Services 89.7 3.4

Co. Limited
Savills Property Management Limited 8.0 3.4

13.7 5.1

19.7 5.0
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Nicholas Charles ALLEN

69 2016

CLP
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2016

CLP Holdings Limited

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Metal Exchange LME

LME Clear Limited

The London
HKEX
Mordril Properties Limited

Hysan Development Company Limited

Lenovo Group Limited

AlM VinaLand Limited
Stevin Rock LLC RAK RAK
Rock LLC
2007
Securities and Futures Appeals Panel Takeovers and Mergers Panel
Takeovers Appeal Committee Share Registrars® Disciplinary
Committee Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Financial Reporting Council

of Hong Kong 2047

Vision 2047 Foundation

The University of Manchester

Accountants in England and Wales
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
of the Year 2017
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George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY

62 2009 2010

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 104
Our Hong Kong Foundation Limited
Harvard Business Review 2019 CE0100 100
Best-Performing CEOs in the World 2019 EY 2017

EY Entrepreneur of the Year 2017 China Award
Country Winner of Hong Kong/Macau Region 2015 DHL  SCMP
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards Business Person of
the Year 2011 -

University of Canterbury
The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
Corporate Advisory Council
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Institute of
Shopping Centre Management
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NG Kok Siong

52 2020 2018
2005 CapitalLand
Group CapitalLand
Limited CapitaMalls Asia Limited

CapitalLand Mall Asia Limited

REIT
CapitalLand Retail China Trust Management Limited
CapitalLand Retail China
Trust REIT
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall REIT Management Sdn. Bhd.
CapitaLand Malaysia Mall Trust

Nanyang Technological University
Dartmouth College Tuck Executive Program
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lan Keith GRIFFITHS

69 2007
1983 2006 10
Aedas 11
1,100
1978 1980
The Royal Institute of British Architects
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
2009 Roch Castle
Penrhiw Priory Twr y Felin Hotel
Christopher John BROOKE
55 2018
1Bl IBI Group Holdings Limited
Kerb Holdings Company Pty Limited
X VationX Proxy Inc. Peace, Inc.
RICS 2018 11 2019 12

Hong Kong, China
Rugby
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2016 10 2020 Brooke Husband
Limited 2002 2015 12
CBRE
CBRE
Asia Pacific Strategic Group 2003
Insignia Brooke CBRE CBRE 1992
2003 Brooke Hillier Parker

Brooke International

1992 1989 Hillier Parker

Ed CHAN Yiu Cheong

61 2016

Treasury Wine Estates Limited

C.P. C.P. Lotus

Corporation Charoen

Pokphand Group Company Limited SoftBank

Investment Advisers Yum
China Holdings, Inc.

2020 2022
Gaorong Capital 2006 11 2011 10
Walmart China 2001 11 2006 11
Dairy Farm Group
Bertelsmann

Music Group

McKinsey & Co
The University of Chicago
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Sloan School of Management
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Jenny GU Jialin

55 2021
Richemont
PPG
PPG Consulting Company Limited TPG L.P. TPG
Capital, L.P. Nike, Inc.
1998 2009 2021
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants ACCA
2019 2020 ACCA

Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University
EMBA Executive Master of Business Administration

Duncan Gareth OWEN

56 2024

PLC Workspace Group PLC

PLC
ESG
Sellar Property Group
30 2023
Immobel Capital Partners 2012
2020 PLC Schroders PLC 2006 2011

PLC Invista
Real Estate Investment Management Holdings PLC
Insight Investment Management
Limited
Gatehouse Investment Management Limited 1990 2001
Jones Lang LaSalle
LaSalle Investment Management
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2016 2022
Church Commissioners Real Assets Investment
Committee British Property Federation 14

Sheffield Hallam University

Financial Conduct Authority
Approved Person

Blair Chilton PICKERELL

67 2016

NASDAQ Principal
Financial Group, Inc.
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

First Pacific Company Limited

104
Tracker Fund
of Hong Kong 2019 2021
Anthemis Insurance Venture Growth Fund
2008 12 2014 11
Faculty of Business
and Economics
Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong

93/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015
1984 Jardine Matheson Holdings Group
2003 HSBC HSBC
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
2007 2010
Morgan Stanley Investment Management
2013 2017 12

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

Harvard Business School MBA
Stanford University
Poh Lee TAN
65 2015 11
2010 11 2012 10 Baker & McKenzie
2008 10 2010 10

Mighty Oaks Foundation Limited
Independent Schools Foundation
London School of Economics
and Political Science University of Cambridge
Queens ™ College
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Melissa WU Mao Chin

57 2023

KPMG 30 2020 KPMG

KPMG

Law Reform Commission
Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service
Advisory Committee on Post-service Employment of Civil Servants
Standing Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service
Estate Agents Authority

HSBC
HSBC Qianhai Securities Limited
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Kenneth Tai Lun WONG

54
2019
30
HNA HNA Group
(International) Company Limited
Hong Kong International Construction
Investment Management Group Co., Limited
Hilton Grand Vacations Inc. HNA
LLP(Nixon Peabody
LLP) CWL Nixon Peabody CWL
14
2014 20
Greenery Elderly Home
New Territories 15
2015 2021 Elderly Commission
Friends of Caritas of Hong
Kong Chu Hai College of Higher Education Board of Governors
Heung Yee Kuk of the New Territories
Hong Kong REITS Association
London School of Economics and Political Science
ALB 2023 Asian Legal Business (ALB) Hong Kong Awards 2023

In-House Lawyer of the Year
Hong Kong In-House Team of
the Year
Compliance and Risk Management In-House Team of the Year

96/470



Gregory Robert CHUBB

55

REIT
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2022

REIT Charter Hall Retail REIT

Supermarkets Mirvac

2009 2010

Australian Property Institute

Shopping Centre Council of Australia

John NOLAN

58
3.0

2024
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Charter Hall Group

Coles
Lend Lease
Jones Lang LaSalle
2.0
30
Qatar Airways
Unilever
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John Russell SAUNDERS

58
2024
30
BlackRock
Asia Value Add Fund Series Fund
%
Asia Core Fund I Asian Spezialfond
2013 MGPA
MGPA Asian Property
Funds MGPA 1999 2007
CLSA
1994 1998
Hongkong Land
College of Estate Management
Ronald THAM Seng Yum
54
2022
Swire Group
Lai Sun Group HSBC
HSBC Global Banking Macquarie
Capital
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Price Waterhouse PwC

Redbird Innovation Fund

2020 2022
Christine CHAN Suk Han
49
2013
Harvest Capital Partners ARA
ARA Asset Management Hutchison Whampoa

New York University Stern School of Business
General Practice
Surveyor The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

Hong Kong Advisory Board

Lorraine CHAN Kuen Kuen

55

2019
Link Together Initiatives

20
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Director of External Affairs

Hong Kong Council of Social Service Strategy Committee on Co-Creation
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Retail and Tourism
Committee Communications and Media Relations
Committee

University of Strathclyde MBA
2016
Stanford Executive Program 2018

Emmanuel Farcis

52
2008
20
AsiaWorld-Expo
Dragages Hong Kong
MBA
Gary FOK Yip Sang
57
2014 30

NF
InfraRed NF Investment Advisers Limited
New World Group
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

China
Institute of Real Estate Appraisers
Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate
Administrators
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Calvin Lee KWAN

43
ESG
Environment and Sustainability
Committee United Nations Principles of
Responsible Investment Real Estate Advisory Committee

United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative
Property Working Group

MBA

William LAl Hon Ming

61
2019
30 2007

Kennedy Western University MBA

Annie LEE

54
2023
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25

Mercatus Co-operative Limited

Perennial Real Estate Holdings Pte Ltd CEO( )
GIC GIC Real Estate Pte Ltd
CapitalLand Retail Limited
VivoCity
MBA

Keith NG Man Keung

52
2009

2020

IT 30
Hutchison Whampoa Property Group
Hongkong Land Group
Corporate
Finance Committee

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants CFA
Chartered Financial Analyst
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Max WONG Hon Keung

59
2013
30 HKR
HKR International Limited
Wong
Tung & Partners Limited Kwan and Associates Limited
Authorised Person
Haiqun ZHU
54
2022
Vanke Group SCPG
2003 SCPG SCPG
Capital
Shenzhen International Trust & Investment
MBA
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3.0

M&A
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2005 11 25
12
2017 LTI
2024 31 3,863,090
2025 30 2026 30 2027 30
12
2017 LTI 2024
31 1,002,626
2025 30 2026 30 2027 30
2005 11

2005 11
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2024

®

30
2023
31
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31

2024 31

90
—®

50

25
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@

3.0

3.0

3.0

50
90

2024 31
— 1 —5 —)
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50
50
50
)
50 (i)
LTV 45
LTV 40
Gii)
30
)
(i)
HIBOR
2023 7 25
2001 5.25 5.50 (i)
(i)
Gii) (iv)
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2005
123
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(M
1))
(i) (iv)
) (vi)
(vii)
(viii) (ix)
¢9) Xi (xii)
(xiii) (xiv)
*xv) (xvi)
) (i)
(i)

v )
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2018
Q)
(i) (i)
(iv)
10
2018 21
2018

2018
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2023 2024 31
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2005
2005 11

ACBMs
ACBMs
ACBMs
ACBMs
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90

2024 31 100

*
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2024 31 69.8
2024 31 24,014,522
(i)2023 31 2023
8,085,484 (ii)2023 30
2023 12 29 15,929,038
10
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@

@

2008 31
2024 31

2025

®

15

2024 31 2,219.5
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2024

*

31

(@
0.02

150,000
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0.015 0.06
30

Q)
@
(b)
0.05
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®

104

2024 31
16.5

8.5
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2024 31
)
20 15

2013 2037 12 31 2.1

20 15 2013 2037 12
31 2.1
2014 37 14

NISA
37 14 2014 2023 12

31 10 100 2016

120

128/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024
37 14 2024
240 1,200
18
37 14
NISA
37 14 2016 2023 12 31
80
18 12 31
Q)
20 15 2013 2037
12 31 2.1
Q)

(i)
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5
€H)
2024 31
)
( ) ( )
434 0.243
135 0.075
0 -
30 0.017
126,442 70.708
47,559 26.596
5,940 3.322
27,294 15.263
5,223 2.921
2,716 1.519
2,717 1.520
2,771 1.550
1,851 1.035
13,465 7.530
235,979 131.962
15,736 8.800
(73.872) (41.310)
381 0.213
178,823 100.000
— 2 —3

—@
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31
13,578 12,234 11,602 10,744 10,718
(3.,508) (3,036) (2,826) (2,506) (2,498)
10,070 9,198 8,776 8,238 8,220
(766) (653) (512) (428) (416)
(7.361) 9,367 426 (5,276) (23,948)
(458) (50) - (46) -
551 106 98 126 183
(2.319) (1,754) (1,005) (770) (630)
®) - 11 - -
(627) 85 364 - -
(915) 16,299 8,136 1,844 (16,591)
(1,548) (1,006) (1,229) (1,092) (712)
(2,463) 15,293 6,907 752 (17,303)
(6.367) (6,360) (6,425) (5,920) (5,930)
- (1,638) - - -
(8.830) 7,295 482 (5.168) (23,233)
(10,148) 5,201 2,030 (2,566) (24,835)
1,798 2,252 (1,561) (2,169) 1,783
(480) (158) 13 (433) (181)
(8,830) 7,295 482 (5.168) (23,233)
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31

(1,983) 15,451 6,894 1,185 (17,122)
7,710 (9,443) (714) 4,864 23,831
458 50 - 46 -
458 (60) 172 (12) (454)
(169) 22 (32) 32 (157)
82 51 (80) (320) (276)
415 60 51 54 41
5 - 11 - -
112 180 (29) (129) (189)
- - 146 290 291
6,718 6,311 6,419 6,010 5,965
130.08 155.51 159.59 141.65 141.47
132.57 118.80 146.08 148.34 145.72
262.65 274.31 305.67 289.99 287.19
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31
235,979 237,469 212,761 199,074 193,224
16,335 30,450 12,955 10,811 14,395
252,314 267,919 225,716 209,885 207,619
73,872 78,859 62,726 51,192 47,502
(381) 120 302 @7 406
178,823 188,940 162,688 158,720 159,711
23.5 24.2 22.0 18.4 16.7
29.3 29.4 27.8 24.4 22.9
235,979 237,469 212,761 199,074 193,224
3.25-4.60 3.10-4.50 3.10-4.50 3.10-4.50 3.10-4.50
2.70-4.90 2.60-4.80 2.90-5.30 3.10-5.30 3.10-5.30
3.30 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
4.65-5.15 4.50-5.00 4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75
4.75 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25
5.20-5.30 5.00 5.00
5.25-5.50 4.88-5.25
5.00-6.25 4.50-5.25 4.40 4.50
8.50 6.00 5.19 5.24
3.80-4.50 3.80-4.50
70.02 73.98 77.10 76.24 77.61
33.65 50.50 67.00 70.80 65.70
85,937 128,969 141,383 147,396 135,204
(51.9) (31.7) (13.1) 7.1 (15.3)
2,553,845,113 [2,553,845,091 |2,110,193,850 |2,081,862,866 |2,057,898,386

135/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31
64.4 63.8 62.7 62.4 64.6
7.9 7.1 4.8 (1.8) 13.5
98.0 98.0 97.7 96.8 96.5
100.0 100.0 100.0
98.2 98.2 94.0 76.3 73.7
3,337 3,226 3,064 2,776 2,827
75.3 76.9 76.3 76.8 76.6
2.8 (3.0) 14.0 11.1 31.6
(10.2) (14.5) (8.1) (8.0) 7.9
96.6 95.2 90.9 96.3 97.8
92.3 95.5 97.0 95.8 97.4
96.2 100.0 100.0
73.2 70.4 73.5 76.7 77.2
99.7 96.9
88.2 89.2 100.0 100.0
93.1 93.1 100.0 100.0
97.8
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31
1.60 22.19
(36.92) (28.99) (17.35) (19.99) (14.21)
7.8 5.4 4.6 4.1 4.4
10.30
25.5 26.6 29.7 28.2 27.9
52.40
2023 69.97 33.10
2023 44.99
2024 31 33.65 2023 50.50
2024 31 262.65
2023 274.31
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11.0 13,578
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2024
20
69.8
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9.5 10,070
6,718
4.3 262.65

2023
2023

3.78

56.8

0.6 235,979

100

70.02

2.8

9.6
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2023

Plaza Tianhe

9.5

2023

2024

7.9
140
Temple Mall North
300
11.0 13,578
10,070 2023
2024
6,311

4.3 262.65
19.5 2023
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50
26.3
2.8

230

2023 12,234
9,198

2023 274.31

31 17.8
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2,383.8

9.6

24

2024
Link
10 16

2023

6.4 6,718

2024 31
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0.6 235,979 2023
31 237,469
Qibao Vanke Plaza 50 100
5.4
178,823 2023 31 188,940 5.4
70.02 2023 31 73.98
130
57,000
Kowloon East
The Quayside 60 Hung Hom Chai Wan
2024
2.2 0.1

2024 3.0

660

7.9

98.0

2024 31
98.0 2024 31
63.8 64.4
7.9

12.6

140/470
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0.4
101.3
85.3
2024
Tung Tau Market Kai Tin Shopping
Centre Butterfly Market Kin Sang
Shopping Centre 27.6 118.2
26.5 58.0
15.9 12.7 11.4 10.0
640
2024 2025 Fu Shin
Sau Mau Ping Lei Yue Mun
2024 31 2023 31
( )

5,050 4,965 1.7

1,061 1,025 3.5

148 146 1.4

181 184 (1.6)

1,065 1,021 4.3

7,505 7,341 2.2

141/470
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9, 294
2024 2023
31 31
98.4 98.3 P ]
95.8 96.1 (20242 3 A1 BWME)
95.8 97.1
98.0 98.0
O 5
O FTRBEES
O BE - EREER U RER
2024 2023
31 31
7.8 5.7
8.6 15.1
2.4 1.2
7.9 7.1
2024 31
4.6 12.8
(5.1) 11.9
1.3 13.1
0.4 12.6
4,945 2023 4,861
105 2023 104
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2024 2023
2024 31 31
2024 31
31 2024 2023
2024 31 31
31
)
6 26,127 1,248 78.5 78.1 97.1 97.2
35 69,470 3,660 71.8 71.0 98.5 98.4
57 30,041 1,532 46.8 46.1 97.7 97.8
98 125,638 6,440 64.4 63.8 98.0 98.0
2024 31
5 g9u1. 0% 0. 7% G Top 0.49%
. 2 aoe b
10. 29 - 15. 29 =, # 22, 4% O EERUESH
10. 396 O R—ri—T—¥Fu FRURHES
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28. 9% O BH-BULESR U EER
30, 0% O TiER (THS. Wb
17. 0% - o e
2. 2'3'3;
2024 31
31.533“ B EHlESHICSSHSEE (%)
32.03 5 B AHIAHI SN HEE (%)Y
10
25,9
7.6 6.5
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BUSE
804



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022
12,936
2027
2.6 5.5
3.4 3,337
2024 31 2.6 744,000
725,000
2024 31 2023 31
( )
1,629 1,587 2.6
634 601 5.5
207 207
12 6 100.0
2,482 2,401 3.4
2024 31
The Quayside 98.2

144/470
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9.2

75.3 2023 76.9

8.8

19.7
CovID
12.8
2024 31 2023 31
)

665 611 8.8

463 436 6.2

261 218 19.7

305 285 .0

301 281 .1

220 195 12.8

103 98 5.1

29 16 81.3

187 181 .3

2,534 2,321 .2

145/470
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2024 5.2 5.3
6.3 10.6
50
1.7
5.9
2024 31 96.6 2024
2.8
31.6
49.0
50
2021
2024
120
60 2024
560 96.6

146/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 31
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A Link Square 2024
31 92.3 2024
10.2

Changshu 2023
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2024 31
96.2
12
168.8 1,742 204.6
1,188
2024 CoVID
QvB Penhaliigons
The Galeries P.E. P.E. Nation
2024 31 99.7
2024 Sydney Metro City and Southwest
lines QvB The Strand Arcade
CBD 35
George Street
2024 31
Jurong Point Swing By @
Thomson Plaza 97.8 2024 9.6

148/470
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5.1
347 347 Kent Street
89.2
94.0
CovID

flight-to-quality
347 The Cabot

3.0
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ESG

3.0

ESG

3.0
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35,233

Limited Cc&w
2024 31
C&W
2024 31
100
1.6 47,559
50
2024
50
6.7
7,729 2023
14.8
2024 31

31

2,717

91

11

151/470

2023

2024

361

995

13,466
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Qibao Vanke Plaza

2.6

Cushman & Wakefield

0.6
50

235,979

126,442

15.7 6,957

31 35,168

65
50

2023 31

2023
814

2023

2,895
49.9

3.1

31 2,780

31 13,630
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312024 312023 2024 2023
31 31
126,442 129,819 3.25 -4.60 3.10 -4.50
47,559 46,823 2.70 -4.90 2.60 -4.80
6,957 8,255 3.30 500
180,958 184,897
27,294 26,309 4.65 —5.15 4.50 -5.00
5,223 6,364 4.75 4.25
2,716 2,495 5.20 -5.30 5.00
35,233 35.168
2,717 2,895 5.25 -5.50 4.88 -5.25
7,723 9,361 5.00 —6.25 4.50 -5.25
10,446 12,256
1,995 2,780 8,50 500
13,466 13,630 3.80 —4.50 3.80 -4.50
242,008 248,731
235,979 237,469
2023 31 2024
2023 31 50 2024 31 100
2023 31 2024 31
49.9
2023 31 2024 31
2024 31
49.9 2023 31 50
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56.8 69.8
3.78
2024 31 57 500
2024 31 24.2 23.5
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85 100
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3.0 14
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2024 31
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2024 31 70
2023 30 614
15.9 38.57
24.0 38.9
936.8
2024 31 589
2024 31 12 39 560
A2/Stable A/Stable S
P A/Stable
A2 Stable A Stable A Stable

S&P
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2024 31
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)
2024 31
1 CHIOLI 5.95 05/08/24 16,057 15,641 0.009%
2 CCBL 3.5 05/16/24 158,530 156,034 0.089%
3 SHGANG 4 05/23/24 95,231 93,600 0.053%
4 | YXREIT 3.6 05/28/24 30,359 29,873 0.017%
5 HAOHUA 3.375 06/19/24 39,530 38,919 0.022%
6 CHIMAO 4 06/21/24 52,452 51,190 0.029%
7 WB 3.5 07/05/24 39,491 38,913 0.022%
8 CNBG 3.375 07/16/24 126,189 124,249 0.071%
9 | JOHNEL 4.125 07/30/24 40,860 40,235 0.023%
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18
27
2024 20
77 20
HSBC
HSBC
2024 31
SFC 2005
SEHK
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
2024
HSBC
130
12
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2024 31
2020 HKIS
2022 RICS
2020 12

100
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3.25
3.60

3.25
3.25

4.75
4.65
4.65

5.20

3.80

4.60
4.90

4.70

5.15
5.15
5.30

4.50

3.25
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. 2024

. 2023

. 2023

. 2024

. 2024

. 2023

. 2023

. 2023

5.50
5.25 5.50

8.50

2024

2024

SD3

2024

2024

2024

1078
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. 2023 2024

. 2023 2024

. 2024 2024

2024

. 2024

. 2024

. 2024

. 2023

. 2024 28

. 2024

. 2023 2024

Plowman Craven 2019 11

Watts 2020

. 2022 WG

. EPC BREEAM
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SD3 1078

10.764

2024 31 180, 957,900,000 1,809 5,790

4.51
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700 700 Nathan Road

SD3 1078
121,688,100,000 1,216 8,810
4.74
41,384,900,000 413 8,490
4.47
8,039,500,000 80 3,950
2.97
700
3,511,400,000 35 1,140
2.97
5,530,000,000 55 3,000
3.64
SD3 1078
804,000,000 8 400
2024 31 32,647,000,000 326 4,700
4.28
5,940,000,000 59 4,000
4.24
3,050,000,000 30 5,000

3.91

164/470



4,070,000,000
4.74

2,300,000,000
4.36

4,660,000,000
2.74

7,060,000,000
5.18

3,050,000,000
4.15

924,000,000
4.95

518,000,000
4.90

631,000,000
4.71

119,000,000
6.89

40

23

46

70

30

7,000

6,000

6,000

5,000

2,400

1,800

3,100

1,900

165/470
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325,000,000
1.56

1,900

2,120,000,000

199,000,000

20 4,240

100

542,000,000

106,300,000

269,000,000

50

156,000,000
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2,500
2024 31 2,319,000,000 23
21 2,000
9,900
2024 31 2,042,400,000
4,200
50
630
50
6,900

5,600

166/470



1GO

49.9

969,100,000

1GO

201,900,000

K F MSc

6,910

190

201,900,000

MRICS FHKIS RPS GP

167/470
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127

15

109

124

116

119

83

108

74

115

121

101

123

96

93

122

95

112

107

86

113

78

100

87

105

90

700
700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

(Butterfly Plaza)
(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)
(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)
(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)
(Car Park within Kam On Court)
(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)
(Car Park within King Lai Court)
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)
(Car Park within Lai On Estate)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin () Estate)
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)
(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)
(Car Park within Po Pui Court)
(Car Park within San Wai Court)

|
(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate)
(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)
(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

94

110

114

97

99

129

10

62

14

28

75

7

16

22

26

54

32

48

24

46

35

40

67

53

63

64

168/470
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(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)
(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)
(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)
(Car Park within Yue On Court)
Chai Wan Car Service Centre
(Cheung Fat Plaza)
(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)
(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)
(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)
(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)
(Chuk Yuen Plaza)
(Chung On Shopping Centre)
(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)
(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)
Fu Tai Shopping Centre
(Fu Tung Plaza)
(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)
(Heng On Commercial Centre)
(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)
(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)
(Hing Wah Plaza)
(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)

(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)



34

128

68

57

39

41

11

59

49

56

60

52

45

31

30

50

70

80

51

36

43

44

84

76

120

88

117

(Homantin Plaza)

Hung Hom Car Service Centre

(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Leung King Plaza)

(Lok Fu Place)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Nam Cheong Place)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Stanley Plaza)

(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)

82

125

106

79

102

104

91

118

85

89

92

103

71

81

98

111

66

27

33

72

23

47

18

38

29

169/470
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(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)
1
(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (l11) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)
(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)
(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)
(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)
(Shun On Commercial Centre)
(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
T
(T Town)
(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)
(Tai Wo Plaza)
(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)
(Tak Tin Plaza)

Temple Mall North

Temple Mall South



126

17

20

25

65

21

42

11

55
The Quayside
58
(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
12
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)
13
(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)
19
(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)
73
(Tin Yiu Plaza)
TKO 61
TKO Gateway
TKO 69
(TKO Spot)
37
(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)
. 130
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)
2
Link Square
4
Link Plaza Liwan
6
Link CentralWalk
(Link Plaza Tianhe) 8
10
Foshan Warehouse
12
Changshu South Warehouse
2
Jurong Point
100 2
100 Market Street, Sydney
4
Queen Victoria Building, Sydney
IGO
IGO Portfolio

The Cabot, London

170/470
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(Un Chau Shopping Centre)
(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)

(Wo Che Plaza)

(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)

(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza)) )
(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)
(Yiu On Shopping Centre)
(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)
(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)
SD3 1078

Off Anderson Road Development Site (SD3 Lot 1078)

Link Plaza Zhongguancun

Link Plaza Tongzhou

Qibao Vanke Plaza

Dongguan Warehouse

Jiaxing Warehouse

Changshu North Warehouse

Swing By @ Thomson Plaza

The Strand Arcade, Sydney)

The Galeries, Sydney
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2024 31
Lok Fu Place 364,312 793 320.5 3.83% 7,620.0 4.21%
Lok Fu Plaza 1984 1991
Wang Shun House Wang Tat House
Wang Yat House
Lok Fu Estate
364,312
371,848
793
Link Properties Limited
New Kowloon Inland 6451 107,428/335,530
2007 12 31 50
T T Town
207,001 1,177 273.0 4.07% 5,791.5 4.71%
Chung Fu Plaza 1999 2000
Tin Chung Court
1,177
— Tin Shui Wai Town 18 A
2,021/363,535
— 41 31,611/297,568
1999 50 2010 50
B 196,744 940 210.2 4.37% 4,419.6 4.76%
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre
1997
A
B
Tsz Lok Estate
940
6442 81,055/481,546
2007 10 50

171/470
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2024 31
4 TKO TKO Gateway
165,981 623 202.9 4.07% 4,363.2 4_65%
11 Hau Tak Il Shopping Centre 1993
Hau Tak Estate
623
Tseung Kwan O Town 99 49,962/324,918
2005 10 14 50
5
Temple Mall South 145,515 688 188.6 4.15% 3,984.2 4.73%
Wong Tai Sin Plaza 1982 1983
Lung Kwong House Lung Fai House
Lung Lok House Lung On House
11 Lower Wong Tai Sin Il Estate
688
6438 51,200/353,235
2007 17 50
6 Kai
Tin Shopping Centre 179,026 461 179.4 4.02% 4,101.2 4.38%
1999 2003
Kai Tin Estate
461

6481 65,207/256,946
2009 29 50

172/470
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2024 31

7 TKO TKO Spot
129,796 1,280 186.8 4.22% 3,941.5 4.74%

Sheung Tak Shopping Centre 1998

A
B
C
Sheung Mei House
Sheung Tak Estate
1,280
98 95,092/467,545
2007 26 50
8
Temple Mall North 137,447 473 145.3 3.98% 3,339.5 4.35%
Lung Cheung Plaza 2001
Upper Wong Tai Sin Estate
473
6439 53,974/311,854
2007 23 50
9
Sau Mau Ping Shopping
154,356 611 196.3 4.00% 4,346.7 4.52%
Centre
2002
A
Sau Mau Ping Estate
154,356
154,945
611
6453 57,670/833,450
10/833,450
2007 23 50
10 Cheung Fat
Plaza 165,572 590 160.1 4.36% 3,289.6 4.87%
1989
Cheung Fat Estate
590
Tsing Yi Town 172 49,331/171,904

2005 12 22 50

173/470



11

12

13

14

Leung King
Plaza
Wo Che Plaza
Yat Tung Shopping
Centre

Choi
Ming Shopping Centre

Wo House
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2024 31
183,690 616 158.7 4._46% 3,134.5 5.06%
1988
Leung King Estate
616
(Tuen Mun Town) 458 54,922/426,295
2001 50
170,738 828 146.7 4.16% 3,113.0 4.71%
1977
— Tai Wo House Foo Wo House
Hau Wo House Chi Wo house King
Wo Che Estate
828
Sha Tin Town 549 55,437/474,742
2007 23 50
193,035 1,900 175.7 4.43% 3,382.1 5.19%
2001 2003
Yat Tung Estate
1,900
Tung Chung Town 30 107,811/930,819
2009 50
92,804 765 151.5 4._35% 3,011.6 5.03%
2001 2003
Choi Ming Court
Kin Ming Estate
765
82 44,614/346,996
109 35,839/420,644
2001 50 82 2010
15 50 109

174/470



15
Plaza

16
Plaza

17

Centre
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2024

Butterfly
174,747 313 158.0 4.13%
1983
— Tip Ling House
House
Butterfly Estate
313
473 38,316/248,783
2005 10 14 50
Choi Yuen
125,394 536 154.2 4._46%
1982
— Choi Chu House
House Choi Ping House
536
Fan ing Sheung Shui Town
2005 17 50
Tin Chak Shopping
130,819 302 142.9 4.37%
2001
Tin Chak Estate
302

37 38,810/272,897
2005 10 14 50

175/470
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31
3,506.9 4._50%
Tip Sum
2,842.7 5.42%
Choi Yuk
Choi Wah House
230 34,746/286,392
2,898.7 4.93%
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2024 31
18 Tai Wo Plaza
125,178 454 128.0 4._46% 2,567.6 4.99%
1989
0i Wo House
On Wo House
Hei Wo House
454
Tai Po Town 176 40,117/414,930
2000 10 50
19
Yau Mei Ko
_ 102,608 - 148.8 4._40% 2,852.2 5.22%
Cheung Lei Yue Mun Plaza
2001
Yau Mei Court J K L
102,608
102,836
6459 19,357/392,161
2005 50
20 Tin
Shing Shopping Centre 78,235 1,458 132.0 4.25% 2,711.9 4.87%
2000
— Ting Shing Court
1,458
17 A 1,480/357,800
1997 11 28 50
21 Tin Yiu Plaza
93,443 480 123.4 4.37% 2,433.8 5.07%
1992
Tin Yiu Estate
480

38 31,581/574,611
2005 17 50

176/470



22
Plaza

23
Plaza

24

25

Chuk Yuen

Siu Sai Wan

Fu Tung Plaza

Tin Shui Shopping Plaza

138,459

99,942

104,879

74,948

EDINETOOOO
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1,103 117.6 4.42%
1984
Chui Yuen House
Sau Yuen House
Chuk Yuen South Estate
1,103
6452
2007 16 50
558 113.7 4.50%
1989
— Sui Yick House
558
Chai Wan Inland 176
2007 26 50
537 119.5 4.46%
1997
Fu Tung Estate
537
40 44,218/209,377
2008 30 50
577 109.7 4.39%
1993
Tin Shui Estate
577
39 34,646/599,404

2007 50

1771470

2024 31

2,401.0

62,198/354,665

2,260.5

34,606/418,894

2,404.8

2,211.4

4._90%

5.03%

4.97%

4.96%



26
Ch On Shoppi
ung On opping 82,430
Centre
1996
995
27
ha Kok ial
Sha Kok Commercia 96,488
Centre
1980
Martin House
662
28
Choi  Wan Commercial
179,260
Complex
1980
859

EDINETOOOO
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2024 31

995 108.1 4.39% 2,159.9 5.01%
Chun Ping House

Chung On Estate

544 41,385/223,886

2005 10 14 50

662 105.1 4.36% 2,142.3 4.91%
— Osprey House Sand

Sha Kok Estate

552 32,438/340,309
2008 50

859 103.4 4_43% 2,174.1 4.75%

Fei Fung House
Choi Wan Estate

6461 61,003/394,552

2008 12 29 50

178/470



29

30

31

32
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2024 31
Tak Tin Plaza
97,642 754 99.2 4.30% 2,176.9
1991
Tak Hong House
Tak King House
754
6326 25,782/308,756
1999 18 50
Oi Man Plaza
180,474 808 96.9 4._44% 2,018.9
1975
A D
Chiu Man House Hong Man House
Chung Man House
0i Man Estate
808
9826 54,395/204,983
1968 75
Nan Fung Plaza
80,837 - 68.6 4.10% 1,608.9
1999
23 154,634/1,485,995
8648 1995 11 21 2047 30
Fu Shin Shopping Centre 106,361 525 86.3 4.34% 1,873.5
1986
Fu Shin Estate
525

189 33,761/330,620
2005 10 14 50

179/470

4.56%

4.80%

4.26%

4.61%



33

Centre

34
Plaza

35

Centre

Shun Lee Commercial
199,440 731 92.5

1978

Lee Foo House

House Lee Yip House
Shun Lee Estate
731
6465
2010 31 50
Homantin
100,945 299 78.9
2001
Ho Man Tin Estate
299
11119
20,327/214,270
1998 11 20 50
Heng On Commercial
116,022 585 87.3
1987
Heng On Estate
585
500
812/247,314
1998 50

180/470
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2024 31
4.48% 1,937.1 4.78%
Lee Hong House Lee Yat
56,354/295,872
4.46% 1,632.3 4.83%
A 3,411/57,202
4.30% 1,902.5 4.59%

39,206/40,831



36 Po
Tat Shopping Centre

37 Yu
Chui Shopping Centre

38
Tai Yuen Commercial
Centre

82,269 1,083 88.7

2002

Tat Cheung House
Po Tat Estate
1,083

2009

112,769 1,175 87.3

2001

Yu Chui Court

1,175
462
2001 18
136,497 594 83.1
1980
A
B

Tai Man House

Wing House

Tal Yuen Estate
594

192
2007 29

181/470

6470
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48,967/361,200
50

2024 31
4.08% 2,002.3 4.43%
75,195/546,029
4.11% 1,834.4 4.76%
4.41% 1,780.3 4.67%
Tai Tak House Tai

38,718/396,392
50
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2024 31
39
Kwong Yuen Shopping
81,542 736 84.8 4.30% 1,707.3 4.97%
Centre
1991
Kwong Yuen Estate
736
506 29,929/279,026
2001 50
40
Hin Keng Shopping Centre 94,277 636 89.9 4.32% 1,838.3 4.8%
1987
Hing Keng Estate
636
503 37,320/396,392
2000 10 50
41 Lek Yuen Plaza
106,134 438 81.6 4.26% 1,732.3 4.71%
1976
Wing Shui House Wah Fung House Fu
Yu House (Fook Hoi House) Kwai Wo House
Lek Yuen Estate
438
550 28,600/199,774
2007 50

182/470
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2024 31
42
Tsui Ping North
R L 113,729 421 76.3 4.21% 1,818.6 4.20%
Shopping Circuit
1990
Tsui Tsz House Tsui Lau House Tsui Pak
House Tsui 0 House Tsui Yue House
Tsui To House
Tsui Ping North Estate
421
Kwun Tong Inland 754 31,542/345,220
2002 24 50
43 Stanley Plaza
98,934 411 43.2 4.24% 1,270.6 3.40%
1999 2000
Murray House
Village Square
Ma Hang Estate
411
Stanley Inland 98 37,045/116,974
2009 11 50
44
Sun Chui Shopping
75,543 620 71.1 4.25% 1,492.6 4.76%
Centre
1983

Sun Yee House
Sun Chui Estate
620

554 27,934/395,903
2009 25 50

183/470



45

46

47

(Nam Cheong
Place)

Fung Tak Shopping Centre

57,091 547 73.6
Fu Yun House
547
6437
2005 17 50
68,490 487 57.7
1991
Bang Fung House
487

1,070/202,138

Tai
Hing Commercial Centre

1998 50

102,351 672 61.7

1977

Tal Hing Estate
672

484
2009 18 50

184/470
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2024 31

4._25%

Fu Cheong Shopping Centre

31,469/355,647

4.24%

Ngan Fung House

6318 A C

4.41% 1,362.9

27,288/474,882

1,576.1

1,371.7

4_67%

2002

4.21%

4.53%



48

49

50

51

Fu Tai Shopping Centre

Long Ping Commercial
Centre

0i
Tung Shopping Centre

Po Lam Shopping Centre

EDINETOOOO
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2024 31
61,288 635 67.3 4.15% 1,430.7 4.70%
2000
Fu Tai Estate
635
418 38,769/382,833
2001 12 50
92,061 564 69.6 4.45% 1,459.8 4.77%
1987
Yuk Ping House Shek Ping House
Kang Ping House
Long Ping Estate
564
Yuen Long Town 521 32,958/498,969
2006 15 50
81,029 634 66.4 4.29% 1,390.5 4.78%
2000
0i Tung Estate
634
Shau Kei Wan Inland 849 34,910/194,191
2005 17 50
86,730 398 60.5 4_46% 1,285.3 4.71%
1989
1
11
— Po Ning House Po Kan House
Po Lam Estate
398

88 25,495/341,494
2004 10 19 50

185/470



52 Mei
Lam Shopping Centre

53 Hing Wah Plaza

54 Fu
Heng Shopping Centre

55
Un Chau Shopping
Centre

75,989 375 63.5
375
558
2010 22
82,011 268 62.2
2000
May Wah House
Hing Wah Estate
268
177
2007 28
55,030 517 64.5
1990
Fu Heng Estate
517
178
2000 10
50,868 213 56.5
1999
213
2010 11

186/470
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2024 31
4.26% 1,355.2
Mei Lam Commercial Centre
Mei Fung House
29,125/273,313
50
4.40% 1,247.6
27,675/160,197
50
4.33% 1,280.8
22,900/358,013
50
3.93% 1,286.8

Un Hong House

6478

50

17,388/355,830

4.68%

1981

4.98%

5.03%

4.39%



56
Lung Hang Commercial
Centre

57
Kwong Fuk Commercial
Centre

58

Wan Tsui Commercial Complex

64,037 440 54.7 4.24%
1983
440
557 23,047/289,255
2010 31 50
69,556 461 53.8 4._44%
1983
Kwong Yan House
Kwong Fuk Estate
461
196 23,946/351,384
2010 17 50
82,296 359 49.6 4._40%
1979

Yee Tsui House
Lee Tsui House
Wan Tsui Estate
359

180
2010 31 50

187/470
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2024 31
1,178.9 4.64%
1,191.3 4.52%
1,205.9 4.11%

Shing Tsui House

26,208/222,534



59
Lok Wah Commercial
Centre
60 Maritime Bay
61 Yiu

On Shopping Centre

62
Cheung Wah Shopping
Centre

EDINETOOOO
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2024 31
98,078 650 52.2 4.30% 1,144.8 4.56%
1985
Po Wah House Kan Wah House Lap Wah
House Tat Wah House Ning Wah House
Shun Wah House
Lok Wah North Estate
650
6460 38,134/513,788 667/513,788
2008 50
41,017 - 41.5 4.10% 898.4 4.61%
1998
HK Great Land (HK) Limited
49 573/5,411
SK 8530 1995 27 2047 30
50,765 547 49.0 4.19% 1,024.9 4.78%
1989
Yiu On Estate
547
505 12,616/306,501
1999 18 50
77,181 353 46.8 4.30% 1,006.8 4.65%
1984
Cheung Lai House Cheung Chung House
Cheung Wah Estate
353
226 26,310/299,811
2004 16 50

188/470



63 Hiu
Lai Shopping Centre

64 Hoi
Fu Shopping Centre

65 Tin

Tsz Shopping Centre

66
Sam Shing Commercial
Centre
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2024 31
34,560 637 41.5 4.17% 962.2
1996
Hiu Tin House A
Hiu On House E
637
6205
1994 11 11 2047 30
40,335 225 43.2 4.20% 898.5
1999
E —
D J—
225
11141 9,413/204,120
1999 16 50
36,865 289 39.6 4.23% 815.5
1997
Tsz Ping House
Tin Tsz Estate
289
40 17 511/202 482
2007 29 50
68,901 176 45.8 4.41% 966.4
1980
A B C
Chun Yu House Moon Yu House
Yu House
176
481 14,434/115,271
2010 22 50

189/470

4.31%

1,000/249,375

4._81%

4.85%

4.74%

Fung
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2024 31
67 Hing
Tung Shopping Centre 53,034 420 22.3 4.22% 641.9 3.47%
1995
420
851 23,786/155,258
2010 50
68 Kin
Sang Shopping
43,868 273 28.2 4.20% 675.5 4.17%
Centre
1990
Kin Sang Estate
273
441 A 14,100/28,621
1998 50
69 Yiu
Tung Shopping Centre 61,683 685 25.7 4.32% 594.1 4.32%
1994
Yiu Tung Estate
685
852 35,548/381,831
2010 29 50
70
Ping Tin Shopping Centre 24,400 406 27.0 4.38% 577.0 4.68%
1997
Ping Tin Estate
406
6446 16,966/362,174

2009 30 50

190/470



71

72

73

Retail

and Car Park within Tung
Tau Estate

Centre

Centre

Shun On Commercial

Yin Lai Court Shopping

37,555

On Tung House

80,508

Yat House

10,584

493

1978

459

1991

150

493 29.8

1982

Cheung Tung House
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2024 31

4.25% 662.6 4.49%

Hong Tung House

Yue Tung House Wong Tung House

Tung Tau Estate
Tung Tau (I1) Estate)

6413
2002 24 50

459 26.3

On Kwan House

Shun On Estate

6472

2008 28 50

150 20.0

389
1990 21 2047

191/470

16,942/349,186

4.35% 605.2 4.35%

On Chung House On

20,130/179,429

4.23% 389.0 5.14%



74
Car Park within Kin Ming
Estate

75

Retail and Car Park

within Cheung On Estate

76

Retail and Car Park

within Hong Pak Court

EDINETOOOO
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2024 31
763 24.1 4.60% 479.9 5.01%
2003
763
109 39,133/420,644
2010 15 50
484 18.2 4.22% 428.2 4.25%
1988
On Tao House
484
160 D F
403/293,522
1998 50
549 20.6 4.01% 478.2 4.31%
1993
549

6095 A
1991 25 2047 30

192/470
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2024 31
77
Retail and Car Park
within Cheung Wang 11,532 333 19.7 4.49% 400.5 4.91%
Estate
2001 2003
333
178 13,010/259,640
2009 25 50
78
Car Park within Tin Yuet
- 560 17.7 4.00% 395.2 4.47%
Estate
2000
560
41 19,191/297,568
2010 50
79
Retail and Car
Park within Lok Wah  South 16,086 226 13.3 4.56% 286.0 4.63%
Estate
1982
Chin Wah House
On Wah House
16,086
31,454
226
6460 13,231/513,788 667/513,788
2008 50

193/470



80
Po Hei Court Commercial

Centre

81

Retail and Car Park
within Wo Ming Court

82
Retail and Car Park within
Ko Chun Court

13,686 - 9.2
1993
A B
6117
1992 17 2047
7,342 379 12.0
1999
Wo Ming Court A
379
52

1997 11 28 50

7,332 323 13.4

1995

Chun Moon House
323

6189

1993 2047

194/470
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2024 31
3.50% 266.6 3.46%
1,354/20,256
30
3.92% 326.2 3.67%
A 728/82,796
4.13% 306.8 4.37%
A 530/81,791
30
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2024 31
83 Car
Park within Ka Tin Court - 348 10.2 4.00% 262.0 3.90%
1988
348
290 A
1898 99 2047 30
84
Retail and Car Park 9,118 348 12.1 4.04% 281.7 4.29%
within Ching Wah Court
1986 1987
348
100 A
1898 99 2047 30
85
Retail and Car
I 8,784 446 12.1 4.20% 286.2 4.22%
Park within Tin Yat Estate
2001
446
42 15,485/226,221
2008 10 28 50
86
Car Park within Tin King
- 380 12.1 3.90% 283.9 4.25%
Estate
1989
380

444 4,036/197,161
1999 18 50

195/470



87 Car
Park within Tsz Man Estate

88
Retail
within Hong Yat Court

and Car Park

89
Retail and Car Park within
Tong Ming
Court

90 Car
Park within Wah Lai Estate

7,040

21,283

364

1994

364

2008

355

355

2001

291

Tong Wong House
Tong Fu House

291

1,153/98,512
1997

411

2001

411

2001
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2024 31
12.2 4.50% 255.7
6441 9,121/139,291
28 50
10.2 4.01% 274.2
2001
6329 4,582/99,200
50
8.3 3.96% 249.1
1999
54 A
26 2047 30
11.5 4._20% 253.0
445 A 21,700/102,614
25 50

196/470

4.77%

3.73%

3.34%

54

4.56%



91

Retail and Car Park within Tin
Wah Estate

92

Retail and Car Park within
Tsui Wan Estate

93 Car
Park within Ning Fung Court

94

Car Park within Wang Fuk

Court

1,476

13,631

287

182

299

408

287 11.0
1999
43
2010 12
182 9.7
1988
166
1999 18
299 10.5
2001
477
1999 10 15
408 8.4
1983
27
1898

197/470

50

50

50

99
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2024 31

4.07% 249.4

11,225/236,423

4.20% 231.5
3,254/123,068

3.80% 256.1
3,072/78,707

3.70% 208.8
A

2047

4.41%

4.19%

4.12%

4.04%

30



95
Car Park within Po Pui

Court

96 Car
Park within Ming Nga Court

97 Car
Park within Ying Ming Court

98
Retail and Car Park within Yan
Ming Court
99
Car Park within Yue On
Court

7,019

277 8.9
1995
277
728
1994 2047
345 7.1
1985
345
36 A
1898 99
274 7.3
1989
274
Junk Bay Town
1898 99
262 5.4
1990
262
A
1987 22 2047
296 7.3
1988
296
117
1982 75

198/470
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2024 31
3.90% 216.1
A
30
3.60% 192.8
2047
3.90% 204.6
A
2047 30
4.04% 179.0
30
3.91% 184.2
A
75

4.12%

3.70%

30

3.55%

3.01%

3.97%
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2024 31
100
Car Park within Tsui Ping
5,275 229 9.1 4.68% 188.0 4.85%
South Estate
1990
229
755 6,785/291,576
2009 11 27 50
101 Car
Park within Lai On Estate - 181 9.7 4.40% 205.8 4.72%
1993
181
6482 5,099/90,111
2009 50
102
Retail and Car Park 8,112 156 6.8 4.05% 169.7 4.01%
within Nam Cheong Estate
1989
Cheong Shun House Cheong Yat House
Cheong On House Cheong Yin House
156
6427 3,670/109,764
2005 17 50
103
Retail and Car Park within
- 13,306 199 5.9 4.39% 166.2 3.55%
Tsz Oi Court
1997 2000
11
199
6211 A
6265 699/113,761
1995 2047 30 NKIL 6211 s.A 1999

50 NKIL 6265

199/470



104 i
Retail and
Car Park within Sau Mau Ping 1,507 205 7.1
11l Estate
1996
205
6453
2007 23 50
105
Car Park within
Upper Ngau Tau Kok - 228 7.9
Estate
2002
228
6471
2008 50
106
Retail and Car Park
o 12,616 265 5.6
within Lok Nga Court
1984
265
5969
1898 99
107 1
Car Park within Sau Mau
. - 395 6.6
Ping | Estate
1984
B
Sau Ming House
395
6453
10/833,450
2007 23 50

200/470
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2024 31

4.22% 158.9

7,222/833,450

4.40% 165.5

9,334/126,664

3.78% 151.5
A
3.60% 176.1
14,364/833,450

4.47%
4.75%
3.73%
1/28,952
2047 30
3.76%
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2024 31
108 Car
Park within Kam On Court - 238 5.6 3.90% 139.9 3.98%
1987
238
283 A
1898 99 2047 30
109 Car
Park within Ching Wang Court - 179 6.2 3.90% 156.8 3.96%
2001
179
137 2,516/36,665
1999 20 50
110 Car
Park within Yee Kok Court - 240 6.4 3.70% 162.7 3.92%
1981
240
5911 A
1898 99 2047 30
111
Retail and Car Park
within Ying Fuk 786 163 6.5 4.21% 147.3 4.39%
Court
2001
163
6266
1999 50
112 Car
Park within San Wai Court - 185 5.8 3.90% 132.5 4.35%
1990
185
326 A
1989 2047 30

201/470



113 Car
Park within Tin Yau Court

114
Car Park within Yee Nga
Court

115 Car
Park within King Lai Court

116 Car
Park within Fung Lai Court

117
Retail and Car Park
within Hung Hom Estate

3,994

Hung Fai House

45

Hung Hom Inland
2008 29 50

202/470
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2024 31
192 5.4 3.90% 133.3
1992
192
10 A
1992 23 2047 30
159 4.6 3.70% 123.7
1993
159
120 A
1991 22 2047 30
158 3.9 3.80% 110.7
1989
1158
5943 A
1985 2047 30
134 3.6 3.70% 97.3
1997
134
6240 1,512/33,911
1996 2047 30
45 3.1 4.04% 83.5
1999

554 1,573/51,548

4.08%

3.70%

3.53%

3.72%

3.73%



118
Retail and Car Park
within Tin Wang Court

119
Car Park within Hong Keung
Court

120
Retail and Car Park
within Hong Shui Court

121 Car
Park within Kwai Hong Court

122
Car Park within Pang Ching
Court

79
79
1991
93
1999
93
1999
102
102
1998
88
1993
88
1990
67
1991
67
1990

2.5

1992

6131
21 2047

4.1

6239
50

2.5

1999

6227
14 50

2.9

420
2047

1.7

6121
21 2047

203/470

4.05%

30

4.30%

3.92%

4._10%
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2024 31

1,100/35,351

30

4.30%

30

3.59%

4.37%

3.66%

3.91%

3.92%
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2024 31
123 1
Car Park within
o - 70 1.6 3.70% 41.8 3.88%
Lower Wong Tai Sin 1 Estate
1982
70
6373 674/240,107
2001 50
124
Car Park within Chuk
- 61 1.3 4._70% 28.9 4.38%
Yuen North Estate
1987
61
6327 687/364,071
1999 18 50
125
Retail and Car Park
I - 38 1.1 3.65% 25.8 4.23%
within Ko Yee Estate
1994
38
6480 1,518/80,343
2010 50
2024 31
126 The Quayside 883,127 8,039.5
2019
457
Century Land Investment Limited
6512
20240 2015 23 50
1,017.5

204/470
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2024 31
127 700
700 Nathan Road,

173,333 3,511.4
Mong Kok

Trade and Industry Department Tower 1983
2017

Link Monte Hong Kong Limited.
10470 24,750/25,000
11419 1980 30 75

128
Hung Hom Car Service
421,401 2,960
Centre
1980
13 12
932
Zung Fu Land Investment Limited
27 A
1884 11 16 999
129
Chai Wan Car Service
438,351 2,570
Centre
1989
45 20 25
Apollo Luck Limited
114
11525 1981 24 75 75
2024 31
130 SD
1078 Off Anderson
Road Development Site (SD3 Lot 139,243 804
1078)

Lucky Spring Development (HK)
Limited
S.D. 1078
22989 2022 9 28 50

205/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 31
Link
7,375 75,780 226 251.9 4.75% 5,940 4.24%
Square
2003
A 21
A 10
A
A
226
Shanghai Xingbang Properties
Co., Ltd.
2001 16 2051 15 50
Link
55,423 - 367 119.1 4._65% 3,050 3.91%
Plaza Zhongguancun
2008
A B L)
A B B
367
(Yisamei Property (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.)
2011 13 2051 12 40
Link Plaza
. 88,726 - 1,043 193.1 5.15% 4,070 4.74%
Liwan
2011
The Riverside A B L
A B B
1,043
Guangzhou Qianging Hui Real
Estate Company Ltd. 272
2002 10 21 2042 10 20 40
(Link Plaza
67,546 - 576 100.4 4.90% 2,300 4.36%
Tongzhou
2014
A B L
A B B
576
Beijing Yateng Real
Estate Management Company Limited 477
2010 12 2050 12 40 2060
12 50
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2024 31
Link
83,900 - 741 127.8 4.65% 4,660 2.74%
CentralWalk
2006
A B M
A B
741
Baoyi Property Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 344
2002 29 2042 28 40
. 148,853 - 1,477 366.0 4._65% 7,060 5.18%
Qibao Vanke Plaza
2016
A B L
A B B
1,477
Shanghai Xinbao Real Estate
Co., Ltd.
2012 11 12 2052 11 11 40
Link Plaza
. 90,113 - 998 126.6 5.15% 3,050 4.15%
Tianhe
2012
A 10 B L
A B B
998
Guangzhou Bilu Property
Management Co., Ltd. 1,011
1999 12 2039 11 40
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2024 31
8 Dongguan
100,597 9,418 - 45.7 5.20% 924 4.95%
Warehouse
2019 2020
11
Dongguan Jiatian Warehousing Co., Ltd.
2067 11 21
9 Foshan Warehouse 86,793 - - 25.4 5.20% 518 4.90%
2020
Foshan Zhenglian Warehousing Co., Ltd.
2067 28 50
10
- 99,323 - - 29.7 5.30% 631 4.71%
Jiaxing Warehouse
2019
A
(Jiaxing Da’en Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.)
2067 29 50
1 23,776 - - 8.2 5.30% 119 6.89%
Changshu South Warehouse ’ i i -9
2021
(Changshu Shenzhoutong Supply Chain Management Co.,
Ltd.)
2055 24
12 Changshu North
69,048 - - 5.1 5.30% 325 1.56%
Warehouse
2022
(Changshu Rongtong Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.)
2056 12 30
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2024 31
. 67,035 - 100.4 4.50% 2,120
Jurong Point
The Centris
1995 1997 2020
567 JP1 3822V
Mukim 6 2092 11 30
JpP2 3993A Mukim 6 2105 6 20
10,2 - . .80% 1
Swing By @ Thomson Plaza 0,206 9.3 3.80% %
1980 2019
10
10 Mukim 15
U1879K U1880T U1881A U1882K U1883N U1884X U1885L U1886C Ue48P 1976 10 15
99 U713N 1976 10 15 99
884 1976 10 15 99 1827V Mukim
15

(Private) Limited

Mercatus Beta Co-operative Limited
U648P Mukim 15 Thomson Plaza

1827V Mukim 15
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2024 31
100
100 Market Street, 28,339 - 29.5 5.50% 542
Sydney
1978 10 2010
10 CBD

Westfield Sydney
Westfield Management
Ltd Re Nominee Company Pty Ltd
2019 6 27 2318 6 26
299

2024 31
*

5,580 - 12.2 5.25% 106.3*

The Strand Arcade, Sydney '

1891
Pitt Street Mall 18.5
George Street 21.5
Strand TC Pty Ltd 50 Vicinity Custodian Pty Ltd 50
* 50
* Queen Victoria 14,105 669 38.3 5.38% 269*
Building, Sydney
1898
669
QVB TC QVB TC Pty Ltd 1/2
Vicinity Custodian Pty Ltd 1/2
2083 2 27 V688504 BK.3621 No.984
* 50
*

. 14,946 - 19.1 5.50% 156*

(The Galeries, Sydney) '

2000 74,000
TC Galeries TC Pty Ltd (50%)
(50%)

* 50

210/470



I6o : 186,809
1GO Portfolio ’
347
126
(25 )
388
151
)
(50 )
1GO
# 49.9
*
The Cabot, London 44,743
25
1991
* 201,900,000

14,600,000
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2024 31
426 192.4 5.00-6.25% 969. 1#
347 Kent Street, Sydney - 20 A (50 )
126 Phillip Street, Sydney - 37
388 George Street, Sydney - 30 A (50 )
151 Clarence Street, Sydney - 20 A (100
567 567 Collins Street, Melbourne - 27
2024 31
65 15.4 8.50% 201.9*
44,336 477,224
13 407 4,381
2018 A
17,659 45,526

211/470



19
31
60
80

74
78
83
86
87
90
93
94
95
96
97
99
100
101
105
107
108
109
110
112
113
114
115
116
119
121
122
123
124

2024

31

212/470
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126
127 700 ( )

130 SD3 1078

10
11
12

100
1GO 49.9

50
50
50
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

(Lok Fu Place)

T

(T Town)

(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)

TKO

TKO Gateway

Temple Mall South

(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)

TKO

(TKO Spot)

Temple Mall North

(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)

(Cheung Fat Plaza)

(Leung King Plaza)

(Wo Che Plaza)

(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)

(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)

(Butterfly Plaza)

(Choi Yuen Plaza)

(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)

(Tai Wo Plaza)

(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))

(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)

214/470

-261%

-239%

LA471%

.440%

.228%

.293%

.204%

-867%

-431%

.840%

.753%

.741%

.891%

.684%

.961%

-590%

.621%

-436%

-595%

.517%
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21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

(Tin Yiu Plaza)

(Chuk Yuen Plaza)

(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)

(Fu Tung Plaza)

(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)

(Chung On Shopping Centre)

(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)

(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)

(Tak Tin Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)

(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)

(Homantin Plaza)

(Heng On Commercial Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)

(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)

(Stanley Plaza)

215/470

.361%

.343%

.264%

-345%

.237%

.208%

.198%

.216%

.217%

.129%

.900%

.048%

-083%

-913%

.064%

.120%

.026%

-996%

.955%

.028%

-969%

-017%

.711%
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44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)

(Fu Cheong Shopping Centre)

(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)

(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Hing Wah Plaza)

(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)

(Un Chau Shopping Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Yiu On Shopping Centre)

(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)

(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)

(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)

(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)

(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)

216/470

.835%

.881%

.767%

.762%

-800%

.816%

.778%

.719%

.758%

.698%

.716%

.720%

-659%

.666%

.674%

.640%

.502%

.573%

.563%

.538%

.502%

-456%

-540%
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67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)

(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)

(Shun On Commercial Centre)

(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)

(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)

(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)

(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)

(Car Park within Tin King Estate)

(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)

217/470

.359%

.378%

.332%

-323%

.371%

.338%

.218%

.268%

.239%

.267%

.224%

.221%

-160%

-149%

.182%

L172%

-147%

.158%

.160%

.159%

-143%

-153%

-139%
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90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)

(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)

(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)

(Car Park within Po Pui Court)

(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)

(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)

(Car Park within Yue On Court)

(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)

(Car Park within Lai On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (l1l) Estate)

(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)

(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)

(Car Park within Kam On Court)

(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)

(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)

(Car Park within San Wai Court)

218/470

.141%

.139%

.129%

-143%

J117%

-121%

.108%

.114%

.100%

.103%

.105%

.115%

-095%

-093%

.089%

.093%

.085%

.098%

.078%

.088%

.091%

-082%

-074%
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113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)

(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)

(Car Park within King Lai Court)

(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)

(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)

(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)

(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin (I) Estate)

(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)

The Quayside

700

700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

Hung Hom Car Service Centre

Chai Wan Car Service Centre

SD3

1078 (Off Anderson Road Development Site (SD3

Lot 1078))

Link Square

Link Plaza Zhongguancun

Link Plaza Liwan

219/470

.075%

.069%

.062%

-054%

-047%

-039%

.052%

.038%

.042%

.025%

.023%

.016%

-014%

-927%

-964%

.655%

L437%

.450%

.585%

-841%

-456%
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10

11

12

Link Plaza Tongzhou

Link CentralWalk

Qibao Vanke Plaza

(Link Plaza Tianhe)

(Dongguan Warehouse)

Foshan Warehouse

Jiaxing Warehouse

Changshu South Warehouse

Changshu North Warehouse

Jurong Point

Swing By @ Thomson Plaza

100
100 Market Street, Sydney

The Strand Arcade, Sydney)

Queen Victoria Building, Sydney

The Galeries, Sydney

IGO
IGO Portfolio

The Cabot, London

2024 31

RICS

220/470

131.

.388%

.812%

.261%

.841%

.558%

.313%

.381%

-072%

-196%

.884%

.646%

.550%

.304%

.769%

.446%

.000%

.035%

962%

2022
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2024 31 2023 31
9,698 9,562
7,912,267 7,866,459
6,440 6,320
) 8,073,054 8,025,856
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31
98.0 98.0 97.7 96.8 96.5
2022 2023 31 2023
2023 2024 31 2024 31
2024 31 2023 31
873 865
1,258 1,256
1,006,671 767,049
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
31 31 31 31 31
96.6% 95.2 90.9 96.3 97.8
92.3% 95.5 97.0 95.8 97.4
96.2% 100 100
2022
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2024 31 2023 31
880 1,100
1,343 48
371,798 371,810
2024 2023 2022 2021
31 31 31 31
93.1 93.1 100 100
99.7 96.9
8.2 89.2 100 100
97.8 99.9
2021
2023
2023
10
10
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®)
17 18 19
( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
17
2002 ¢ > | 162,688(3,052,027 | 159,605 (2,994,190 77.10 1,446 75.64 1,419
18
2003 ( )| 188,940 (3,544,514 | 185,906 (3,487,597 73.98 1,388 72.79 1,366
19
o024 ¢ | 178,823 (3,354,719 | 175,438 |3,291,217 70.02 1,314 68.70 1,289
2021 12 31 3,336
2022 12 30 3,217
2023 12 29 3,333
2005 11 25
2023 38.40 720.38
2023 10 35.90 673.48
2023 11 38.60 724.14
2023 12 43.85 822.63
2024 39.20 735.39
2024 38.95 730.70
2024 33.65 631.27
2024 33.85 635.03
2024 32.80 615.33
2024 30.35 569.37
2024 33.00 619.08
2024 36.90 692.24
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17
2021 2022 31 6,419 305.67
18
2022 2023 31 6,311 274.31
19
2023 2024 31 6,718 262.65
17
2021 2022 31 5.3 4.6
18
2022 2023 31 0.1) 5.4
19
2023 2024 31 (2.0) 7.8
A B =+ Bx 100
A
B
A+ Bx 100
A
B
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4
17
- 2022 o 29,504,984 0 1,264,000
20%2 2023 o 450,357,641 0 6,706,400
20%2 2024 a1 24,014,522 0 24,014,500
2024 31 24,014,522 M
2023 31 8,085,484
30 15,929,038
24,014,500
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2
1
2

2008 31
2024 31
10
CCASS HKSCC
CCASS
2024 31

2,553,845,113
255,384,511
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10.06 10.06A 10.06B
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@) 1
®
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Q) ) (1in)
(iv) )
(vi)
(vii)

GAV - D % V

GAV

HKIS
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(

(

(

)

)

)

31

104
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@
CCASS
HKsCC CCASS
CCASS
CCASS HKscC HKsCC
2

)

)

)
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(
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)

)

)

)

31
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(

(

(

20

2024 31

)

)

)

20

24,014,500
4
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(

(

)

)

HSBC

2024

31
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29

50,000,000

30
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@

15

0.10
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20

15

25
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10

10



Q)
Gii)
)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

Q)

)]

(i)

241/470
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15
2024 31
L
S LP
BlackRock, L 233,067,558 9.12
Inc.

S 5,061,310 0.19

Citigroup L 2,648,905 %

Inc. S 2,783,223
L 130,959,505
S 2,783,223 L 5.12
S 0.10
(L&LP) LP 5.02
128,310,600 LP 128,310,600

K

233,067,558 5,061,310
128,100
4,991,310
937,562
1,167,046
786,000
212,500 168,546
2,724,910
1,408,000
1,042,137 274,773
2024 31 2,553,845,113
15

2024 31
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15
2024 31
2024 2023
31 30
233,774 - - - 78,297 312,071 0.0122 312,071
994,355 - - - | 2,749,055 3,743,410 0.1465 3,860,542
327,280 - - - 717,637 1,044,917 0.0409 1,074,881
121,531 - - - 24,252 145,783 0.0057 145,783
28,593 - - - 27,637 56,230 0.0022 55,333
26,059 - - - 27,637 53,696 0.0021 53,696
- - - - 20,955 20,955 0.0008 20,955
27,004 - - - 27,025 54,029 0.0021 54,029
47,758 - 17,597 - 26,650 92,005 0.0036 91,431
- - - - 13,530 13,530 0.0005 13,530
2024 31 2,553,845,113
123,000
1,080
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2024 31
15
2024 31
2024 31 2023 30
483,502 0.01 1,740,511
2024 31 2024 31
CEO CFO
2024 31
28,293 74,188
2023 19 88,251
2024 31
126,808
27,323 35,408 368,101 152,602 150,838
2024 31 2,553,845,113
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The Link Finance

MTN
2009
(Cayman) 2009 Limited 2012 28 2027 3.55 500
2024 2023
31 30
99,975,000
500
2009 2013 2028
3.1 500
2024 2023
31 30
50,000,000
500
2009 2014 2024
3.6 500
2024 2023
31 30
26,471,000 5.29 28,166,000
500
2009 2015 31 2030
3.0 740
2024 2023
31 30
238,428,000

740
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2009 2016 21 2026
2.875 500
2024 2023
31 30
4,977,000 1.00 4,823,000
500
2009 2022 19 2032
2.75 600
2024 2023
31 30
24,540,000 4.09
600
CB Link CB Limited 2019
2024 1.6 40 2024
2024 2023
31 30
8,000,000 1.02 7,000,000
2022 CB 2024 32
1,300
2024 787
CB 2022 12 12 2027 4.50 33
2027
2024 2023
31 30
613,000,000 18.58 653,000,000
2027 33
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2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI 2020 2022
2023
2007 LTI 2007 23 2017 22
2017 LTI
2017 LTI i
i)

2017 LTI 2024 31

1,463,632

2471470
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2017 LTI 10

2017 LTI

2024 31 2017 LTI

2023 2024 2024
31 31
17
C )| C )
13
2020 2020 29 12,556 364 - (12,920) - - - 3 649 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 21,799 632 - (11,215) - - 11,216 41 885 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 1 25,048 726 - - - - 25,774 234 641 64.85
11 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 41,307 - - - 41,307 420 420 41.95
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 392,894 11,398 - (404,292) - - - 9% 20,299 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 807,456 23,424 - (262,287) - - 568,593 1,788 19,737 76.25 43.45
2024 30 12
2022 2022 1 927,798 26,916 - - - - 954,714 4,429 13,798 64.85
1 2025 30 12
2023 2023 10 - - 1,342,880 - - (117,132) 1,225,748 9,848 9,848 41.95
10 2026 30 2 16
2020 2020 29 63,879 1,852 - (65,731) - - - 16 3,301 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 206,559 5,991 - (67,095) - - 145,455 457 5,048 76.25 43.45
2024 30 12
2022 2022 11 237,344 6,883 - - - - 244,227 1,133 3,528 64.85
11 2025 30 12
2023 2023 10 - - 357,919 - - (29.964) 327,955 2,668 2,668 41.95
10 2026 30 2 16
2020 2020 29 3,799 110 - (3,909) - - - 1 197 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 6,912 200 - (3.556) - - 3,556 13 281 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 1 7,943 230 - - - - 8,173 74 203 64.85
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 12,523 - - - 12,523 17 17 41.95
10 2026 30
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2020 2020 29 3,799 110 - (3.909) - - - 1 197 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 7,801 228 - (4,050) - - 4,060 15 320 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 11 9,067 263 - - - - 9,330 -] 232 64.85
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 14,247 - - - 14,247 145 145 41.95
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 4,141 120 - (4.261) - - - 1 214 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 7,891 228 - (4,059) - - 4,060 15 320 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 1 9,067 263 - - - - 9,330 -] 232 64.85
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 14,247 - - - 14,247 5 5 41.95
10 2026 30
2022 2022 1 8,105 237 - - - - 8,432 7 200 64.85
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 12,523 - - - 12,523 127 127 41.95
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 4,267 123 - (4,390) - - - 1 220 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 7.836 221 - (4.031) - - 4,082 15 318 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 11 9,004 261 - - - - 9,265 84 231 64.85
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 13,728 - - - 13,728 139 139 41.95
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 4,153 120 - (4.213) - - - 1 214 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 7,132 206 - (3,669) - - 3,669 13 289 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 1 8,993 260 - - - - 9,253 e 230 64.85
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 13,728 - - - 13,728 139 139 41.95
10 2026 30
2023 2023 10 - - 13,530 - - - 13,530 137 137 41.95
10 2026 30
2021 2021 7,132 206 - (7,338) - - - 62 338 76.25 43.45
2024 30
14
2022 2022 1 8,195 237 - (8.432) - - - 235 368 64.85 41.30
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 12,523 (12,523) - - - 510 510 41.95 40.09
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 4,400 130 - (4,620) - - - 1 233 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
14
2021 2021 7,726 224 - (7.950) - - - 68 367 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 11 8,878 257 - (9,135) - - - 255 400 64.85 41.30
11 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 4,017 (4.077) - - - 166 166 41.95 40.09
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 4,153 120 - 4.273) - - - 1 214 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
14
2021 2021 7,132 206 - (7,338) - - - 62 338 76.25 43.45
2024 30
2022 2022 11 8,195 237 - (8.432) - - - 235 368 64.85 41.30
1 2025 30
2023 2023 10 - - 3,774 (3,774) - - - 154 154 41.95 40.09
10 2026 30
2020 2020 29 60,076 1,742 - (61,818) - - - 15 4,050 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
15
2021 2021 138,958 4,023 - (45,130) - - 97,851 308 2,299 76.25 43.45
2024 30 12
2022 2022 79,862 2,317 - - (41,089) - 41,090 996 3,396 71.20
2024
2022 2022 11 267,414 7,751 - - - - 275,165 1,331 4,104 64.85
1 2025 30 12
2023 2023 10 - - 507,233 - - (44,782) 462,451 3,703 3,703 41.95
10 2026 30 12 16
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2020 2020 29 182,804 5,281 - (188,085) - - - 45 9,684 58.20 43.52
29 2023 30
2021 2021 633,518 18,111 - (214,163) - (6,456) 431,010 1,460 19,878 76.25 43.45
2024 30 12
2022 2022 27,663 802 - - - (28,465) - (450) - 64.00
2025
10
2022 2022 11 1,008,272 28,906 - (7,480) - (116,970) 912,728 4,544 14,954 64.85 41.30
11 2025 30 12
2023 2023 10 - - 1,796,400 (5.399) - (346,900) 1,444,101 11,746 11,746 41.95 40.09
10 2026 30 12 16
2023 2023 10 - - 26,149 - - - 26,149 685 685 41.95
10 2024 30
11
2024 2024 - - 38,812 - - - 38,812 109 109 38.65
2025 28
11
5,259,900 151,922 4,225,600 (1,463,632) (41,089) (690,669) 7,442,032 48,895 163,751
3.2108
2024 31 164
43.50
2017 LTI
10
2024 31
2024 31 2024 31
10
30
10
11
12
13 2024
14 2023
2024 29
15
2024 31
16 2023 10
17 2023 2.9
18
21
2017 LTI
2017 LTI 21
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@
2024 31
31
2024 2023
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
13,578 254,723 12,234 229,510
(3,508)  (65,810) (3,036)  (56,955)
10,070 188,913 9,198 172,554
(766)  (14,370) (653)  (12,250)
14 (7,361) (138,092) 9,367 175,725
13,16 (458)  (8,592) (50) (938)
551 10,337 106 1,989
(2,319)  (43,504) (1,754)  (32,905)
® 4
15 (627)  (11,763) 85 1,595
(915)  (17,165) 16,299 305,769
11 (1,548)  (29,040) (1,008) (18,873)
(2,463)  (46,206) 15,293 286,897
2024 (3,333) (62,527)
2023 (3,034)  (56,918)
2023 (3,277)  (61,477)
2022 (3,083) (57,837)
(8,830) (165,651) 8,933 167,583
27 (1,638)  (30,729)
(8,830) (165,651) 7,295 136,854
(10,148) (190,376) 5,201 97,571
28 1,798 33,730 2,252 42,248
(480)  (9,005) (158)  (2,964)
(8.830) (165,651) 7,295 136,854
12 (1,983)  (37,201) 15,451 289,861
(480)  (9,005) (158)  (2,964)
(2,463)  (46,206) 15,293 286,897
107 162
12
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2024 31
) )
(
) ) ) ) )
2024 31
(1,983) 3,781 1,798 (480) 1,318
(169) (169) (169)
(1,629) (1,629) (1) (1,650)
(3,781) 3,781 (501) (501)
2023 31
15,451 (13,199) 2,252 (158) 2,094
146 146 146
(2,398) (2,398) (24) (2,422)
13,199 (13,199) (182) (182)
) Q)
) ( ) ) ) )
2024 31
(37,201) 70,932 33,730 (9,005) 24,726
(3,170) (3,170) (3,170)
(30,560) (30,560) (394) (30,954)
(70,932) 70,932 (9,399) (9,399)
2023 31
289,861 (247,613) 42,248 (2,964) 39,283
2,739 2,739 2,739
(44,986) (44,986) (450) (45,437)
247,613 (247,613) (3,414) (3,414)
107 162
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6,367 119,445 2023 6,360
119,314 2023 1,638
30,729
10,148 190,376 2023 5,201 97,571

32
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31
2024 2023
) ( ) ) ( )
(1,983)  (37,201) 15,451 289,861
7,710 144,640 (9,443)  (177,151)
458 8,592 50 938
458 8,592 (60) (1,126)
(169) (3,170) 22 413
82 1,538 51 957
45 844 60 1,126
5 94

112 2,101 180 3,377
6,718 126,030 6,311 118,394
3,333 62,527 3,277 61,477
3,385 63,503 3,034 56,918
6,718 126,030 6,311 118,394

2,553,845,113 2,553,845,001

24 29

25 22

49 51
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2024 31
130.08 24 2023
3,333 62,527 2023 3,277
2,561,930,575 2023 2,107,497,039
132.57 25 2023 118.80
3,385 63,503
31 2,553,845,113 2023
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2024 31
31
2024 2023

) ( ) ( )
13 387 7,260
14 235,979 4,426,966 237,469 4,454,918
15 2,151 40,353 6,769 126,986
16 1,383 25,945 1,463 27,446
17 599 11,237 1,188 22,287
162 3,039 212 3,977
25 939 17,616 809 15,177
18 1,104 20,711 2,283 42,829
19 2,813 52,772 3,352 62,884
19 7,184 134,772 13,987 262,396
252,314 4,733,411 267,919 5,026,160
20 3,926 73,652 3,330 62,471
21 88 1,651 115 2,157
22 3,909 73,333 4,164 78,117
23 55,223 1,035,983 60,750 1,139,670
24 4,036 75,715 4,163 78,008
2,269 42,566 2,141 40,165
25 1,010 18,948 719 13,488
441 8,273 453 8,498
26 2,970 55,717 3,024 56,730
73,872 1,385,839 78,859 1,479,395
(381) (7,148) 120 2,251
178,823 3,354,719 188,940 3,544,514

27 2,553,845,113 2,553,845,091

70.02 1,314 73.98 1,388

107 162
2024 29 2024 29
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2024 31
«C ) « ¢ )
) ) )
2023 188,940 3,544,514 120 2,251
966 18,122
27 (935) (17,541)
2024 31
(1,983) (37,201) (480)  (9,005)
2024 (3,333) (62,527)
2023 (3,034) (56,918)
28 252 4,728
28 (421)  (7,898)
28 (1,629)  (30,560) ) (394)
28 1,798 33,730  (1,798) (33,730)
2024 31
(10,148) (190,376) (501)  (9,399)
2024 31 178,823 3,354,719 (381)  (7,148)
2022 162,688 3,052,027 302 5,666
27 20,148 377,976
1,310 24,576
27 (407)  (7,635)
2023 31
15,451 289,861 (158)  (2,964)
2023 (3,277)  (61,477)
2022 (3,083) (57,837)
27 (1,638) (30,729)
28 276 5,178
28 (130)  (2,439)
28 (2,398)  (44,936) 24) (450)
28 2,252 42,248 (2,252) (42,248)
2023 31
5,201 97,571 (182)  (3,414)
2023 31 188,940 3,544,514 120 2,251
107 162
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2024 31
31
2024 2023

( ) ) ( ) ( )
30(a) 8,481 159,104 7,641 143,345
31 (2.667)  (50,033) (17,371)  (325,880)
(3.148)  (59,056)
©77)  (18,329) (758)  (14,220)
(85) (1,595) (62) (1,163)
551 10,337 125 2,345
569 10,674 881 16,528
(11,975)  (224,651) (3.258)  (61,120)
12,678 237,839 225 4,221
(1,200)  (22,512)

1,200 22,512
(151) (2,833)
15 197 3,696 83 1,557
(509) (9,549) (24,634)  (462,134)
30(c) 3,269 61,326
30(c) 6,322 118,601 37,189 697,666
27 18,813 352,932
30(c) (3,213)  (60,276)
30(c) (12,084)  (226,696) (21,052)  (394,936)
30(c) 281 5,272
30(c) 2 38 23 431
30(c) (2,813)  (52,772) (1,713)  (32,136)
30(c) 510 9,568 130 2,439
30(c) ® (150) (©) (56)

27 (303) (5,684)
(5.401)  (101,323) (5.050)  (94,738)
27 (935)  (17,541) (407) (7,635)
(14,710)  (275,960) 28,267 530,289
(6,738)  (126,405) 11,274 211,500
13,987 262,396 2,779 52,134
(65) (1,219) (66) (1,238)
31 7,184 134,772 13,987 262,396

107 162
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HKFRS
@)
14
(b)
( )
2024 2023
6,652 6,555
) 2,470 2,395
1,258 1,256
1,343 487
() 1,547 1,367
() 308 174
13,578 12,234
2,263 2023 2,188
191 2023 131
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2024 31
7,782 2,482 1,572 1,742 13,578

5,763 1,967 1,152 1,188 10,070

(5,139) 683 (1,542)  (1,363) (7,361)

(234) (39) (104) (81) (458)

170 (797) (627)

(766)
551

(2,319)

®)

(915)

(1,548)

(2,463)

7,114 7,114
697 53 296 46 1,092
(40) @ 13 (59)

2024 31
134,082 47,614 35,460 21,247 238,403
2,151 2,151
225
599
939
2,813
7,184
252,314
2,860 211 1,102 510 4,683
556
3,926
88
3,909
55,223
4,036
1,010
441

73,872

(381)
178,823

2024 31 1,572 2023 1,545
10,264 2023 10,041
1,742 2023 648
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2024 31 35,242
2023 34,965 181,145 2023 185,210
23,126 2023 25,913

2023 31
7,640 2,401 1,545 648 12,234
5,792 1,928 1,088 390 9,198
5,011 6,658 (1,591) (711) 9,367
(50) (50)
158 (73) 85

(653)
106
(1,754)

16,299
(1,006)
15,293

766 764 16,261 17,791

3,480 3,480
653 62 275 12 1,002
G4 ©) ®) (62)

2023 31
138,958 46,898 31,580 22,940 240,376
3,652 3,117 6,769
1,438
1,188
809
3,352
13,987
267,919
2,954 225 799 447 4,425
740
3,330
115
4,164
60,750
4,163
719
453

78,859

120
188,940
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2024 ¢ 2023
922 767
648 548
329 278
373 343
351 316
273 218
116 124
219 132
6 67
271 243
3,508 3,036
(
2024 2023
( 1,931 1,430
24 197 70
399 339
2,527 1,839
(39) (21)
2,488 1,818
24 (169) 22
” (86)
2,319 1,754
)
() 125 2023 104
2023 157
2023 44 13 2023
) 3.5 2023 3.0
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( )
2024 2023

10 1,113 920
94 94
19 17
4 4
17 15
1 2
2

(&)
10 11
16 15
17 18

(22) (49)

2

38 27

10
( )
2024 2023

1,085 925
() 53 43
49 36
1,187 1,004

) D) (849)
1,113 920
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11
16.5 2023 16.5
( )
2024 2023
691 804
179 138
58 44
20 620 20
1,548 1,006
( )
2024 2023
(915) 16,299
627 (85)
(288) 16,214
16.5 2023 16.5 (48) 2,675
(127) 67
2,019 576
(236) (2,021)
(102) (158)
(10) ©)
52 4
1,548 1,006
2021 12 OECD 750
GloBE
2024 2023 12 31 2025 31
GloBE
GloBE
15 GloBE
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12
2024 2023
(1,983 ) 15,451
80
(1,983 ) 15,531
2,561,266,590 2,179,285,281
63,740,297
2,561,266,590 2,243,025,578
0.77 ) 7.09
.77 ) 6.92
2024 31
13
( )
2024 2023
387 400
(10) (13)
G171
31 387
2024 31
377 2023
14
@
( )
2023 236,741 728 237,469
e) (2,239) (2,239)
31 7,114 7,114
888 108 996
(7,329) (32) (7,361)
2024 31 235,175 804 235,979
2022 212,761 212,761
(3,131) (3,131)
31 17,025 766 17,791
951 17 968
9,422 (55) 9,367
16 (287) (287)
2023 31 236,741 728 237,469
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2023

)
3.25
2023

2023

1,720
2023

685
2023

8.50
2.98

6.00

583

1,941

661

2023
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50 50
235,175 (24,847) 31,479 10,582 (10,596)
236,741 (26,712) 34,302 11,057 (11,078)
49.9 2022
2022 50 2022
2023 31
2023 11 2023 12
2024 20 50
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2024 2023
6,769 3,756
279 (469)
) 3,480
(627) 85
(197) (83)
) (3,515)
31 2,151 6,769
2024 50
2,384 2,591
2024 20
620 5/3
50
31
2022 I
49.9 605 3,403 )
77
I
160 2022
2024 31
2024 2023
992,609,927 o ¢ 49.9

2024 31 2,151 2023 6,769
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( )

2023 1,371 1 o1 1,463

4 4

28 1 69 98

(56) (39) (94)

) ©)

(81) (81)

2024 31 1,266 2 115 1,383
2024 31

1,677 6 279 1,962

(411) 0 (164) (579)

1,266 2 115 1,383

2022 1,156 92 1,248

®) ®)

47 1 29 77

14 287 287

(64) (30) (94)

(50) (50)

2023 31 1,371 1 91 1,463
2023 31

1,646 7 222 1,875

75) ) (131) (412)

1,371 1 o1 1,463

( )

2024 2023
26 20
13 2023 :19
( )
2024 2023
7 4
2023
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2024 2023
569 1,158
30 30
599 1,188
2024 31
2023
33
2023 : 53
)
2024 2023
599 547
641
599 1,188
300
18
)
2024 2023
270 276
87 (106)
183 170
717 843
204 1,270
1,104 2,283
29()( )
2023 31 1,200
2023
)
2024 2023
30 135 120
31 9 48 51
90 87 105
270 276
183 2023 2024 31
16 2023 12 31

2023 32
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106 59
6 67
(22) (18)
3 @
31 87 106
19
)
2024 2023
2,449 2,485
4,735 11,502
7,184 13,987
2,498 3,201
315 151
2,813 3,352
20
)
2024 2023
(231) (244)
4,157 3,574
3,926 3,330
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2023 (244) 3,418 156 3,330
(16) ® 24
11 13 556 51 620
2024 31 (231) 3,958 199 3,926
2022 (188) 3,382 154 3,348
(28) (10) (38)
11 (56) 64 12 20
2023 31 (244) 3,418 156 3,330
2024 31
2,518 2023 1,128 )
323 2023 236
21
( )
2024 2023
115 153
54 50
6) (14)
(76) 74)
31 88 115
2017 10 2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI 2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
1,463,632 2023 1,051,429
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2024 2023
45 70
43 45
88 115
22
( )
2024 2023
3,909 3,889
275
3,909 4,164
2015 23 60
40
77
3.5 2023 3.0
2024 31
2023
2023
( )
2024 2023
86
(86)

31
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2024 2023
23,600 28,567
9,458 9,892
22,165 22,291
55,223 60,750
( )
2024 2023
1,082 4,014
70 119
6,795
7,947 4,133
7,252 1,513
1,761 119
2,193 6,877
11,206 8,509
11,195 5,886
130 2,479
5,973 2,208
17,298 10,573
4,071 6,507
309 129
999 5,956
5,379 12,592
10,647
6,657 284
998
6,657 11,929
531 6,762
6,205 6,252
6,736 13,014
55,223 60,750
)
23,961 2023 5,807 6,990 2023 7,805 2,044
2023 3,644 12,920 2023 13,115
) 2024 31
37,408 2023 39,390 17,815 2023 21,360
2024 31 3.98 2023 3.51
2.83 2023 3.54 5.32
2023 4.70 1.92 2023 3.09 4.30 2023 4.43
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2019 2024 1.60 40
103.70
130
2022
2022 80.3
32.13 2024
2022 12 12 2027 4.50 33
58.77
130
2025 12 12
2024 31 4.96 2023  4.96
( )
2024 2023
3,927 4,031
3,120
197 70
(155) (81)
(3,213)
31 3,969 3,927
236
214
(169) 22
31 67 236

4,036 4,163
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2024 2023
225 278
263 318
13 7
433 176
30
5
939 809
(107) (46)
(676) (512)
an 19
(206) (142)
()]
(1,010) (719)
(70 20
)
(@)
2023
2024 2023
47 102
(118) 12)
(70) 90
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31
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201
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2024 31
2023
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3.20 2023
16,956
28
2024
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262
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252 252
(421) (421)
2024 31 381 381
2022 404 404
276 276
(130) (130)
2023 31 550 550
26
2024 2023
90 121
502 446
779 870
209 165
303
29 22
1,361 1,097
2,970 3,024
2024 2023
2,951 3,009
19 15
2,970 3,024
2024 2023
30 57 82
31 90 9 13
90 24 26
90 121

446

2023 522

292/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27
2024 2023
2,553,845,091 2,110,193,850
(24,014,500) (6,706,400)
24,014,522 24,716,793
425,640,848
31 2,553,845,113 2,553,845,091
24,014,500 2023 6,706,400 935 2023 407
2024 31 2023 30
2023 31
24,014,522 2023 2022 30 2022 31
24,716,793
2023 2023
2023 31
425,640,848 2023 29
44.20
425,640,848 18,813
1,638 303
20,148
2024 31 33.65 2023 50.50
2024 31 2,553,845,113 2023  2,553,845,091

85,937 2023 128,969
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2023 550 (1,231) 681
252 252
421 421
() (421) (421)
(169) (169)
(1,974) (1,974)
345 345
(1,629) (1,629)
1,798 1,798
)
2024 31 381 (2,860) 2,479
2022 404 1,167 (1,571)
276 276
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2,252 2,252
)
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)
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2024 31 22,098 2023 :4,148
754 2023 11,433
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2023 473
2024 31 11,862 2023
11,850
( )
2024 2023
(663) (505)
12,431 12,431
2024 2032 2024 2032
(73) 74)
60 274

7.77
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2024

( )
2024 31
2,449 9 10
82 133 371 334
799 558 791 121
942 149 3,560
9,727 13,872 30,052 7,739
3,909
178,823
2023 31
2,563 4 11
170 168 267 149
741 549 693 158
161 942 3,709
6,370 10,151 45,975 7,396
3,889
11 277
188,940
2023

REIT

50 2023 50

( )
2024 2023
59,259 64,913
252,314 267,919
23.5 24.2
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1,010 1,010
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809 809
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(915) 16,299
49 36
16 94 94
16 7
(551) (106)
2,319 1,754
5
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14 41
7,361 (9,367)
458 50
337 457
(167)
(153) (476)
30 13
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8,481 7,641
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2023 60,750 4,163 187 (90) 4,164 69,174
) 6,322 6,322

(12,084) (12,084)

2 2

(155)  (2,539) (119)  (2,813)

510 510

®) ®)

(5,762) (155)  (2,547) 510 117y (8,071)

856 (259) 597

13 13

(60) (169) (349) (578)

75 197 2,585 134 2,991

(636) (13) (649)

235 28 2,598 (349) (138) 2,374

2024 31 55,223 4,036 238 71 3,909 63,477
( )

2022 45,714 4,031 135 15 3,948 53,843
) 3,269 3,269

) 37,189 37,189
(3,213) (3,213)
(21,052) (21,052)

23 23

281 281
(61  (1,524) (108)  (1,713)

130 130
3) 3)

16,137 25)  (1,527) 130 196 14,911

191 191

19 19
(286) 22 (235) (499)

86 135 1,560 27 1,808
(1,092) @  (1,09)

(1,101) 157 1,579 (235) 20 420

2023 31 60,750 4,163 187 (90) 4,164 69,174
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2022 12
455 513
11
2023 12
11 29
15 2024 20 50
14 523 6,591 7,114
9 107 116
3 47 50
522 522
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(6) (142) (148)
11 (158) (169)
518 6,111 6,629
15 (3,515) (3,515)
(70) (261) (331)
©) 107) (116)
439 2,228 2,667
2023 31
2021 11
( QvB ) )
538 2,877
177 2022
QVB 50 QVB
2000
429-481 500  412-414A
2022 12 497
582
2022 29
669
2022 31 766
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55.741
2 SMCP
3
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2023 31
648886
63 648331
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2023 31
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50
14 3,054 764 766 13,207 17,791
10 1 11
3 5 8
(191) (191)
(221) (221)
(16) (16)
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() @ (O]
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2024 2023
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1,043 1,589
19,532 20,034
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#
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1,330,030,374 100 100
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F 100 100
159,337,842 100 100

HK 100 100

100 100

QvB 1,261,561 100 100
VB 293,285,010 100 100
118,201,254 100 100

» 100 100
14,841,201 100 100

337,000,100 100 100

615,014,654 100 100

HK 100 100

F 100 100
287,595,000 100 100

1,318,010, 000 100 50

100 100

6,500,001 100 100

2006 100 100
2000 100 100
100 100

100 100

100 100

» 1,000 75 715

25 sar.l. 13,000 100 100
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Consolidated Income Statement

Far the year andad 31 March 2024

2024 2023
o HES'M HHKS'M
Rovenue 5 13,578 12,254
Propany oparling expensas 7 3.500) (2,004)
Nat property noome 10,070 9,188
Genaral and administrative expenses (TE6) (653)
Change in fair values of invesiment properies 14 {7,361) 9,367
Impairmant of gocdwill and proparty, plant and equipmant 138 16 (458} (53}
Intarest income 551 108
Finance costs B 23 {1,764]
Loss on disposals of financial assels at amartised cosl 5 -
Share of net (lossesliprofits of joint veniures: 15 {627) B5
(Lesspprofit before inxatlon and transsctions with Unitholders a (915) 16,200
Taxation 1 {1.548) {1.0086)
{Losspprofil for the year, belore transactions with Unitholders {2.483) 15,283
Destrbiutions pakd 1o Unitholdars:
= 2024 interim distibution (3,333) -
— 2023 final distribution (3,034) 2
— 2023 imenm dathbution - {3277
- 2022 final disiribirtion - |3,0&3)
{8,830} 8a33
il paid rights issued 1o Unitholdars k4 - (1, 638]
(8,830) T.285
Ropresaniod by:
Change in not assets altibutablo 1o Unitholdar, exchiding issues al now
units and units bough back (10,148) 520
Amunt afteing fram msars movements 28 1,708 2250
Hon-controfing interesls (480) (158}
{88300 7285
{Loss)profit for the year, belona transections with Lintholders attnbuiable o
~ Unitholders [Note) 12 {1,883) 15,451
= Han-controling interesls (4803 (153]
{2.463) 15,283

The notes on pages 107 1o 162 are an infegral part of thase consoliialed financial stalemonis.

Hota: (Losspmntings por unil, badsed wHon (Keskproll lor b yoar, beloh irafddachons with Unifoiders alirbulnblo 1o Unihalders and Ihe weighlod avonige
nuimbad o units in issue, is seloul in Nole 12 in The consolicdated inancial statements.

Anninl Repert 20233004 101
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Far tha year ended 31 March 2024
Alter
Belore  Transactions transactions
transactions with with Hon-
with Unitholders Unitholdors contralling
Unitholdors {Malm (i)} (Mot (i) intereals Total
HES'M HES™ HES'M HKS'M HES™
Far the year ended 31 March 2024
Loas lor this year {1,8:83) 3,781 1,798 (480) 1318
Othar comprehansive incoma
Ibams thal may b reclnssifiod subsequontly
o the consolidated income stalament
— Cashy flow hacging resens {169) = [168) = {180}
- Exchange resorve (1,E249) = {1,628) (1) (1.550)
Tatal comprehensive loss for the year {a,781) 2,781 = (501 {5a1)
For the year encled 31 March 2023
Prafit tor the year 15451 (13.168) 2252 {1563 2094
Othar comprehansie incoma
Isams thai may ba mclassdied subsequanty
1o Ihe consalidated income statemant

= Cash flow hadging mserw 146 146 - 146
- Ewd‘l!.rﬂﬂ FESATVE {2.30948) - (2, 338) [24] (2422}
Todal cormprehensie iIncome fof the year 13,1858 (13.198) - {162) [az}

The noles on pages 107 o 162 are an miegmal part of these consolidated financial siatemants

Molos:

I} Tramsactions with Linihoiders comprise o distributions jo Unitholders of HICSS 357 millon (2003 HKSE, 360 milion), nd paid righis issued o Unitholdes ol
HHEN {20 HES1, 638 milkon) nnd changa in reft assets altributable fo Unioiders, mrcheding mauos of new unis and units bought back, wihich i o

decraaie of HECE10 148 million 20Xk an Rcnesse of HESS 300 milien),

(¥ I sctomance with tha Trus! Dead, ihe units of Link Aoal Estnie Imsstmant Trast conlain contraciunl cbiigations. 1o pay b ite Untholdon cash disirbutions and
a0, g T Meimmington of e irusl. & shane of & nil cash proceocs doihid froem B sale of rmalsaton of the sxssts of he inel less oy listetes. in
SOOI With T DIDEOrTGrass inlansdis in (N (RS0 &l N aihs of P Meminaton. Linfhoiders’ furds ang ifacpkrn classiliesd o & fnancial Rnldy rds
N ey i BCCOANCH Wit Hong Hong Accounting Standand 32 Financal inssrumants: Pregentation, Conisbent with Unitholden” lunds being cassilied as
& tnancial Enbaty, e distibuticns o Uniholdos and changs innol Resels afributabis i Unitholders, exciuding isues of now unis and units bought back,

an finance cosls. Aooordingty, th o

102 Link Roal Eatee bvvasamani Trsd

moome

313/470
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Consolidated Statement of Distributions

FFar tha year andad 31 March 2024

2024 2023
o HES'M HKS'M
(Lesspprofil for the yeor, bofore imnsactions with Unithelders
atiributable to Unitholders {1.983) 15,451
Adpustmants (aba (i)l
= Change in fair values of imestment propa ios T.710 {9,443)

= impaimmant of gocdwill and propay, plant and aquipmsant 458 50
~ Dalarmad taxabion on change in lair values of iInvesiment proparies 458 fi=1]]
= Change in fair values of dervalive component of comvartibile bonds (169} a2
— Change in fair values of inancial instnemants B2 51
— Daprecialion and amarlisation ol real ssiale pnd relaled sssets 45 &0
= Loss on dispasals of fnancial assets af armartised cos) §

— Other non-cash losses 112 180
Total Distributabie Amaunt [Hata (1)) 6.718 8311
Imierim distribution pald 3333 A2TT
Final distribution, 1o ba paid to the Linithaldars 3,385 3034
Tatal distributions for e year -s,ﬁi 8317
Units in issue at 31 March i 2,553,845.113 2,553,845 001

Destributions par unit 1o Unithaldors:

= Intanm distribution par unit, paid {Nole (i) HEA30,08 conts HK155.51 cants
~ Final distributicn par unil. 1o be paid 1o the Unitholdars (Mote (i) HE132.57 conts HEA 18,88 canls
Distribution par unit for the year HEZ62.65 cents HEZ74.31 canis

The notes on pagas 107 1o 162 am an integral part of these consolidaled financial sialemanis.

MNaotos:

il Lnder the forms of the Truss Doed, Link Aenl Extale investmaent Truss is requined io disirbute to Unithciden no Sess than S0% of iis desfrbutablo incoma lor
minch francial year, Dostributabés income, soooiing 1o the Tt Deed, & e Group's consclidaiod profit'(loes) afes taxation aftribilabie o Ungholden, as
fufiisted % elirmirabe the effect of cetliin non-cash adfustmidits alrbulalbibe 1o Unitaiders which hin been econded if the oonsolidabed incoma stibemnt or
I resbevard yoar. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Marager has decided o destribute 100% (2023: 100°%) of i1s distrituistse income o Unitholden, and
i bl gleiributabeke aevicund topresentg 100% (2023 100F) of v CsirinatnDie Inconns of e Group

{1y Tha irderion chatrinrmon par und of HI3008 conts (2023: HKIS5.51 cents) for Ihe six mon®s. anded X0 Seplomber 20070 vwas calkoulmed based on the inlanm
gisiritnston of HKS3, 233 milion (2023 HES3, 277 milkon) ior tha pariod and 2,561,030,5T5 units [023; 2,107 457,039 wnils) in issue as al 30 Saplombar 2023
T indeeien chedrfton was pakd o Unihcidars on 30 Decombar 2023

il T firal distnbution per und of HK132 57 cents (2023 HEC1 1880 conts] for the year ended 31 March 2024 is calculated based on e fnal detribution o b
pad 10 thi Linffholders of HPE3, 386 millon (2023 HIKS3,004 million| for the second Raif of the firencial yonr and 2853 845 113 wnis (2023 2,553,845 001
urits] in issue am Al 21 March 2024, withoul taking inta accoun Ay changs in tha mumbaer of unis in issue subsequent 10 the aperevl of T consaldatid
finnncial siaberrents, The final diiribution will b pad (o Unitholdeds an 13 August 2024,
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As a1 31 March 2024

2004 2023
Mol HES'M HES ™M
Ansets

Goodwill 13 = a7
Investment prope ries 14 235,979 Za7 460
Intarests in joind venheras 15 2,151 670
Proparty, plant and aguipmant 16 1383 1,483
Fnancial assals at amorised cost 17 539 1,188
Daposits and prepaymants 162 a2
Darvaiive inancial instniments 25 938 BOG
Trade and othar recanvablas 8 1,104 2283
Bank deposits 19 2,813 3,352
Cash and cash oquivalents 19 T.184 13,087
Totnl sssels 25234 267,918

Lisbilities, excluding net masels atiributable te Unithalders
Dafarmad tax Babiiias 20 3,928 3,330
Long-lam incantive schema provision 21 a8 118
Ol Babiities ] 3,009 4164
Bamowings 23 G5, 223 0,750
Carvenible bonds 24 4,036 4,183
Sotuity doposits 2960 141
Daryative financial instrumants 25 1000 e
Provigion for taxation 441 453
Trade payables, receipts in advance and accruals 28 2070 3,024
Tatal linbilites, excluding nel assets attributable 1o Unitholders T3.872 78,850
Nen-coniralling intereats (381} 120
Med assels afiributable 1o Unitholders 178,823 168 840
Linits im issua ar 2,553.845.113 2.553.845.001
Med assels per unit afnbulable o Unitholders HK§T0.02 HKS73.08

Thea noles on pages 107 1o 162 ars an inlegal part of thess consolidated financial statemants,

On behall of the Board of Directons of
Link Assal Managemoent Limiled, as managor of Link Aaal Estabo Immstrmant Trus!

HRicholas Charles ALLEN George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY
Chaiy Chiaf Exacutive Officer
29 May 2024 29 May 2024

104 Link Roal Eatese bnvasimani Trsd
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

Far tha year endad 31 March 2024

Nat assets
inithalders’ altributable 1o Han-cantralling
equity Unithalders interosts
Hala HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
ALY Aprl 2023 - 188,940 120
Issuance ol units under disirbulion reinvastment schamea - WES -
Units bought back for cancellaton 27 - (935) -
Loss for tha year ended 31 March 2024, bafore fransactions
with Unitholders - {1,263) {#B0)
Desiributions paid 1o Unitholdars
— 2024 intenm distibution - {3,333) -
— 20623 final distrbution - (3,034) -
Gain on cash low hadges 28 252 - =
Amount iranslarmed to the consolidated income siatemaent 28 (421) - -
Forexgn curmancy tanslations 28 1,628) = (21}
Amount arising from meerva maovemants 28 1,768 {1,768) -
Change in mol aasets aitibutable 1o Untholdars and
nen-contralling inlerests lar he yanr onded
31 March 2024, axcludng issuss of new units and
units bought back - {10,148 (501)
AL March 2024 - 178,83 {3B1})
Al 1 Aprll Foz2 = 162,668 oz
lssuance ol units undar Aghts issue 27 - 20,148 -
lzsuance of unils undar disirbulien reinvestment schamea - 1,310 -
Units bought back lor cancellaion 27 - (407 -
[Prodit far the yaar ended 31 Marnch 2003, belom fransactions
with Unitholders - 15,481 {158)
Distrbutions paid 1o Uinitholdars
— 2023 imlenrm datnbution - 3,27 -
= 222 fnal dsinbution - [feBnlnl]
il paid rights issued 1o Unitholdars a7 - {1,638 -
Gain an cash low hodpes 28 278 - -
Amount translormad o the conscidated income stalemant o8 (130
Forsign curmancy tanslations 28 |2, 308) - (24
Amounl afsing iram resere movements 28 2,962 (2.252) -
Change in nat assets attibutable 1o Unitholkdars and
nen-contralling imieests far the yaar anded
31 March 2023, axcludng issues ol new units and
units bought back - 5201 {182}
At 31 March 2023 - 188.940 120

The noles on pagas 107 1o 162 are an inegral part of these consolidaled financial slalemans.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For tha year andad 31 March 2024
2004 2023
Mol HES'M HES ™M
Oparating netivities
Mel canh generaled from opetating aclivilios &} 881 7841
Inwesling activities
Acqisston ol assals an [2BET) {17,371}
Acquisition of a joint venture - (3.148]
AckBBons ko invesiment properias [G7T) (758}
Addtians to property, plant and equipment (BE) {82
Inarast ncome recaived 551 25
Proceeds hrom disposal and matunty of fnancal
assels al amarlised cosl 558 a1
Placemant of bank deposits with onginal matunity of
mane than troa months {11,8975) (3.258)
Receipt From matunty of bank depasits with onginal
mabuity of mane than thess manihs 12,678 226
Daposi paid for acquisition of assels - {1.200)
Daposi for acquisition of assels ecetved 1.200 -
Increase in mstricted bank depasits - [151]
Dividend recetvad from jent ventures 15 197 a3
Hel cash used In investing activities [S05) {24.634)
Financing activities
Proceads hrom convarlible bonds. nof of transaction casts abfe) - 1289
Proceads from borrewings, net of transaction cosis anfc) 6,322 37188
Procoads brom righls issuo 27 = 18,813
Radamghan of convarible bonds el - [3.213)
Fepaymant of barmawings 30ic) (12,084) (21.062)
Achancas from a jaint yventure 30{c} - 8|1
Advancas from a non-confralling interast anfe) 2 23
Interesl expensas paid 30ic) [2,513) [1.713)
Saltlemont of dorivative inancial instruments 30{c} 5 ] 130
Paymants of leasa liabilities anife} {8} {3}
Payments ol ransaction costs lar Aghls issue 27 [303) -
Desirbutions pakd 1o Unitholdors [5A401) [5.050)
Units bought back for cancedlation 27 [935) (407}
Net cash (used injgenorated from financing activities {14,710) ZR.2ET
Met {decreaselfincrease in cash and cash equivalents [6.728) 11274
Cash and cash equivalénts at 1 Apil 13,987 2778
Efiect on exchange rale changes on cash and cash equivalents {65) {B6)
Cash and cash equivalenis al 31 March T.184 13,9687

Tha nales on pages 107 ta 162 ar an inlegmd part of these consolidated financial stataments,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Link Rieal Estate brnvestment Trust (“Link REIT) is & collectve invesiment schame authorised under section 104 ol the Securities and
Fulunss Ordinanca (Chagtar 571 of the Laws of Hang Kong). Link REIT is governad by a Second Amending and Restating Dead
enigned into an 30 July 2021 {the “Trusl Deed").

The principal actvity of Link REIT and its subswianaes {the “Group®) is imesling in real estato and may ba underlaking properly
divelopment and relaled activilles in mapact ol all types of developranis. The addiesses af the regsiened offices of the manager, Link
Assel Managemant Limied (the *Manager’), and tha Trustes, HEBC insitutional Trust Sarvices (Asia) Limied, am 20°F, Towar 1. Tha
Cusrysida, 77 Hol Bun FAoad, Kwun Torg, Kowloan, Homg Koeng Bnd 1 Quesn's Road Central, Honpg Kong, respoectivaly,

()

(c)

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

Tha consalidaied financial stalemants have been prepaned in accordance with tha Hong Kong Financial Reporiing Standards
[HKFRSS), the requirsments of the Trus! Desad and the relevent dadosum requirements a3 sal oul in Appendix C ol tha Code
on Raal Estate Imastmant Trusts (tha “REIT Code’) issued by the Securities and Fulums Commission of Hong Kong, HKFRSs is
& colactva torm which includes all applicabls HKFASs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASe") and Interpreiations (ssued
by 1h Hang Kong Instilule ol Catliied Public Accauntanls.

Accounting Convention

Thar censclidated financial statemants have bean propanad under the historical cost corention, as modified by the rovaluation of
derivative financial instruments, long-term incentive schems provskon, te dedvative componant of corveniblis bonds, investmen
propartas, and non-contmliing intenast pul opticn obigation, which ame staled at fair values as explained in the maleral
accounting pokces sel ouf in Nobe 3.

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Policies

For the year endad 31 March 2024, the Group has adopbed all the new standards and amendmanis thal are curmently in issue and
wllective

HEAS 1 and HEKFRS Practice Statement 2 Amendmeanis. Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HEAS 8 Amandments Defnition of Accounting Estmates.

HEAS 12 Amendmants Dwodarred Tax Redated 10 Assels and Liabilises Ansing from a Single
Trangaction

HKAS 12 Amendments Insmatienal Tax Relorm — Pillar Twe Model Rules

HKFRS 17 Insuranca Conlmets

HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HEFRS 9 — Comparative
Inlorration

HEFRE 17 Amandmans Amandmants to HKFRS 17

The adophon of these new slandards and amendmaents has not had any significant eflect on the resulls eported and the Anancial
pasition of the Gioug,
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Financil Stalomants | Metes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)
ic) Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following amendments and interpratation which have been published but are nol yet alecthve, have not been aarly adopled in
thi consolidated fnoncial statements, Thesoe an alfective lor the Group's accounting periods beginning on ar alter 1 April 2024,

HEAS 1 Amandmants. Clissification of Lsabslibes as Curront ar Non-curmoent™
HEAS 1 Amandmants Non-currant Lisbilities with Govenants™
HEAS 7 mnd HEFAS 7 Amandmanis Supplsr Finance Arsngomarnis!
HEAS 21 Amandmants Liack of Exchangaability™
HEFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Amendmanis Sale or Contribution of Assets batwean an Imvesior and its Associale
ar Joint Wttt ™
HKFRE 16 Amandments Leasa Liabiity in a Sale and Leasaback’™
Hong Kang Imerprsiation 5 {2020} Prasamation ol Financial Siatermanis — Classibcation by the Bormowes of &

Tarm Loan thit Contains a Repayment on Domand Clause™
™ ghiective for sooounting pericds beginning on o oftor 1 Januany 2024
= ghective lor socounling penicds beginning on of aflef 1 January 2025
W gy nandalory efecive dile B delonmmed ol Bul eaily apphcabion & pormitlad

The Group [& n tha process of making an assessment af the impact of these amendmants and imempmelation upon inilial
apgplication,

108  Link Roal Eatee bnvasamani Trsd
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Financial Statnmants | Netes to the Consolidated Finameial Siatemanta

3 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The mateial accourting polices adoptad in the preparation of the consclidated financial stalements are 561 oul below. Save as the
adoption af nis and rovisod accounting policies, these palicies hive boan consistontly appiiod 1o all the yoars prosonted.

(a) Basis of Consolidation

Tha consclidated financial siatemants ncorpomie the assats and liabilities of Link REIT and all ity subsidianes as at 31 Manch
2024 and ther masuhts for the year than endad.

Subsidianes are entities, including stnictured entities, over which the Group has control. The Group controls an enlily whan the
Group is exposed o, of has rghts 1o, vatable retums Irom s imahsment with the antity and has the abiity to aMect these neturns
through its power over the enbity,

Bubsidianes are consolidated from the dase on which control is tmnslered 1o the Group, They am deconsolidated from the date
thal cantral ceases.

Inlar-comparry mnsactions, balances and unralised gains on transactons betwean group companies am aliminaied. Unrealised
losses am alse eliminated unless tha tmnsaction provides evdenca ol mpairmant of the asset imnsiamed,

Tha Group apphies the acquistion mathod ko account kor business combinations, Tha considoration transormod lor the acguisition
of & subsidiary is the tir values of the assats transkamed, the liabilities incurred o the frmear cwnars of the scquires and the unils
Issued by the Group, Tha considoration translermod includes the fair value of any assol or Eabdity rosulting lrem a coningont
conshdention arangeman. identifiable assels acquired and liabilities and contingent liabiities assumad in a business
combination an measwed inisally &t telr i values a1 the scquisiion date, Acquisition related codts are sxpensed in the
consolidated incame stalament during the panad in which thay are incurned,

Whare the Group enters into a conract thal contains an obligation (lor axampla, a writlen put oplion exercisable by the contract
couniarparty) 1o acquire shares in a party-cwned subsidiary compary hram the non-controling intlerest, which is nat part ol a
busingss combination, the Group reconds a financial Eabdity for the present value of the edempion amaun with 8 cormasponding
charpe directly i nat assats attributabla to Unitholders. Changas i the value of the financial lability ane recognised in the
consolidated income stabament.

(b

L]

Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged eithar in providing a particular type of service, or in
providing servces within a parficular economic environment, and which s subject 1o nsks and rewards that are diierant from
thosa ol athar segmants. Consistent with the Group's inemal financial mpoding o the Manager, being the chied aparating
dacision maker, lor the purpose of making decisions about allocating mesources and assessing parlormance, segmant assals
conaisl prenarily of anghble assets and receivabies and segment liabltes malnly compnse oparating |labililies,
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Financil Stalomants | Metes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
() Foreign Currency Translation
{i}y Functional and Presentation Currencies
Items ncludad in the linancial stalemants of each of the Group's enlities are measumed using the cumency of the primany

economic anvironment in which the entity op {the “functional o ¥7). The consclidated financial stalomants ane
presentad in milkons of Hong Kong Dolars, which is tha functional curmancy of Link REIT and the Group's presentation
CUMBnEY.

{ii} Transactions and Balances
Foreign currancy fransactions an ranslated it the lncional curmncy using the exchange rmbes peovailing af the dates of
Ihe transactions or valuation where ilems ams m-measured. Feeign exchinge gains and losses resulting (rom the settemsan
of such imnsactions and from the transiation o the reponting dals exchange mies of monatary assats and lisbilities
dancminaled in lorelgn curencies am recognised in tha consobdaled income slalement, sxcept when deferred in othar
comprohansve incomae as quidiying cash fiow hodges and qualiying nel imastmont hedges.

{ili) Group Companies

Tha rasuits and financial position of all the Goup's entities that have a functional curmncy diffarmnt from the presentation

curency ara translated info the preseniation curmancy as lollows:

- assats and liabilties lor each statement of inancal postion ol the Group's entities ane ranslated at the reporting date
clasing mia;

-~ Income and expendilures tor each income statement of the Group's antities e transtated &l avarmps axchangs rales
{unfass this average is nol A masonable approcmation of the cumulative aflect of the mies prevailing on the
transaction dales, i which case ncome and expandilures ane translated al the rales on the dales of the trarsactiona);
and

= all resulting curmancy transianon diiemences s recognisad in olhdr comprahensive noome.

Goodvill mnd falr value adjusiments arsing from the acquisition of & lorelgn entity are teaed as asseis and (abilitles of the

lomaign entity and tmnslated al the mporing dale chosang rate. Curancy translation differences ansing am mcognised in

odhar compralanshs mncoms.

(d) Investment Properties
A propasty Bl B hald for larg-barm rendal yialds o lor cagiial approceation of both, 18 dassiliod as an invesimant propay It also
indudes propartias that am being constricied or developed for future use as invastman! proparties.

Imvestment proparty compiisas land held undar governmsant wases and treated undar finance lease and bulldings held undar
finance laases.

An investmant proparty is measured initially al its cosl, incuding related FENSACHON CoslE.

After intial recognition, an imestmant propearty is carmed al fair value, representing cpen market value delenmined at each
reparting date, The carrying value of the imesiment proparty is reviewed every six months and is independenty valued by
exiormal valuer ol least annusally,

Any gain or loss arising on disposal of the investmani progaerty {calculated as the difference batween the disposal proceeds and
this carrying ameunl, meludng revaluation, of he &eset) ts recogrised in he consslidated ircaams alntarmant in the pared B which

thia imvesimant property s dsposed of
Changas in tnir vaduas al the imestmont propartios are recognisod in the consolidaled mooma statomont,

Subsequent capendiluing s capitalised 1o the assol’s casrying amount only whon i is probable that kiture sconomic bonefls
associalad with tha itam will low ko tha Group, and the cost of the ilem can be measured teliably. AR other repair and maintenance
costs mns axpomsed in the consolidated incoms statement during the periad in which they anm incumed.

110 Link Aol Estae kvosimonl Trsd
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Financial Statnmants | Netes to the Consolidated Finameial Siatemanta

3  Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
{¢) Praperty, Plant and Equipment

()

Property, plant and equipman. including right-of-use assets arising lrom proparty leased for own use, ane siated al historical cost
{or ceemed cosl ol the dale of change in use lor assals iranskrmod rom inestmen proparties) less accurmulaled depreciation
and accumulaled impairmeant losses. Histoneal cost includes expanditune that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the itams.
Subsoquent cosls ame includad in the asset’s camying amaunt of recognised 45 a sepambo assat, as appropriate, only whan i is
probabde that lutune economic beneliis associated with ihe fem will low 1o the Group and the cost ol the tem can be measuned
raliably. All olhar repair and maintenance costs am expensad in the consolidabed incomsa statemant during the pariod in which
Ihay A incudred.

Degpreciation of property. plant and equipmen is calculated wsing the strasght-line mathod 1o allocate cost less estmated residual
value less sccumlatod impoairmen losses ovor the astimated usalul lives as follows:

Land and building Loase terms

Leasehold improvaments Fiea years or lease terma (il apphcabla)
Equiprmeni Thiee to five years

Mator vahiclas Fiva yoars

An asset's restdual value and usetul lile are reviewed and adjusted, I appropriate, at each reporting date.

An assal's carrying amount i writhan down immediately 1o its ecowmble amount if the asset's carrying amosint & greater than s
eetimated recovarable amount, s an mpaimment kaes.

Gaing and losses on daposals ara determined by comparing the preceads with the carrying amounts and am recognised in the
consolidatad incoma stalamand,

Joint Arrangements

I stmienis in jain! armangements A classified as either joint opomiions of jinl venbires, The classilication deponds on the
contractual rights and cbligations of each imesiorn, rather than the legal struciure of ihe joint armangement. The Growp has both
joinl apeations and joinl vonlumss,

{i} Joint Operations
A pint cpamban is a joint arangemant which does not involve the establishmant of a sopamie entity. The Group's ntarest in
poinl aparation is accounted kar by wting propodionale consalidation. The Group combinas its shane ol tha joint cperaton’s
mdividual income and expenses, assels and liabilities and cash flows on a lina-by-lina basis with simédar ilems in the Group's
consolicaled linancial sixismanis.

(il) Joint Ventures

A jaint venture (s an arangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has righis io the net assets of the
arrangamen, rthar than nights 1o its assats and obligatians for ils abilites. Join control is the contractually agresd sharing
of gontral ol an armngement, which exists only when decisions aboul the mlean activites reguine unanimous consan of
tha parties sharing contral,

Interests in a joint veniure ame accounted for using the equity mathod. Inlenests in a joinl veanture ane initially recognised at
cost and adusted therealtar ko recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the Ivastaa in the
consolidated income stalemant and the Group's share of movemants in othes comprahensive incoma of the imasiea in other
comprehensive income. Dividends recealved or recaivable from ihe joint veniume am recognised as a reduction in the carrying
ameunt of thi invesimand,

Whero the Group's shane of lossas @ 8 joinl venture equals of excesds ts iniemsts in the joint venure, including any ather
unsecured moehables, the Group doas not mcognise furthar losses. unless it has incurmed obligations or made paymoents
an bihatl ol the joind wen b,

Unrealised gains on transactions babwesn the Group and thie jeir venture ae aliminaled (o ths exient of ths Group's
intaresis in the joint veniune, Unrealised losses an also eliminated urioss the imnsaction provides evidence of an
impatrmant of the assat transfemed. Accounting policies of tha join venture have bean chanped wham necassary 1o ensure
consistoncy with the policies ackoptd by the Group,

Tha carrying ameunt of th jain veniues are lesied o impaimmen whenewor evants or changes in dreumstancns indicaso
that the camying valus may not be recoverabla.
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Financil Stalomants | Metes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

3  Summary of Material Accounting Policies [Continued)

(g)

(h)

(i)

1]

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets at amortised cosl ame recognised nitially at fair value and subsequently measured st amorised cost, less
pravision larimpaimant, The Group holds cortain debl securities with the objective 1o collct the contractunl cish flows, which
reprecent solaly paymeonts of pancipal and inlerasts and tharelare measures them subsaquently &l amaontised cost using tha
wilective Inerest method. Regular way purchases of sales ol debl secuntios are recognisad and demeognised on & trde dat
basis,

Intenos! incoma from Bnancial assets atl amarisad cost is recognisad using the efactive inlerest me mathed. Financial asseds al
amortised cost A considarsd 1o be low dek, and thenslen the impalirment provision s debsrmined as 12 months expocied credn
losses which consider curont and fersand-leaking infarmation, Tha impaiman mathodology applied depands on whothar then
has baan & significant increase in credil isk.

In particular, the lofiowing infonmation is taken into account when assessing whather credit risk has increased significantly since
initinl mecognition;

= lshure o make peyrenis of pincipal or inenest en helr contraciually due dabes:

= anacual or expecied signilicant detnomiion in & debtor's eoemal eredil raiing (if availabla);

—  anactual or expecied signilicant detenicmEtion n the opamiing results of the debtor; and

—  exising or forecast changes m the technological, marked, ecanomic or legal environment that have & significant adverse
ofleal an the dobiors ability 15 moad s oblgation jo the Group,

Trade and Other Receivables

Trado and ather mcoivabiles ane recognisod iniially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision ar
Impairment. The Group holds the imde and othar mcelvablas with the objective io collact the contracisal cash flows and therelom
maasyres them subsoquantly al amartised cost using the oflectve intorest method. The Group appies the HEFRS 8 simplified
approach in assessing expactod crodit lossas which uses a lifetime expecied loss allowance for imde mcaivablos ofhar than
unbilied leass eeenables. The axpecied crad losses on tade recatvabips other than unisled lease recohmbles are caleulated
using a provision matrix whom a provision mie applies based on jis hisloncal observed dofaudl mtes adjusied by current and
forward-looking indarmation. Unbiled lease moahvables aise as a result of the speeading of the lease incantives such as rent-les
potiods provided o tenants, Unbillod lease mcevablos am oviewed by 1he Group for impairment in accardance with HICAS 36,
Cithar recoivablos am considenad 10 bo low nsk, and thenakam th mmgdaimmon] provision is delermined as 12 months oxpecisd
credit lossas which consider curment and lorward-looking informatan, The impalmment methodology appled depends on whathar
hizne has been & significant increase in credil nak.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalants include cash in hand, doposits hoid at call with banks, other shart-tarm highly liquid inve stmants with
onginal maturiies of three maonths or less and bank overdmits.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of B aogquisition over the kair value of the Growp's sham of the nel identihable assats

al tha acquired businass al the dale of acquisition, Goodwill on business combinations is slaled as a sepambe assel. Sepambaly

recognised goodwil iz msted anmually lor impairment and carmed &1 cost less securnulated impairment lesses. Impalrmient lossos
on goodwill am nol mvomed. Gains and lsses on the disposal of an entity indude the camying amaunt of goodwill mialing o tho
entity sold. Goodwill is allocated to cash-genarmting unis for the purpose of impairmant 1esting.
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3  Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

(k)

iy

Unitholders' Funds as a Financial Liability

In accomance with the Trust Deed, Link REIT iz required to distribute io Unithalders nod less than 80% of ihe Group's Total
Distributable Income for sach inencial yoar. The trust alsa has a limited lile of 80 yoars from tha date of establishmaont.
Accordingly, the unils contain contrachual cbligations of the trust ko pay bo s Unitholders cash distibutions and also upan
Ietmination af the trust, 4 share of &l not cash procseds dedyved from thi saks or realisation of the assets of the trust less any
liabiftias, in accordance with tair proportionate inlarests in the rust at the date of tha termination, Unitholdars' ands ane
Iherelone classified as & inancial ikabdcy mthar than equity in scoordance with HKAS 32: Financlal instruments: Presentation. This
liakwity is shown on the consolidatod statement of financial position as the nel assals atirbulabie to Unitholders. Distribulions fo
Unithaldars are recognised in the consobdaied income sistemant.

Leases

Loases ano recognised as a right-of-use assol and o cormepanding labsfity o tha dobo af which the laasod asset is available lar
usa by tha group, sxcept for short-tarm leases that have a lease lerm of 12 months or kess and leases of low-value assats, Assats
and liabilties anaing Trom a lease ane inialy measuned on a present value basis, Loase lishilites ane the net presant valoe of the
fixncd hnass payments discounted using tha mtamst mte implicit n the kase and subsequently stated at amonised cost,

Laase payments am allecatad batwaan prncipal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the consolidated incomea
statement over the laase pericd 50 a3 io produce a constant penodic rabe of interest on the remaining balance of tha lability for
wach patiod.

On the Group's consoldated sialarmant of financial position, fight-ol-usa assal has beon induded in propedty, planl and equipment
and |lease liabilities have been inchuded in accrsals.

{m) Current and Deferred Taxation

(ny

Thea tax expanse lor the year comprises curam and delemred tax, Tax is recagnized in the consolidated incoma stalament, excep!
10 tha extent tha il melates 1o items recogrised in olber comprohoensive incoma ar directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
meagnised in other comprehansive ncome or directly in squity, mepectivaly.

Tha current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the Iax laws snacted or substantively enacted at the meporling dale in
the counires where the Group's subsidianes opermie and generate taxable incomsa. Managemen! perodically evaluates positions
takon in tax mturns with respect 1o situstions in which applicable tax reguiatian is subjoct 1o imermprotation, | establishes provisions
whara agpropriate on the basks of mmounis expected o be paid o the tax authodibes.

Dedamad taxatian is provided in full, using the kability method, on temparary diflerences anising bawean the tax bases of assals
and liabilties snd thedr camying amaounts in the consalidabed financial siatements. Debermed axaton s determined wsing tax rabes
[and laws) that have been anacted or substantially enncled by the reparting date and am expecied 1o apply whan the miated
defamod lax asset is realised or the deberned tax kablity s settled.

Dedarrod tax assets am recognised 1o the extent that i s probabla tat future taxsble profit will be available sgainst which the
lamparary difiprences can be uliiised.

Dedarred taxation is provided on lamparary diffodencas arising from mestments in subsidinnes, axcep! whens the iming of the
reversal of the lemporary differences s controllad by the Groug and it s probable that the tempomry differences will not reversa in
tha loreseaable ubure,

Whan invasimant propaies and investmeani properties under devalopmant ane carded al lair valuo in sccaordancs with ths
accounting policy sat out in node 3{d), the amount of delemred tax recognised is maasumed using the tax mies tal would apply on
the sala of those assets a8 their carmying value at the end ol fhe reparting period unlass ihe property is depreciable and is held
within a business modal whose objsctive is to consuma substantially all af the economic benafits embodied in the proparty over
timix, eathar than thiough sale. In all other cases. the amount ol delemed tax recognised is measyured based an the expectad
manmie ol rmaksation or sellemant of the cemying amaunt of the rssels and Fabiitas, using tax mies enactod or substantively
enacted al the end of the reporing percd. Delemed tax assets and liabiltes are not dscounted.

Borrowings
Barrawings ans recognissd initlally at fnie value, net of fransaction costs incumed. Barowings are subssquantly staled at

amartsed cost: any diffierance batween the procesds (nat of mnsaction costs) and the redemption value is mcognised in the
consolidated incorme statamend over the pedod of the Instrurment using the aflectve inlerest mathod,
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3  Summary of Material Accounting Policies [Continued)
(o) Convertible Bonds

Convertibla bonds with corversion righl comprise a derhvabve component and & labilty compenent.

At initial recognition, the liabilty and dermvalive componants of the convertible bonds are measunad at kair vakie. Tmnsaction costs
rediafing 1o the issue of the converible bonds are allccated to the habiity and desvative companants in propoion to the allocation
ol prceads. The partion of the tmnsaction costs rlating 1o the liabdity component is moognised initially as part of the Eability
campangnt and the partan relalng 1o the derhathe component is recognised immedatsty in e consalidaled inooms statament.
The derivaive component |s subsequently remaasured at fair value, with changes in falr value recognised immediately in the

cansolidntod incoma statormant, Tha inbility componant is subsequenty measured at amortised cost. The inlars! oxpanse
recognised in the consalidated income statement on the lability componant i caloulaled using the effective inbarest method

E=

Revenue Recognition
{i) Rentals

In accordancs with HKFAS 16, operaling leass rental income Irom raiail propartes, oflice propenties. logistes proportas
and car park minted business is meognised on a straight-line basis awer tha tamm of the lease agreament. Contingant rental
incame (rmpresanling income aver and above base rent), such a3 Tummawer fenl, i recognised acconding o the lems of the
loaso agroomants whon the ameunt ean bo reliably mamsumed, in the acceunting poriad in which i is eamed Laaso
incantives provided, such as rent-iree penods, are amorised on a straight-ling basis and are mcognised as a reducton of
rarilal incoma ovar the mespectieva torm al the lbase.

In secordanca with HKFRS 16, car park renial incomo is recognised cvar fimo when the related services ar mndomd

(p

(i) Service Fees and Charges

In accordanca with HKFRS 15, senice lees and charges such as managamant lees and air conditioning sanvica laes ansing
from the provision of senvices are recognised ovar tima when such sernvices are rendered.

(i) Interest Income
Imlerast incoma is recognised on a ime-proporion basis using eflective intares! mathad.

The Group hes applied the practcal expadients in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the disclosure of revenue expeciad o
bo meognised in the hulun adsing fom cortain contracts with customars in existancs af the mparing date that ane billed based an
the parformance completed 1o date o have an oniginal expecied durmation of one year or less,

(qy Emplovees” Long-term [ncentive Scheme
Incantives in the farm ol a long-term incentive scheme are provided o efighée employees (including drectors).

Employee sanvices rendened in axchange for the gmnt of the long-1em incentive schame awards ane recognised 85 an cxpense,
with & carmspending incroase in tho Rabilty incured. This expanse is charged to tha consolidatid income statamant aver the
wasting periods. Lintil the lability is settied, the value of the liabilty is re-maasured at esch reporting dade and at the dale of
saffament, with any changes in value recognised in the consclidated incame stalement lor the year, Al each reportang dato,
estimales of the rumber of long-4erm ncantive schoma awards thal arm axpacted 1o st will be mevised and the impact of the
Fimidhon {8 recognised in the consslidated incoms statement. The carmying value of the long-tarm incentive schame awards =
mwiawed evary six months and is indopendently valsed by extemal valuar al lnast annually. Il the awards do not wast on tha
vsling dates, the amounis charged o the consolidated income statemant wil be willen back.

114 Link Aol Estae kwosimonl Trsd

325/470



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

Financial Statnmants | Netes to the Consolidated Finameial Siatemanta

3  Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
{r) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities
A darivative is nilially recognised at lair value on tha dale a derivative contract ks entared into and i subsequently re-measured al
s fair value, The method of moognising tha resudting gain or less depends on whathar the darvative is designaled as a hodging
instrumant, and il 50, the natere of the ilam being hedgad.
A1 tha incaplion of the hadging, the Group documanis the economic edaionship betwean hedging instrumanis and hadged ilems,
s widl as ils risk mansgement objscthve and sirlsgy lor undartaking s hedge Imnsactions.

{iy Cash Flow Hedge
Hadging relationships ano classified as cash Now hodges whan such relatisnships am used 1o hedge agains! mipodune 1o
warnability in cash fows that are atiributable o a particular sk assodated with & recognised asset or llability and such
variability could aflect prafid of lass.

The ehanges in ihe laif value of the eflective partion of darvatives thal are designed and quality &s cash lew hedpes ans
meognised in othar comgrmhensive incoma and dalemed in a cash flow hedging mserne. Tha gain or logs melatng to the
iniliscive porban & necognised immadalaly in the consolidated income statemant within linancs costs.

Amcunis accumulated in edgng resarves are iranslermed o the consolidated incoma siatemant in the parods when the
hedged fom atlects profil or leas. Howeear, whote the hedged item subsequently resulis in recognition of a non-fnanceal
asset of a non-linancial kability, the gains of lsses delered in cash flow hedging reserve are irmnalarmed from hedging
imservwe and indudad within the nitksl cost of the rssol or Eabdity.

Whien a hadging instrument axpines, of i sold o terminated, of when a hedge no langar meats the crifana lar hedge
accounting, any cumulative dolarred gain or loess and dedarmed costs of hedging in the cash llow hadging reserve a thal tmea
ramain n hedging resoom until the lomecas! arsacion occurs, meuling in meognition ol a non-financial ssesd such as
immntary. When the forecast transaction is no lonpar sxpectad o occur, the curulative gain or loss thal was reporied in
hiedging reserve is iImmedialely mcassilied 1o the consolidated income stabemant within linance cosls.

{il} Fair Value Hedge
Darivatives dasignated &= badging instruments io hedge the lalr value of recognised aesets or abililes may quakly as falr
wvaluo hedges,
Tha Group uses intans rmde swap conlracts o hedge il axposur o vakabiity in it valuos of meognised lnbilites against
changas in market interes! rates,
Tha Group Usas crss curmncy swap conlmcls fo hodge its sxposum to variability in Birwiue of eoognised foreign
currency labditios againal changes in largn curmancy exchange mies and marks imensst rates. The changes in lair values
of tha cross curmngy swap conbriscts am mcoognised directly n tha consoldated income statement within finance costs,
Changes in the faér valuas of these dervalive conlracts. logelher with tha changes in the fair valses of the hedgad liabiliies
afributable to the hedged risk are ecognised in the consolidated income statement as finance costs on bomowings. At the
sama tima, tha carmying amaounts of the hodgod linbifities in the consolidaled statemant of financial position an adusted lor
tha changes in fair values,

{ll) Met Invesimeni Hedge
Hadgos af nal Fvesiments in lomign opetations ame socourled lor srmilary to cash low hodges. Ary gain of loss on tha
hedging mstrument ralating o the eflecine portion of the hedge Is recognised n other comprehensive income and
aceumulated in reganaes in squity. The gain of loss relating o the inefiective partion s recognised immedalely in the
consolidyied mcoma statemant within finance costs,
Gains and lossos acoumulatod in equity are reclassified o the consolidated inoome stntemant when the lamign operation is
disposad of.

{iv) Derivatives That Not Designated for Hedge Accounting
Cartain dethaitive msiruments ane nol designaisd lor hsdgie accounting. Changes in thie talr value of amy dedvatie
imstrument thal ane nol designated lor hadge accounting is mcognised mmediataly in the consolidated incoma statemant
within inance costs,
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3  Summary of Material Accounting Policies [Continued)
ir} Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities (Contimed)

{v}] Hedge Effectivenass

Hadge eflectiveness is delermined af the incaplicn of the hadge relationship and at each reporting dale threugh prospective
oflpctiveness assassments basod on the three crilarda econamic mintonship bewean the hedged item and hedging
instrurmant, cradit risk and hedge milio.

For hedges of inlamst rabe nsk andior cumency nsk on cash flow hadges or fair vadue hedgas. the Group enfors nba interes
rabs swap contracts and cross currency swap coniracts that have similar eritical terms as the hodged ibam, such as nelerance
ratg, rasel dales, peyman| dales, maturities and nofional ameunt.

Hedge malleclivenass lor inlorest mie seap contracts and coss currency swap conimcls may cocur due 1o [i) the crodit
valua/debi value adusiman on the intarest mie swap conlmets and cross cumancy swap contracls which is nol mabched by
1ho borrowings, and (i) difldrencas in critical torms bobweon the inlenost mie swap contmcts and ooss curmency swap
contracts and borowings. Hedge ineffectivenass ks recognised in the consalidaled income stalement within linance costs.
The Group has elected 10 miclude changes in currency basis from hedging designation and recognise changes in cumency
basis in the cansclidatod incoma stalemant within finance costs.

For hedge of nel invastmens in famign cpemtions, the Group enlers into hedge relatonships whem the spot kamign
exchange rate axposure of the nominal amount exactly oflsel the fair value of net investment in lareign cutrency,
Ineflecivaness may ansa il the camying value of the designaled net inrvesiment declines below the notional amount of the
darivatives, or il thens are changas in the crodit sk of tha Group of the demative counterparty. The Group has slected 1o
exchude changes in forward slemant and curmency basis from its hedpe designations, which ane recognised in the
cohsolidated incoma statoment within finance costs.

(s} Borrowing Costs

(L)

Borrowing costs drectly altibutabla 1o the acquisition, constriction or production of qualifying assets, which ana assats that
necassarnily take a substanial penod of Gme o gel mady for thair inlondad use or sale, are addad to the cost of those kasets until
such tima &s the assels are subsiantally ready lor thed intended wse or sale. All oiher bomomwing costs ane recogrised in tha
congolidated income statemant in the paricd in which they ame incured,

Presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The Group has adopted the lquidity basis in the presentation ol the consolidated stasemant of financial position as i is considaned
1 be mona mdavant and meaningful o readers based on the Bming of their malisation or setllemaent of assots and Rabiliies as
justified by the markst situation.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The praparmtion of the conscldated financial stalements in conlomity with HKFRSs requires tha use of cantain critical accounting
aslimales. [t also mequires the Mansger 1o exarcise ils pdgement in the procoss of applying the Group's acoounting policiss.

Estimatis and judgemants ar confinually evaluated and am based on histordcal exparence and other factors, including expectations of
future events that aro balipwed 10 ba reasonablo undar the drumstances.

The Group makes eslimaies and assumplons canceming tha futum, The resuling accounling estimatas will, by dafinition, seldom
equal th relaied actual results. Thie estimales and assumptons that have a signilicant nsk ol causing a materal adjustment 1o the
carrying amounts of azsels and liablities within the naxt yoar am discussed balow.

{a) Investment Properties
Tha fair valua of each investmant praparty is ndradually datermined al aach reparting date by independen! valuer based on a
marust value assessmant. The valuars have relied on income capltalisation methed as the primany method to arme at the market
values ol aach mvestimant proparty and mada cross relerence o marke! comparables and in addition, lor ovesaas proparties
whare local valuation standards require, discouriad eashflow mathod. Details of he valuabon lechnigues and assumplions have
boen disclosed in Nota 14,

(b} Financial Instruments
In estimating the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses valuation lachniques such as dealar quates and discounied
cash flows. The Group also makes assumplions thal ane based on marel conditions exisiing a1 each reparting date.
Revenue
Aevanue recognized dunng (he year comprises:
2024 2023
HKS'M HKS'M
FAentnls
= Hang Kang retail and office proparties 6652 [ 8143
- Hong Hong car parks and related busmeass (Mot ()} 2470 2,305
~ Mainland China retad, ollices and logistics propenies 1.258 1,256
= Onvarsans retail and ofice propartas 1,343 ABT
Manageman leas and air conditioning senvica lees (Nole (§)) 1547 1367
Oithar reveonue (Note (5] 308 174
Tatal revenus 13,578 122534
Mchas

(1 Hong Kong oo parks and misted bosingss includes car park rendnl incoma of HKE2, 263 millios (2023: MIKS2, 188 milkon | which is recognined o lime
on o simight ling basis cvar the pevicd of services as the cusiomans smulanoously reosvwe and consuma the benslits provided by the Goup's
pordormance. Thone aro no separin porfonmance chigations idonified for S car park ental incoma,

W) Managemént loes and & condiioning sefvicn foos and offssl ieverus &t Roognised owel lime on @ dinight bes basis oved the panad of senices &
I L] Y necenm and MMIWNMGM\IMM

Loases with tenants provide lor monthly base rend and recovery of cenain ouipoings. Addiional rents based on businass fumaver
amunied io HKS180 million (2023; HES131 milkon) and hove bean includaed in the rental incoma.
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B Segment Information

Maknland
Homg Mamg ~ Hong Kong  China relall, Overseas
refail car parks oifice and retail
and affice  and relaied logistics and olfice
proparties business properiios propartes Taital
HES'M HKSM HES'M HES'M HKS'M
Far the year ended 31 March 2024
Reveruin T.ThZ 2482 1,572 172 13,578
Segmant resulls ETE3 1267 1,152 1,188 10,073
Chitnga in Eair vabsos of imestment proparties |%,138) E&3 [1.542) {1.363) (T 361)
Impairment of goodwill and propsty, plant and equipmans [234) [#3) {104) [81) (58]
Share of nat profits/{losses) of joint veniures - - 178 s {827}
Corporaty oxpenses (THE)
Irvinrest income 551
Finanes eosts (2.318)
Leoss on disposals of firancial assels at amorised cost 1%]
Lionss bueboars eanabon and eransactions with Unithoklers {815
Thoani [1,548)
Loss fer thee year, balons iransactions with Linithclders {2,463}
Acqasiton ol imiesimont propertios - = T4 = T4
Other capital addtions [0 5a 26 & 1 gz
Dapreciation (an) = 12 13y 155
As at 31 Barch 2024
Segmant assats 134,082 i7.614 5460 .47 30,503
Irlrasts in & point veniss - - - 2151 2151
Unaliocated corporate assels 5
Financisl assets sl amarised cost 569
Bank deposits 2813
Cagh nnd cash oquivaionts T84
Totad assals 53,314
Segmant linbilities 2,860 n 1,102 510 4,683
Unaliocated corporate labilities 556
Dalormed tax finkikios 392
Lang-tanm incentive schama prowision =
Othor liabiitios 3508
Bororwings: 55223
Comartible bonds 4,008
Demvative linancial instrumants. 1,010
Provision foe taxation 441
Totad iabidities, eoiuding net assets atinbutabls 1o Unitholdaes Taam2
Hon-controling inlorests (381}
Mot assats anrézablo 1o Uniholdors 178,823

For the year ended 31 March 2024, revenue of HES1,572 millicn (2023: HKS1,545 million) is attributable 1o exiemal custamerns irom
Mainland China, HKS10 264 milkon (2023: HKS10,041 million) is atinbutable io exiemal customerns lrem Hong Kang, and HES1,742
million (2023: HKS648 million) is attibutable 1o edemal cusiomers lrom overseas.

As at 31 March 2024, investment propertios, inferests in jainl ventures, property. plant and equipment, and goodwill smaunting o
HK535.242 million (2023: HK534,965 milian) ase located in Mainland Ghina, HES 181,145 milkon (2023 HKS185 210 milllon) are
Iocated in Hang Kong and HKS23, 124 million (2023; HKS2E.913 milion) are located in cvarsons.
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Mairlard
Hang Ksng  HongMong  China refall, Diverseas
retail car parks office and retndd
and office and relnted logistics mnd office
proporties busineas properties properties Todal
HES ™ HES'M HES'M HKSM HES'M
Far tha year endod 31 Manch 2023
Fievenus 7,540 240 1,545 (= L] 12234
Segmant rosults & Tan 1,02 1ot 284 9,158
Changs in fair values of invastmand proporties 5011 6.658 (1.581) {1} a6
I of property, plar and equipment . - - {50} (50
Shasro of nol prolitsYlosses) of joint ventures 158 (T3 s
Corponmbe axpenses (853
Irdestas! income 108
Fnance costs |1, 754)
Prolit bofore tcation and franssctions with Unithldors 16299
Taxathon 11.006)
Pradit for tha year. beforn ransactions with Unithalders: 15209
Actuistion of Fnedimenl propariies T68 - TE4 16,281 17,74
Acquisiion of a joinl veniure - - - 3,480 3,480
Cither capital additions £53 82 275 12 1,002
Depreciation 54} - i3 &l (62
As nt 31 March 2023
Segmant assols 138 558 46 854 31,550 22 840 240376
Inasrests in joint verttunes 3552 ang 6760
Unabccated comparaie assets 1,438
Financial assals at amaortised et 1,168
Bank deposas 5352
Cash and cash equialonts 13,067
Tolnl nssoln T
Segment lsbiities 2854 225 Tag 7 4425
Unalccated corpamie Eabities. T40
Dedamed tax liabiiiles 3330
Long-totm incentve schame provision 115
Cithar lnbdibies 4,164
Basrowings E0.750
Comertibia bonds 4,183
Duarivative inancial kvstruments e
Prenision lof Lalion 453
Toinl habdites, exchidng net asssts attibulable io Unitholders TE A5
Non-congrling nteresis 120
Mot assets afinbutabbs 1o Urtholden 168,940
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7 Property Operating Expenses

20024 2023
HES'M HEKSM
Properly managers’ kees, securily and deaning 922 TET
Stalf costs 648 e
Rapair and mainienanos az2a Frs ]
Lhiktias ara 3
Govarnmant nanl and miss 351 Ehli]
Promation and markeling eapenses 273 A
Estate commaon armda cosls 116 124
Foal esiale taxes and land use taxes 219 a2
Provision lor impainmant of irmde eoohables ] a7
Cither property operaling expensas. an 243
3,508 3038

8 Finance Costs
2004 2023
HES™M HES™
Intpfast expanses an bomowings (Nota (i) 1931 1,430
Inierest expenses on comvertible bonds (Nole 24) 187 o
Cither barrowing costs (Note (4] o] 18
2587 1638
Less: capitaiised undet invesiment propaertios (Nobs (i) {38} {21)
2488 1B16
Change in fair valuos of dorfvative component ol comartible bonds (Nate 24) [168) 22
Fair valua gain on non-controlling imenest put opton obligation (Mate 22) - {BE}
2319 1,764

Hiotos

i Inhenss! gaponses on bommwings ans sinled afuee Wking Nk aocouni gaind of loetes on dorfatioe finandal instnements dosiGraled o cash Now hodgos.

i Cihar Boetowing omls manly inciuds HKS 125 milion (2027 HES 104 milion) rbscns] sxponssd 10 A non-conirsiieg inlemesl, HEKS0 millicn {2023 HICER
o) Vi) ROpnGs i) i it veniuns, HIKS 157 milion ol losses (2023 HEKSA4 milion] on darvaihe Trancisl instrumants, HKE1D milion (2003
1] hadge inoflectivenass and varous Danking and Tinancing Changes.

{H] Intanest exponsaes which wr deacily atiriuistio 1o certain property wndar " AN psset arar In harm boan cag dl urdar
imsnatmond properties ol an ovemgo nberesd mio of 3.5% (2023; 3.00%) por anmam.
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(Loss)/Profit Before Taxation and Transactions with Unitholders
{Lass)ipendit belom taation and transactons with Lnitholders for the year is stated afar chamging/{creding):

2024 2023
HES'M HES'M
Stulf oot (Mote 10} 1,113 a20
Depreciation of propaerty, plant and equipment 84 it}
Trusioe's loa 18 17
Viduation oo 4 4
Auchiors remuna@Etion 3
Audd lees i 15
Audit-miatod AssURNCE Services 1 2
Crhers 4 2
Professicnal leas caplmlised - (]
Bank charges 10 1
Commission o property Aagents 16 15
Donations 7 18
Exchanga gain on financial instrumants (22} (4]
Shaort-tomm kaase expenges - 2
Othr legal and prolessional loes 38 27
Staff Costs
2024 2013
HES'M HEE'M
Salanes and banedis in kind 1,085 B25
Contributions 1o dalined sontribution plans (Moe (i} 53 43
Long-toam meantive schama awards 40 36
1187 1,004
Less: capitalised undar imesiment proparties (Mote (3)) (74) {B4)
Sialf costs (Mole &) 1413 20
Mctes:
i) Contrbutions o definad contriution plans (inckuding the Marcatcry Pervdent Furd in Hong Kang, empilcysa pension

=]
mumicipal poveimment in The Peopls's Aepublc of China, and Contril Provident Fund in Singapons) aid axpered o ncurved. & defined contrution
plan is A pangion plan under which e STpicyed pays Ted cortriutons inko & sepamis snaly, T Group Fad i furihel pyemien obigaisrs. under T
Ol Gaira oD (=arh DMa th (orirbnon s Py Dien pakl
H} Siall cosis which nne dnecily afinbulnbéo ia cerinin proparty oroes il mnd sl s haien B cog umndar b
propies
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11 Taxation

EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

Hang Kong profits tax has bean provided for &t the mite of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on he estimated assessable prafit for the year. Incoma
toees in Mainkand China and Ovarseas hive beon providod for at the applicable mie on the astimated assessabio profil lar the year,

Tha amaun of tnxason chamged io the consalidaled noome slalement Oprosons:

Current taxation

- Hang Kong

= Mainland Chinn

- Overseas

Dalarred taxation (Nole 20)

Taxalian

2024 2023
HES'M HKS'M
B9 B804
17e 136
5B 44
20 20
1,548 1008

The differences between the Group's axpecied tax change, wsing the Hong Kong prolits 1ax mie, and the Group's taxation for the year

wihe s Joliows;

(Loss)profit balore taxation and tansactions with Unitholders
Share of ned lesses{pohits) of joint veriums

Expiciod tax cabeulated a1 the Heng Kong profils tax mie of 18.5% (2023; 16,5%)
Tax aflect of diflerent lasation mtes

Tax efiect of non-deductible expansas

Taux aflect ol non-taxable income

Cvermprovisian in previous yaars

Lhiksation of pravieusly unrecognisad tax loss

Withholding th on unromilted earmings of subsidinnies

Taxalian

2024 2023
HKS'M HKS'M
(@15} 16,280
627 {85}
(288) 16214
(45) 2675
{127) {87)
2,018 576
(238} {2.021)
{i6z) {158)
(10 i)

52 4
1,548 1,008

Global minimum tax

In December 2021, the Orpanisaton for Economses Co-opamBon and Developeent ("OECD") released the Pillar Two modal niles

{the Glabal Anti-Base Emsion Proposal, of "GloBE rules”) for a new global minimum tnx relorm applicable o mullinational ememprise
growps with annual revenues of a1 least EURTS0 milion. The new Pilar two legislabions have been enacied m Australia and the Uinied
Kingdam and bocome alfiective Trom 1 January 2024 and 31 Decembar 2023 respectively (and applicable 1o the Group for tho yoar
anding 31 March 2025}, whila Hong Kong, Mainland China and Singapore have yet to inlreduce its deatt Pillar Two legislation for

implomentation,

The Group is closely menianng the prograss of the legislatve process in each jurisdichan and in the process ol Asteasing its 1ax
axpasurs, Link REIT, which is the Group's ulimale paent entity and a mal astate investment vehicle, is considared as an excheded
enlity dalined undar the GloBE rules, thenelore majodty of the Group shoukd be exempled from tha GloBE mles and the global minimum
tox. In mddition. the local stabutory tax rates of tax juirisdictions thal the Group has operations am equal o or above the 15% global
rarirum 1ax e, On this basis, the Group's tax exposure due 1o GloBE rules is not expacted to be materal.
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12 (Loss)Earnings Per Unit Based Upon (Loss)/Profit for the Year, Before Transactions with

Unitholders Attributable to Unitholders

2024 20X

{Loss)ipendit far the year, belom tmansactions with Unitholders atiributabis to

Unithalgars. tar calcutaling basic (loss)eamings par unit [HES1, 983 millian) HKS15.451 mllicn
Adjusimant for diutive convertible bonds - HESED million
{Loss)ipeofit far tha year, belom tmansactions with Unithoiders atinbutabia o

Unithaldard lor caleulabng diuted (oss)iaarnings par unit [HKS1 983 millian] HKE15531 mllion
Weighted avemga number of units for the year for cadoulaling basic

(loss)earnings pat unit 2,561,266,500 2,179,285, 281
Adpustmant far déutive comerible bonds - 63,740 26T
Walghted avesage number ol uhits lor the yoar lar caleulating diluted

(loss)aarnings par unil 2,561,266,560 2243 005578
Basie (lassleamings per uni (HK$Q.7T) HEST o
Dhluted {loss)anmings par wnit (HKS0,77) HESE 62

The comvertible bonds have an ant-diutive alfect on the bash: lss per unit for the year ended 31 March 2024 the diluted loss per unit

i aquivalnt 1o tho basic lass par unit

13 Goodwill
2024 23
HES'M HES'M
A1 1 Apil 387 400
Exchangs adusimants (1 (13}
Ierparrreri {arT} -
AL 31 March - AET

Duning tha yoar ended 31 March 2024, the Group has tested the impairment of goodwill based on cash low famocasts and impairment
Iosses of HEEITT million (2023: Nil) were chamged 1o the consalidated income siatemnant as & result of changes in the market

anwironman! and axpoctation of the underdying businesses.
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14 Investment Properties
(a) Details of the Movements of Investment Properties are as follows:

Complated Property under
propariies develaprment Tatal
HES'M HHES'M HES™
AL Apnl 2033 236,741 T8 237460
Exchange adjusimants (Note {a)} (2,238} 5 (2,235}
Acquisition ol assets (Nole 31) T4 - T4
Additions Bag 108 86
Change in fair values (T.328) 32) (7381}
A1 3 March 2024 235175 B 235,970
A1 Apil 2022 H2TE - 202781
Exchange adjustmonis (3,131) - [3.131)
Acguisiion of assets (Nole 31) 1T0ES TG 17
Adiditions 51 17 fEt]
Change in fair values B4z (55) B.aa7
Transder to property, plant and equipment (Note 16) [287) E= [267)
At 31 March 2023 236,741 [ 237 460

(by Valuation Process

The investment propariies (iIncluding qualfiod minarity-cened propartas) war revalued on a markat value basis as at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2024 by Cushman & Wakahald Limitad (the “Principal Valuer®), an independeni firm of prolessional quaified
waluers and the Principal Valuer of Link RETT,

The Manager hild discussions with the Prinapal Valeer and reviewsd all signicant inputs used by the Principal Valuor,
Discussions of tha valualion processes and msults &l each mparting date am hald bokwaan the Manager and the Principal Vialuer,

(c) Valuation Technigues
In vakiing the compleled properies, the Prncipal Vakier has prmarily esed income capitalisaion method (Tncome Capliatization
Method”) by capitalising the rontal income derved from the existing tenancies, i any, with dus provision lor the pelental
rwarsionany incoma of each constifuent portion of the propariias at appropriate capiialisation rabes. Adustments have been made
to allow lof oporation expanses, voids and outgoings ate.
The Principal Valuer has relod on Incoms Capialisalien Mathod as the primary method ta amne at the markoat valoes of the

imvastmant properties and made cross referance o market comparblas and in addition, kor cvenseas properties whare local
waluation standarnds require, decounied cashiow method.

In respect of the property which is under development. the Principal Valuer has valued it on the basis that it will be developsad
and complated in acoondance with the Managar's latest development proposals, The Principal Valuer hns assumed that approvals
for the proposals have bean or will ba obiained. In arriving at the opinion of vake, the Principal Valuer has adopted the residual
meihod and taken into consideralion the construction costs incurned and thal will be incurred bo complate the devalopment.

In assassing the developmant valua as i complated, the Principal Vialuer has used Incoma Capitalisation Maethod by capitalising
this markal rent al an approprate capitalisation mie.

The valuation methads are mepectivedy in line with market practics.
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14 Investment Properties (Continued)
() Valuation Techniques (continued)
Thea valuation lechniquas are summarsed in tha below table with significant unobsarvable inputs.

Relationship of significant

Significant unobservable inpuls unobservable inpits 1o fale valus
Incomse Caplialisation Method I Gagitalisation rale [Blended): The highar the capitalisaticn e, the
Comploted proparties 2. 26%, - B.50% kv the fir imlie.

(2023 2.98% - 6.007%)

i)y Mol passing incoma par anmim: Tha highar thi nal passing mooma, Hoe
HESAM - HKS58:3M highar thie fair value.
(2023 HKSIM ~ HKSES1M)

Reabdunl Method I Esumated gross developmeant The higher the estimated gross
Proparty under devalopmsn winlsie; HKST, T20M disvalopmant wikie, tha highar th lair
{2023 HES1.2410) valua.

iy Estmated development costs: Tha highar the estimated developmant
HESER5EM (2023 HKS661M) eos1s, the lewer The fair vadue,

Tha imarsiment propartas aro inciuded in Lovel 3 [2023: Level 3) of the far valse hiearchy,
Ther sansitiity of tha kair values of the complated proparas 1o changes in the significant unobsanablo inpuls ar as folows:

Capilalisation rale (Blended) Net passing income per annum

50 -5
Fairvalus  basis points  basis points +5%, Bt
HKS'M HKS™ HKS'M HKS'M HES'M
Incame Capitalisation Methed
Comgleled propertios
As a1 31 March 2024 235,175 (24,847} 3,478 10,582 [vi0,5046)
Az @ 31 March 2023 23740 (28712 34 302 11.057 L11.07Taj}

There wais no significant intor-rofationships betwoen significant unobsarvabll inputs that materally alfect lif valuas.

Annunl Report 20237004 125

336/470



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

Financil Stalomants | Metes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

14 Investment Properties (Continued)
(dy Restrictions under the REIT Code

Link REIT acquired a 48 9% inlerast in a rust which owns prime oflice propaerties in Ausimlia, a logistics property In Jiaxing, 50%
inlerats in three retal properies in Sydney, a parcol of commandal-uso land offl Anderson Rond lor developmaent, ta el
proparties [Jurong Point and Swing By @ Thomaon Plaza) in Singapore, logistcs propartes in Changshu South, Changshu North
and memalring 507 Inierest in Qibao Vanke Plaza in Shanghal, the comgpletions of which ware on 1 June 2022, 29 June 2002,

1 July 2022, 31 August 2022, 31 March 2023, 11 Apnl 2023, 12 May 2023 and 20 Febrsary 2024 respoctively, and tha
develapment of the parcel of commercial-uss land off Anderson Foad was not yel complated as &l 31 March 2024, In accondancs
with tha REIT Code, Link REIT is prohibited from dispasing of its properties (hald through a speciad purpose wehicle or joint
wesniure entity) lor a1 least two years from either the time such proparies are acquined or the dabes of e completion ol the
davelopmant of the propartias, unless the Unitholders approve the proposed disposal by way of a special resclution passed in
aocondanca with the Teust Daed.

(8) Exchange Adjustments
The nat exchange loss on imnslalion (s anRbutabie o the changs loss on the Groug's investment properties in Mainland Ching,
Australia and Singapomn amounting to HKS1A2T milion, HES194 million and HKS252 million, mspactivaly, and exchanga gain on
thie Group's imestrmant properties in the United Kingdom amouring 1o HKS34 million. These amounis are included in exchange
msene and wam partly ollsat by hedging financial instrumants.

([) Security for the Group's Loan Facilities

As al 31 March 2024, cartain of the Group's imasiment propartias in Mainland China, Australia and Singapons, amaunting to
approximalely HIKS9 858 million (2023: HKS5 414 millon), HKS2 772 millien (2023 HKE3, 484 million) and HKS13,468 millian
(2023 HKS13.630 millicn) respacively. wene pledged to secure the Group’s loan facliies totalling HKS0, 458 milion (2023:
HKE0, 802 millien).
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15 Interests in Joint Ventures

2024 03
HES'M HES'M
A Apil 6,768 ATEG
Exchange adjusiments @ (4ED
Acquisition of a jomt vantum {MNabe (i) - 3480
Sharo of net (lssas)profits [a27) B5
Dividend recaived {187} (B3]
Trensdor o ool of acquision of a subsdany (Mote (ij) {3.515) -
A1 31 Maroh 2,151 6,768
Rctas
7 On § Febnmey 2024, Link REIT, ferough o wholly-cwned subgiclany, enteend im0 an equily imnsies agroerrant [0 acquise tho nemadning 507 lsuod

o]

shary capital ol &RV :E MR SN al o cshc {bedons ¢ n ) of FIMER 384 millon (equiwlent o approximalely
HKE2 581 millior). uﬁnenmmmm-unmmh—m-uMmmme Upon
compistion, W G TS bocame an indiec] wholy-owned subssdinny of Link REIT, & i85 B G 98 R LS owns the Obao Yanko
Prara locahad ot 57 G, 620 Biock, Ciboo Town, Minhang District, Shanghal,

The moquisition has been nocounied for by the Group ns soquesition of asscls as the endity scquimd by B Group 9o nol contitate a buniness, as such,
I CRETyING AMORINT Of T pievicusly owned 505 indene sl wiks Raereinmisd 10 T Sosl O Bach BCOuUisBon of n8ess nnd labiltas: and was nol
remsaiunie] B P dale of scnuisition. Detail of he AogusRon i sel oul in Note 31,

O @ Fobnary 2022, Link RETT, Feough & wholly-owrsd subsicinny, enseded o an il Gk sgroemaen 1 acquing 48 97% ol fuly-paid ordinany unis. of
Ausiralia CMce Fund Imvestmant | Trast ab an adusted cash corsidemtion of ASE0S milion (squivalon! 10 approsmabely HIKS3 403 million), Link RETT
ncurmd nocuisBion-relted Eansaction costs of MKETT milkon. Austmin Ofice Furd vostmend | Trust owns inferesls in e prme oMo propartss
{colecivaly, the “¥E0 Poritfolio”) iocaled in coniral business disiricts in Sydnay and ktsbourns respaciively i Austmain. The tmnsaction wos comploiod
on 1 Jore 2002

Link REIT held the follawing joint venture &s at 31 Masch 2004

Place of Particulnrs of
establishment and issued share
kind of legal entity/ capitaliregistered
Hame pince ol operations Principal activities capital Interesl held
2024 2023
Australia Ofice Fund Australia, trustAusimia  Proporly holding ASEH2 609 827 48.9% 48.8%
Imenstment | Trast and leasing

Thie Group's inlerasts i & joind veniure amaunting o HKS2 151 milion as a1 31 March 2024 (2023 HKS6, 760 milion) an seccunied jor

ing tha equity mathad in the consalidated financial slalements. The Manager considers that the intemasts in tha joint venture am not

malenal ko the Group.
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16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Lend, bullding

and leasehald

Improvemaents Motor vehicles Equipmant Total

HESM HES'M HES'M HESM

At 1 Aprd 2023 1471 1 n 1,483
Exchange adjusimonts 'S = = 4
Adgditions 28 1 &5 a8
Depreciation charge for the year (56) - (38} {94)
Dispazad - - {7 {7}
Impairmant #1) - - (81}
A1 31 March 2024 1.266 2 118 1,383
A3 Mareh 2024
Cast 1677 L e 1,862
Accumulated depreciaticn and impainment {411} 4) (184) 157%)
Hat book value 1.266 2 118 1.383
ALY Aprill 2022 1,156 - a2 1248
Exchange adjusiments [5) - - (2]
Additons 47 1 28 7
Tranglor from imestmant propartios (Nole 14) 287 S - 8T
Depreciation charge for the year 121 B (3a) {24}
Impalrrent {5 - - {50}
AL 31 March 2023 1471 i o, 1,483
Al 31 March 2023
Cost 1646 7 222 1875
Accumulated deprecation and impairment [275) [8) {131} 41
Mal book valua 147 1 a1 1483

Inciuded in the land, building and leasehold imprevemants am the lollowing assels keased by the Group for own use:

2024 2023
HES'M HES'M
Properies lsasad lor own use 26 20
Additions b the right-ol-use assets ching thi yoar wens HKE12 million (2023: HKS19 millien),
Amount recognised in the conscidated income stalemean! dumng the year:
patet] H0E3
HEKSM HKS'M
Depraciation charga T d

The total cash outliow kor leases dunng the your wis HKSE million (2023 HKS3 million),
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17 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial azsets at amonised cost include the foBowing debt imvestmeanis:

2024 2033

HES'™ HES'M

Listed corporate bonds 566 1,158
Unlisted corporaie bonds B30 30
580 1. 168

A al 31 Minrch 2024, all the listed corpamto bonds: and all the unsied corpomte bands are denominated in Unitod Stales Dollars and
Hong Kong Dollars respectively (2023: sama).

During the year, tha Group has inleres! incoma ansing from financial assels at amortised cost amounting 10 HK$33 milion (2023
HES53 milkan). The carrying amounts o the lnancial assels Al amortised cost ane expected 1o be ecovensd &s below:

024 2023

HKS'M HES'M

Within cne year 559 54T
Alar ona yant - 23]
520 1,188

Subsequant o the yaar and and up to tha dale ol this repon, the Group has mceived the procesds from Ested corpormie bonds upan
maiurity amouried 1o HEKS300 million.

18 Trade and Other Receivables

pai- e

HES'M HES'M

Trvda recoivablas e ara
Loss: provision lor impairmand of tmda meceivablas (Lh] {104)
Trwda rocaivablas - nal 183 1o
Unibilled loase recalvables "7 BA3
Diber pecoivabiag 204 1270
1,104 2283

The camying amoiuants of thase meeivabies approoddmate their fair values and am expectad to be mosily recovamnd within one yaar,
Thina an: na spedlic credt larms givan 1o tha is, Imipai 550 of trada recetvablas arn sl oul in nabe 25{a)fE).

As at 31 Manch 2023, thir affiar recahvables inchided a depasi lar the acguisibon of nssels ol HKS 1,200 milkon which was mlunded and
received on 3 Apnl 2023,
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18 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Thei againg of frade recaivables, presented based on tha dua date, |5 as lollows:
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=30 diys

31-90 days
Oiver 90 days

2024 2023
HES'M HKS'M
135 120
46 51

BT 1a6
2m 278

Manthly rentals ape payable in advance by tonanis in acco rdance wilh the leases whils daldy gross necoipts rom car parks are recohoed
fram tha car park oparators in amears. included in the net trade recedvables of HKS 183 milkon [2023: HKS170 million) preseniad above
wane HKS 18 million (2023; HK$12 milion] of accrued car park incoma and HKS31 million (2023 HKS32 miion] of accnied turmnaws

rent, which were nol yat due as a1 31 March 2024.

Movemanis an the provision lor impairment of tmde ecehvablas are as Tollows:

AL Aprl

Provdision for mpaimment of irade recalvables
Recaivabins writion ofl dunng the year as uncollectibla
Exchange adjusiments

A131 Manch

24 2023
HES'™ HES'W
106 55

& a7
(22) (18)

{2} ()

ar 106

Thia creabon and release of provision lor impaimand of frade moevablas have been nduded in propardy cperaing oxpenses n tha
consohdaled income stalament. Ameunis charged to the provision acssun will be witlen off whin thar i& no axpectation o necoverng

addifional cash.

The athar classos of rocetmblos induded in the made and other recahables do nol conlain impaired assots since 1he expecied crodi

Inss of the othar receivables is minimal.

Thia maximum axposure 1o credit sk al the reporting date is the lals value of mde and oihar receivables.

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Cash at bank
Bank deposits with arginal maturity of less than three menths

Bank Deposits
Bank daposits with onginal maburity of mone than three months
hﬂnﬂdbﬂm

2024 2023
HKS'M HKS'M
2,445 2.485
4,735 11,502
T84 13,0687
2498 3201
315 151
2813 3,352

Tha resiricted bank deposils represent rental incomo eoeived from certain propartias and the usage of which is mstncled lar
sattlermant of proparty expensas, ntarest paymant and prncipal mpaymant of the coresponding secured bank bomowings.
Tha carrying amounis of cash and cash equivalenis and bank doposits ar axpoecied o be recovared within one year,
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20 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deleared taxation is calculated in bull on temporany dferences undar the labiliny mathod.
Analysis of nat defenmed tax liabilites as follows:

2024 2033
HES'™M HES'M
Droforred tax assets (#31) (244)
Dhederred tax Rabilites 4,157 3574
3.026 31330
Delerred tax asseis and babdies are cxpecied 1o be recoverable and sanied alter one yaar,
Thie movements in dalemed tax assels and kabdbbies during the year wens &5 lollows:
Inwesimant
properiios
revaluntion and
neceleraled
depreciation
Tax losses allowance Others Total
HKS'M HEE'M HEEM HEE'M
A1 1 April 2023 (2a4) 3418 156 3,330
Exchange adjusimenis - {18} (& (24}
Recognised in the consolidated Incoms
statament (Nowe 11) 13 556 61 20
A1 31 March 2024 {Z31) 3,958 199 3926
At 1 Apnl 2022 {188 3,32 154 3348
Exchange adjsiments - (28} {1} (f]
Aecognised in tho consolidated incoma
statament (Mol 11) [546) b 12 20
AL 31 March 2023 (244) 3418 156 3430

Az ai 31 Manch 2024, the Group has unrecognesad tax losses io be carred lorward against fubure taxable income amounting o
approcimalely HKS2 518 million (2023: HKKS1,128 millon), These tax losses have no expiry dales excopt lor the tax losses of HES323
million (2023: HKS236 milkon) which will expire at vanous dales up 1o five years from the year in which they amse.
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21 Long-term Incentive Scheme Provision
Thia mewament of long-1erm incentive schemsa provision during the yaar is as follows:

Fairl 2023

HES™™ HKS'M

AL 1 Aprd 115 163
Vested during the year 54 50
Lapsad during the year {5} {14}
Selthament {78) (T4}
At 31 March 1] 115

On 10 July 2017, Link REIT adogpted a naw long-tenm incentive schema (tha “2017 LTl Scheme®). Undar the 2017 LTI Schemsa, the
Managor may grant mstriciod unit seards and conditional cash awards to direcions of the Manasger and key employees of the Group,

During the yoar, cenain direciors and employees of the Manager were ganted msifcied unil awarnds and condtional cash avwards at nil
manatary considemtion undar the 2017 LT Schame, Tha rstricted unit awards granted undas the 2007 LTI Schoma, in ganaml. will
wasl appraximatsly two o thrss years from the date of geant. Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, units will be purchased in e gansas’ wour
from open stock market 10 satisfy mstricied unils awards vested, For those restricted unit awards granted with parormance goals, the
evantual numbar of units 1o be purchased in each grantea’s tavour upon vesting ame linked to the pedarmance of Link REIT based an

T hotal Unitholders rturn, nal properly mcaome or corlain vasting conditions, Condilional cash awards wem also grmnied in conunclion
with the restricted unit awards, besiowing upon each granies a condifonal right to recerve a cash payment represanting an amount
equivadent 1o thi aggmgate of the distibuticns dunng the vesting perad, catch-up adjustments and ex-grlia payrmants pursuant i the
2017 LTI schemea, if applicabile.

During tha year, tha Group purchased 1,463,632 unils (2023; 1,051 429 units) fram the marikal for estricted units awards which have
wagted in sccordancs with the 2017 LT Scherms.

[During the vasting parod, a kabdity 8 recognised rapresenting the estimated value of the awards granted wnder bath the 2017 LTI
Sehorma and the portion af the wosting panod cxpired as at the raparting dabe. Tha valwo of 1ho awards was estmatod ot tha reparting
daln by Towars Walson Heng Kong Limited, an indspandent axtemal valuer based on valuation techniques and assumptions on unit
prices, oustandng lngth of the awards, disiribution pay-oul mies and ather maskel conditions, i appropriate. The change in value of
tha oulstanding awands was chargad o the consalidated income stalemant. in the evenl that the westing condiions ana not mat, the
amount presiously acerued will be writien back accondngly.

The carrying amount of kong-term incentive schame provision & expecied 1o be setiled as below:

4 2023

HES'™M HKS'M

Witkiin ona yair 45 70
Alar o year 43 A5
aa 15
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22 Other Liabilities

2024 2023

HKS'M HEE'M

Amoun dus o a non-contralling ntares! 3,900 3,888
Amouant due o a joint veniune - 275
3,000 4,164

Mote: G 23 Fobruary 2015, T Group, through o non-wiily owred subscdiany (e Project Company”, in which Link REIT has an indirec! 50% inlonesi
and Non Fung Dewlopmaen Limited "Nan Fumng”) has an indinect #0% inlensst), scquined 77 Hol Bun Road in Kowioon East Ior commancial
deilopmanl. For the puipads of furding tha commisicial developmient, Nan Furg. & roo-ooritoling mbécest of e Project Company Fur contrituted
ey N proporicn ko e sharholding mik 1 o Peopct Compary. Tha amoauni dus 10 8 nen-conireling imems! 8 unsecunis, intemeal bearmg & an
arflpctr inlens] min of 3.5% @025 300, 8nd Nas nd o regaymant e, Such moun] ncheing ary Bccnssd nlanist will De nepad from B
Project Company's seplus cRsn aher meating its paymant cbigations.

Py i 10 Tha sh Nan Fung hars & right i exsecisa a puf oplion io requin Link RETT o purchasa all e issund shams Nan
mmnnmm-mmuwm altor the second anntvomsary of the issuance of e Corificale of Compilanos for the
oo cial proparty cevoiopment and cortain condilons hunm boen satsted. The nonscontroiling inlonest pul option obligation was necognised as.n
hrancial labity and d iy pefernncs ba & rmber of Inputs, g tha fakrwahia ol the oquiy inorests of he
mmummmmdmﬂwmmﬂﬂwmmﬂmm As ot X1 Maich 2024, e bar vakes of
nan-contmiing inhens pul opltion cbligation amounted 1o HCENE (2020 Ni). Falr vl of the put option obligation is incleced in Level 3 (208 Livel
T3 of i [ir viiu hissrche, I the eealimaec Sir viiue of the sguity inonesis of the Profect Compary al the time of eicis b highar, th tar ik of
Wi ] sl bligatnn Wbl il b Ngher,

The movement of non-contreling injerest put option oblgation duning the year is as Tollows:

2024 2023

HES'W HES'M

AL 1 Apil - BE
Ascognised in the consolidiated incoms staarmant:

— Fair value gain (Note 8) = iB6]

A1 31 March - -
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23 Borrowings
2004 2023
HEKS'™M HES'M
Unsacumd bank bomowings 23600 28,5687
Secured bank borowings 9,458 B.a92
Maedum lom nobes 23 165 2200
55,223 07560
Thia carrying ameunts of bormowings am sxpected fo be settiled as balow:
24 2023
HKE"M HKE'W
Duse in the first year
Unsacuned bank bomowings 1,082 4004
Secured bank boarowings o e
Madiim edm nobas B.785 -
T84T 4,133
D in the second yoar
Unsecured bank bomowings. Ta52 1.513
Secured bank barowings 1,761 18
Mardum b nalis 2192 4877
11,206 8,500
Doser i the thivd yeor
Unsecured bank bomowings. 11,185 5886
Secured bank boarowings 130 2478
Mardrum b nales 5873 2208
17288 10,673
Do in the fourth year
Unsecured bank bomowings. 4,071 8507
Secured bank barowings 309 128
Madum lem noles was 5956
537 1&.502
Dua in the fifth yoar
Unsscured bank bomowings - 10,647
Secured bank bomowings 6,657 284
Madium lamm noles - feel:}
6,657 11,8528
Due begond the fitth yoar
Secued bank barowings 5n 0, TE2
Madrim em notes 6,205 6252
6,736 12,014
55223 B0.750
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23 Borrowings (Continued)

[

1 Afor nkng inlo nooounk the CIOSS CUTONCY SWap conimacts, oxnopl ior bomowings of HS23 561 million {2023 HIKSS5 80T millon), HKSS 850 milion
(2027 HKET,BOS millior], HICS2 084 million (2023: HKEI 644 millon) ard HKS12 220 milkon (2023 HKE13, 115 millicn] which aro denominated n
Rsrsminbl, Austininn Dollars. Betish Pound Siaring and Singapore Dolan. resp by, il thas ol bomovengs am denominaled in Hong Kong Dollar.

(i) Aftor laking into aocount the CEs CUTENCY SWad coniracts and interest mle swap contmcts, an ol 3t March 2024, the Group has Teed mile borowings
ol HESIT.408 milion (2023: HICE0. 300 millon) anad Aoating mis bormwings of HIKEN 7,815 millon (2023 HKE21 360 millkos). the etectve inteles! mis
ol ihe bommwirgs which sie denominaiegd m Hong Kong Dollars &8 al 30 March 2004 was 3.96% (2023: 3.51%) ara Tt of e Botoawings which ame
danoiminatied in Rererinti, Australian Dolars, Britah Pounsd Stersing angd Girgagorn Doliars was 2.83% (2023 3 4%}, §.30% (2003 4.70%), 1.03%
(023 3.00°%] and 4.30% [R023: 4 43%) respeciivoly,

24 Convertible Bonds

On 3 Aprd 2019, ihe Group issued HKS4.0 billion corme rtinle bonds a1 1.60% par annum due 2024, Thess bonds am come mible nto
rivw Link AEIT wnits at an adusted comarsion price of HES$108.70 por unil al the option o the bondholder, Link REIT has the aplion io
redeem the bonds i the closing prce of the wnits s 130% or above the adusted conversion price while bondholdars have the right 1o
fequire Link AEIT 8o redoem all of soma only of the bonds on 3 Aprl 2022. On 4 Aprl 2022, the Group has, al the option ol the
bondholdars, redeemad and cancelled par of the bonds at an aggregate principal amount of HKS3.213 bdlion represanting
approsimatsly B0.3% ol tha initial principal amount of the bonds, togethar with intanes) secrund up 1o the date fived for redemption but
unpaid. On 3 April 2024, the Group has repald the memaining prinopal amount of the bonds, togethar with inlerest Becrsed upan
maruinity.

On 12 Decembar 2022, the Group Esued HKS3.3 bilicn comeiible bonds af 4.50% par annum dus 2027, Thesa bonds ane comedibie
iy rerw (Link REIT units atl an adusted conwrsion price of HKSSE.TT par unil at tha option of the bondholder, Link REET has tha option
1o redeam e bonds il the choaing price o the units is 130% or above the adjusted comversion price whils bondholda s have the right o
regquina Link REIT bo redeem all or soma only of the bonds on 12 December 2025

Thi corvariblea bonds aro unsecured, As al 31 March 2024, the ofloctiva intores! e of the comartibla bands was 4 58% (20023 4 88%5),

2024 2023
HES'M HEKS'M
Liability companent
ALl ﬂupﬂ 3921 2031
ssuance of corweriibla bonds - 3920
Finance costs (Note 8) 167 o
Intores pxpanses paid (155) imn)
RAedamplion - Ay
A1 31 March 3,960 aast
Derivative component
ALY Al 236 -
Issuance of convartible bonds - 214
Change in {air value (Nota 8) (169} 22
A3 March &7 238
4,036 4,163

Annunl Report 20257004 135

346/470



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

Financil Stalomants | Metes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

25 Derivative Financial Instruments

20a4 2023
HEKS'™M HES'M
Darivative assets
Designated &s cash Now hedge
= oross curency swap coniracls 25 278
= intmres! rade swap conimcts 263 E11
Designated as lair value hedps
= Cross cumrency swap conlracls 13 7
Dasignated &= nat investmant hadge
- G085 CUBnNCy SWAD contracts A3 176
= lorward lareign exchange contracts - £
Mot designated as hedging instrumanis
- larward loreign exchenge confracts 5 -
i1 BOG
Darivative linbilities
Dasignated as cash flow hedge
— inlBrest i swap contracts {107} (48]
Dasignaled as lair valuo hedge
~ CIOSS CUNTENCY BWAg Conlracts [BTE) (512}
— inleres! i swap conlracts (17} (18}
Dasignated s not invesimant hodgoe
= IS5 CUTTRNCY SWag contracs [206) [142)
- lapward Iorelgn exchange confracts {4) -
(1,010} {718
Mt dorivatie Jlisbililicshassels (pal] o0
Potirs.

i The tair vakoes. of financial instnaments thal ane rot rded in an actve mar! ane delérmined by using walsation lechniques. These valuabon techriques
manamise thi use of chsonmble marked data whone H is awailsblo and nely as iitle as possible on enlity spoeciic estmates. if all significant mpuls equined
I far valug an nstrument ane cbsonmbie, he nstrumant is induded in Livel 2 of S tir vidue hioraechy,

{8} Thae tsir vakses. of Cross currencoy swap conirscls and inbsrnst rate swap contmcts as caltulaled by mismnce 10 the presant valuos of T estimaled
Tuture cash ows. laking inlo nocount market cbsermble yiokd curves and lorwand oxchangs rrdes ot sach reporting date. The fair values of toremd
TN Echang CONTIACIS Aok SIbITTined (Rng vt Bxchangd manl s ol enc Mpering il Crosa Gumency SWilp conimets. inlaiss) mie
Wi ConiRc AN forward lenion enchange contracts A included in Level 2 (2027: Level ) of T Lair ivmlue Moy

Thia carrying amounts of nat dervairve (liabilities)/assels ae axpecied 1o be sattiad as below;

2024 2023

HKS'M HKS'M

Within one year a7 102
ARar one year [118) {12
() 20
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25 Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group's ovarall isk managemaent progeamms locuses on the unpredictabilitg of imancial markets and seeks to minimise polental
atvorse ofliscls on the Group's finencial porormance. The Group uses dobwalive financial instumonts such as cross currency swap
confracts, intaresi rie svap contracts and foreard foreign aschange contracts 1o manage financial risks.

As at 31 March 2024, the dervative financial instrumants qualitying as cash Bow bedges have, in eflect, provided the Group with an
avarage foed interes raie perod of 320 yoars on HKS21,727 million bomowings (2023: 3.34 yoars on HKS 16,958 million bomowings)
fram tha reporting date. Tha notional amount and the weighted memga fivad interest mte of the oulstanding darvative financial
instnamants as a1 31 March 2024 wens HKS21,727 million (2023 HKS 16,956 million] and 2 72% {2023: 1,83%) rspecthvely, Any
change in lair valuas of the eflecthe portion of the cash flow hadges in miation 1o dervative financial instruments is ecognised in tha
cash flow hedging resere, A nat amount of HIK3 183 million (2023; HKS1448 million credted) had been deblied 1o the cash flow hedging
e during the yoar as furthar 5ol oul in Note 28, and will be mleased o the consolidatod income stntemant whon e hedged
enpachad future cash llows atlect profit or loss.

Az at 31 March 2024, the darvative financial instrumants qualifying as fair value hadgas have. in eflect, comverted par of the Group
brrewings inle Heng Kong Dallars Tixed rale and Roating rales berrowings, Tha netianal amounts of the cutstanding darvative linancial
instraments quaditying as fair vadue hodges as al 31 March 2024 were HES12,831 million {2023: HKS12.831 mllion). Any change in ki
walias ol the lair valus hedges in relation 1o dermative fnancial insiramenis are moagnised disctly n the consoldaled ncome
siatamant.

As at 31 Manch 2024, the damative fnancial instremants qualifying as ned invesiment hedges have, in affect, commried part of the
Group's net investmant in foreign operations attrbuable to changes in the foreign currency spat rates respactively. The notianal
amaunts al the sutstanding dorhalive imancial instrumants qualitying as nel nvestmont hodgas as at 31 March 2024 was HICE22 852
million (2023 HKS$5,581 milkon). Ay gain or loss on tha hedging instrument relating o the eflactive portion of the hedge is recognised
in athor comprahonsive incoma and accumulated in mserves, A nol ameunl of HKS201 milkon (2023 HES242 milkon) had boan
creditad bo the exchange resene during ha year.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has cutstanding desivalive financial instrumants that ame not designated lor hedga acoounting and the
notional amounts were HES981 million (2023: Nil), Cenaln forward lorelgn exchange contracts weee enbored lor the purpose of locking
in the scchange mies for part of the Group's fulure nel incomae denaminated in lonign curmncies. Any change in it valees of thoe
financial Instramarnis that am no designated for hedge accountng ane recognised directly in the consolidated incomsa statament,

The Group's hadging msane disclosad in Note 28 miates 1o the fellowing hadging insinsmants:

Hedging instruments Cash Mow
dosignated an hedging
cash flow hedge reseroe
HEKS'M HES'M
At 1 Apnl 2023 550 550
Giain cn hadging instumen rmoognisad
i othar comprehansive income 252 252
Reclassiliod from other comprehensse Incoma 1o
consolidated incoma staternent (421} (#21)
A1 31 March 2024 am 381
A1 Apnl 2022 404 404
Gain on hedging nstrument recognsad
in athar comprehanshe noome ara 278
Reclazsiiod from ather comprehansive incoma o
consolidated income stasement (130) (130)
At 31 March 2023 550 550
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26 Trade Payables, Receipts in Advance and Accruals

2004 2023

HKS'M HKS'M

Trade payablas 0 121
Receipis in advance 502 44E
Accrued capital expenditune e BT
Accrued intarest Fic 165
Accnied transaction costs for fghts issue - 303
Lensa fabiities 29 22
Other accruals 1,361 1087
2970 3,024

The carrying amournis of these payablas approximabe thair far values and ane axpecied 1o be soitled as bobow,

2024 2023
HKS'M HKS'M
Within oni year 2951 008
Aher one year 18 15
2070 2024

Tha againg of Irade payables, presenied based on the due date, is as lllows:
2024 2023
HKS'M HKS'M
@ - 30 days 57 a2
31— 00 days L] 13
Chver 80 davys 24 28
o0 121

Manithly rentals and managemen lses are payablo in advance by tenanis in accordance with the leases and recognised in the moeipls

In advance, The Group nomaily defiver the serdces 1o satisty the perlarmance obligaton snd recognise the meceipts in advancs in he
consoldaled income slalamant as mvenue within ona year o less. The balances brought forward at the beginning of the year of
HKE446 millan (2023 HKE522 milion} were lully recognised as revenus In the consolidaied income siatement during the year.
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27 Units in Issue

024 a3

Number ol wnits Number ol units

A Apil #,/553, 845,061 2.110,193.850
Units bowght back for cancallation [24,014,500) {5, 704, 400
Urnils Esued wndor distnbuton mimaestment schoma 24 014 532 24,718,783
Units isswed undar nghls issus = 425 840,848
At31 March 2,553,845.113 2,553 B45.001

Pursuant o the genemal mandaie granbed o tha Managar by the Unitholders, the Manager (on behalf of Link REIT) bought back a tatal
ol 24,014,500 units (2023; 6,706,400 units) al an aggrogate price of HKSSA5 milicn (2023; HKS40T mllion), A unils bought back wono
camncellad daring the yaar.

Duiring the year ondad 31 March 2024, the Managar issued and allotted 24,014,522 units in lotal pursuant ¥ the dstribution
reirvesiment scherms in respact of the inledm distibubon lor the sk months endid 30 Seplembar 2023 and the linal distibutian for the
financial year endad 31 March 2023 (20623: 24,716,783 units in total pursumnt 1o the distribulion reinvestment schame in espect of the
intsrim efstribution far the six months ended 30 Sepbembar 2022 and the inal dstibution lor the nancial year snded 31 March 2022).

Pursuant o the offering circular for rghts isswe daled 7 March 2023, the Group has offered nil pald rights and rights units based on one
rights wnil lor avery five units bild by the Unithalders on & March 2023, Durng the year anded 31 March 2023, 425 540,844 nil paid
rights wera issued, and 425 840,848 rights unils ware issued and allotied undar the rights issue al the subscription price of HKS44 20
aach 1o 1he quaklying Unitholders with nil paid rghts whe subsorbed the ights issue on 29 March 2023 The aggrogate al the proctods
from rights issus of HKS 18,813 milkon, tha value ol nil paid Aghts issuad 1o Unithelders of HKS1,838 milion. and aftar netiing o the
transaction costs of HKE303 millicn, amounting o HKE20, 148 millish was recognisod as an incroaso in tha nel assals atidbutable o
Unitholders of Link REIT

Closing price of the units as al 31 Muoch 2024 was HES3265 (2023; HKES0 800 per unit. Basod on 2 553 845 113 units in issue as o
31 March 2024 (2023: 2 553,845,001 units), market capitalisation was HKS85 237 million (2023 HFﬂiE‘E.BEQHﬂ“Dﬂ:I.
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28 Unitholders’ Equity

Earmnings
Cash flow retnined for
hedging Exchange reserve
reserve s eve ndjustments Total
HES'M HES'M HES'M HES'™
Al 1 Aprl 2023 550 (1,237) 681 -
Cash flaw hadges:
~ Giain far the yoar 252 - - 252
= Amcun| Iranshermed 1o the consolidabed incoma
siaternant (Mot (i) {1} - = (421}
[185) - - [165)
Forsign curmncy transkations:
- Exchange loss on translation of financial
stitemans - 1,874) = (1.974)
= Change in fair valua of nat imestment hadges - 345 = 345
= {1,629) = [1.629)
Nat assats afirbutable to Unitholders:
~ Amount arising from reserse
mavements [MNote (i) — - 1,708 1,728
#1131 March 024 381 {2,860) 2470 =
ALY Aprl 2022 At 1,187 (1.571%) -
Cash fow hodges:
- Gain hor the year i} - - 276
= Amount transhemsd 1o the consalidated incoms
siaternent (MNode (il (13a) = = [130)
146 - - 146G
Foreign curnency trmnskations:
- Exchange loss on tanslation of financial
slifomants - {2,871 - (2871}
= Change in lair valua of nal imestment hedges. - 473 - 473
= {2,358) = (. 354)
ot assats abinbutabie to Unithalders:
~ Amount ansing from reserse
rmavamends (Nals (i) - - aa5a 2982
AL 31 March 2023 850 {1.231) a8
Mol
M Amours ERnsiered 10 T corsoianlpd ncome ST in rapect of cash Bow Nedges was inciuded in Finance cous” (Mo 5
i1 Tha smournt mop b aarmEgs Tor e yoar o offest the resere mosemanis.
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29 Financial Risk Management
{a) Financial Risk Factors

Tha Group's aciivities expose if io a variety of financial risks: market nsk (includng interest mile sk and curency risk), cradit risk

and liquidity risk.

Risk ranagemant i3 camed out by the Manager. The Group's overnd isk managomen! programme locuses on the unpredictabslity
of financial markats and seeks to minimize potantial adverse effects on tha Group's fnancial perdfarmance. The Group uses
darvative linancinl instruments such as inlenast b swsp conlFBels, Crocs cumency Swap contracts and lorsand lomeign exchange

contracts o manage finandcial risk.

(i) Market Risk
{A] Intorest Rate Risk

The Groug is expesed o interest mis risk through the impact of e changes in interest baaring liablities and assats,
Thix fisks can be separated imo cash flow mbarest rale rsk and lair vadue inlenos? rmbe sk

Cash flow interast mie Ask i the rek thal changes in market interes! raes will impact cash llows arsing rom vanable
i financial instnumenis. Barrowings at laatng mies themfor, axpesa the Group 1o cash flow interest mie sk The
Group manages (1% cash liew nterest raie sk by using loatng-to-fiaed cross cumency swag coniracls and inberas)
rl swap conrcts, Such coss cummency swap condracts and inlanst rbo swvap contracts have the economic ellect af
comering borrowings e linaling rabes 1o fixed mles.

Fair valua inlerest rate sk is the risk that the values of financial lisbilities will llecluate because of changas in market
intorast mbes. Th Group managas its it walue intorest rle dsk by aniodng ino interss! milo swap contmets which
have the economic affect of comverting bomowings from fced rates 1o floating rates.

Tho effecis of the cross curency swap contrcts and intems! mie swap conimets on the Group's inancial position and

pifarmancs ane as lollows:

Carrying amouni - assals. rnat
Holicnal amoun
Maturity date

Hedge rato

Change in lair value of ouistanding hedging instruments
sincg beginning of tha yaar

Change n value of hedgsd liem used bo debarmine
hadge alioctivanoss

Waighted average hedged rale for the year

2024 2023

HES'M HES'M

A4 B3y

2,162 17356

Cictober 2023 - Dciobor 2023 -
March 3030 Maich 2050

1 i

254 264

(254) (264)

2T2% 1.7

As @l 31 March 2024, il inlerest rates an faating rale inerast bearnng kabidtes nat of Neating rabe inlarest bearing
assels had bosn 100 basis paints higheolowsr with all other variables held conslant, profit for the year, balore
transactions with Unitholders, would have been HES 127 million (2023: HKS218 millian) lewarsgher, mainky as a reaull
of higharlowar intomest axpansa on floating mte barowings. As at 31 Manch 2024, il intermst mtos had baen 100 basis
paints highariowar, the hedgng resene would have been HKSE11 milllonHKS837 malien (2023: HKS489 million/
HE$512 million) higheriowsr mainly as a resull of an increase'decrease in the fair values of the cash flow hadges as

described above.
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Financil Stalomants | Metes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
[H:I ]:i.l'lill'lfi:ﬂ.l ]t'lsk E'-HL'IL'H.‘S. {Continud)
{i} Market Risk (Continued)
(B) Currency Risk
Currency nsk anses on account of monetary assats and labikses denominated In & curmancy that ks nat the luncthonal
EUMnNGY,
The Group has eartain |rvastments in Mainland China, Austelia, the Uniled Kingdom and Sngaparne, whase net
assats ame exposed 1o fonaign cumency tmnslation nsk, This gave rise to an aggregated unmealised loss af
approxemabely HKS1.974 million (2023: HKS2 871 millien) on ranslation af ihess opedmlions’ nel assels i the Group's

Haong Kong Dollar reparting curency, which is milecied as a movemant in msares undar tha heading of exchange
TESEME.

The Group finances cartain swvesiments in Mainland Ghana, Ausiralia, the United Kingdom and Singapore by bank
bormowings {alter taking inta accounts the cross curmoncy swap contracts and kareard loeign exchange contmcts)
denominated in Renminbi, Ausiralian Dollars, Britsh Pound Starding and Singapore Dollars espectivety, thamby
ostablshing & nalural hadge aganst the lenign aimency ek aisng from the acsets and labiiles denominaled in
respacitive local cumancies.

Tha Group has desgnated certain bank bormowings, cross curmency swag conbracls and'or lorward fomign exchange
conlracts as hedging instruments lor cerlan changes in the vakia of tha nel irvestments in Mainkand China, Ausirlia
and the United Kingdom aitributabila to changes in the HESRMB, HKS/AS and HKS'GEP spot mle, respactively

The hodges woene determined to be fully efiective as the carmying value ol the hedged ilom did not drop below the
naticnal amaunt ol the hedging ingtrument throwghout the hedging pariod.

Tha-carrying amounts of the bank berowings designated as hedging instrumaents as al 31 March 2004 was HKSE,383
million {2023 HKS4,600 million). The notional amounts of the cutsianding crss cumency swap coniracis and larwrd
faemign exchanga conlacts designatod as hedging instrumonts as at 31 March 2024 was HES22 008 million (2023
HiKS4, 148 milion} and HKS 754 million (2023: HKS1,433 milkon), mepectively. Any gain or loss on the hedging
matrumonts is recogrisod in other comprohensive incoma and accumuated in resenmes in equity. A ned amound af
HKS345 milion [2023: HKS473 millien] had been credited io the exchange resane during the year, as furthes sel cut in
Hate 28,

Managemanl considers that thare s no signilicam net curmency rsk sxposun with respect 1o Australian Dollars, British
Pound Starling and Singapore Dollars,

143 Link Aol Estae kwosimonl Trsd
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29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors icontinued)
{} Market Risk [Continued)
{B) Currency Risk (Continued)
The Groug has cartain medium ferm nates and linancial assets at amortised cost dencmnaled in United Siates
Dollars, The Group uses cross cummngy swip contmcts 1o hedge its expasund against changes in kmign axchangs
e and intorest mbe (il applicabla) on its medium tarm nodes,
As at 31 March 2024, the Hong Kong Dollars equivatent of United Siales Dollars medaim term notes stands at
HES 11,862 millian (2023: HKS11,850 milllen). The affects ol the cross curmency swap coniracts on the G roup's linancal
position and perormance are as follows:

2024 0
HES'M HES'M
Carrying amounl — liabilittes, net (683) |508)
Maticnal amoun 1241 12431
Maturity date Soptormber 2024 — Saplamber 2024 —
danusry 2052 January 2032
Hadge mtia 1:1 0
CGhange in fair value of oulstanding hedging instrumanis
sinco beginning of the yaar 73 (=74
Change in valuas of hedged ilem used o datarming
hacge alloctvaness B0 274
Wakghtod averagpo hedged rala for
outstanding hedging instrumants HEST.TT: U581 HKS7.77.US81
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29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a) Financial Risk Factors Continued)
{il) Credit Risk

Cradil risk arises from the polental failre of the Group's counberpaties 1o meet their obiigaticns undar financial confracts.
Tha Group is expased 1o credit risk on ils cash and cash equivalonts and doposils with banks and financial instiuticns,
linancind assets at amortised cos, dermvative fnancial instrumants as well as trade receivablas.
Cradil risk is managad on a group hasis. The Group manages ils daposits wilh banks and financial mstitutions by imiling tha
vl of daposiis 1o be placed with any counberparties. Deposits placed with any ndividual counlerparty cannod excead &
pre-dafined limil assigned to the individual countorparty. As at 31 March 2024, o bank deposits ware placed with financial
inatifitions with extamal credi eatings of na less than “BER".

For financial assets at amarisad cost, the Manager closefy monitars tha inancial parformance of the issuers and thedr cradit
ratings to ensune thal adoquate impairment lesses ane recognised lar irrecoverble dobits, As at 31 March 2024, most al the
linancisd assets Al amorised cost held hive exlarnal credst raings of no less than *“BEB-". In thés regard, 1ha Manager
considers that the Group's credit risk is ow.

For the Group’s fnancal assets moasuned al amonised costs ather than trade recetvabias, the impaiment proaion is
datermined as 12 months expactod credit losses,

In mespect of crodil euposures 1o enants, which indudes irade reconables and cortain lenan-rlaled other moanablos,
cradit risk axposuna is minimised by undertaking transactions with a large number ol counterparties and conducting credit
rovigws on prospective tanants, The Group also has polices in plico 1o ensurs thad rental security deposits or bank
guaranieas equivalent 1o 2 1o 3 manths rentals are required irom lenants prior o commancamant of leases. It also has othar
manilofng procodures i ensune thal lollow-up action is 1akon o ecover owardue debis, Accordingly, manageman
consicderad thal the expected credit loss on a collective basls is minimal. In genermal, a significant increase in credl sk is
prrasumad il & deblor k& past dus in making a conractual paymentrepayable demanded, and a delsuit on & fnancial assel s
whan the countarparty kails 1o make contrachual paymentsropayable demandod within 90 days whan they pas! due. The
managament regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each long cverdue tade recervabla on an individual basis
onsure that adequale provision for impairment lesses is made for polontially irecovorble amounts, which wses a llaima
expectad loss allowance for irade recalvables. The Group has also incarpomied lonward-looking information, which takes
itz accound the macroeconames factors in estimating the excpacted crodit liss, As af 31 March 2024, provision loe
impaimmant of HKSET million {2023 HKS106 million) was mada on cerain long owdus Imde mceivables. The Goup has no
signilicant concentrations af credit dak,

Ther eraimum exposuns o crodil sk ks represanied by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statemant of financial positon atier deducting Ay impainment allowance.
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29 Financial Risk Management [Continued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors icontinued)
{iiiy Liguidity Risk
Prudan liquidity risk management includas maintaining sutbcent cash and the avalabidity of funding from commitied credit
tacilities and oporating cash flow,
Thi Growp has cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits lass matfcted bank daposits of HKS9 682 millon (2022
HKS17,188 million) as at 31 March 2024 In addition 1o the cash rescurces, the Group has total avmilable borrowing faclities
amounting o HKS68 528 milkon (2023 HKS75,630 million), of which HKS80,048 million {2023: HK385,862 milicn} was.
dmwn as al 31 March 2024, The undrewn commifiod tacilities, in the form of bank loans, aled HKSE. 481 million (2023;
HKS0 968 millan) as af 31 March 2024

Thea tabda bedow analyses tha Group's financial labilites into relevant malurity greupings based an the remaining period from

tha reparting dato to the contmctual maturity dates. The amounts dsclosed in the lable are the expecied contraciual
undiscounted cash flows which compiise both intersst and principal cash lows,

Leas than Hetween Ceivwesn Onier
1 yoar 1 and 2 yoars 2 and 5 years 5 years
HES'M HKS™M HKS'M HES'M

At 31 March 2024
Trade peyables and aceruals 2,449 o 10 &
Darivative linandial instruments (nat selllod) B2 133 M 1M
Securnty doposis el 558 ™™ 121
Commriible bonds 42 148 3,560 -
Borowings BT 13,872 0,052 773
Amcunt dug fo @ non-controling interest 3,90 - - -
Unithoiders’ funds - - - 178823

Al 31 March 2023
Trada payables and accnaals 2,563 4 1 -
Darivative financial instruments (nat settled) 1 1686 26T 149
Security deposita 741 540 a8 158
Camartiio bonds 181 Bl 3709 =
Bonowngs 6,370 10,151 45975 7,356
Amount due 1o & nor-controling inteeest 1,863 - = =
Amount dun 16 o joint varium 11 awr - :
Unitholders” funds - - - 188,840

{b) Capital Management
Tha Group's objectives whan managing capital am 1o saleguard the Goup's abifity 1o contines as a going concem whilst seaking
I maximise banefits o Unitholdens. The Group has cortain borrowings subject to oan covananis. For bath 2024 and 2023, thane
i e nan-complianca with thesa laan eovananls,
The Group monitars capitnd on a regular basis, observes tha REIT Code’s maximum gaaring mbo of 50% [2023: 50%), This mtie
I8 calculated as total borowings (bomowings and comverible bonds) divided by tolal sssed vahee as shown in the consclidated
stalement of financial posison,

2024 2033

HES'M HES'M

Todnd borrowings 59,250 64,013
Tolal assat value 262,314 26T
Geanng rso 5% 24.2%
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29 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(c) FairValue Estimation

{i} FalrValue Hiararchy
HKFRS 13 requires disclosune of tair value measurement by thees levels of falr value measurement ararchy. The lollowing
lable prasants the Group’s assats and liabiditos hat ame mansured af far valuo:

Level 1@ Quobed prices (unadjusted] in active markets for dentical assets or abilities,

Level 2= Inputs olher than qualsd prices inchsded within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the assal or lability, edber directly
(that is, as pricas) or indirectly (thal is, damved bom prices).

Lovol 3 Inputs for the asso! or labilty thal am not based on observablo market data (that s, unobservabls inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HES'M HES'M HES'M HEKS'M
Al 31 March 2024
Azzoly
Irvastmant properties - - 2354978 235,879
Dierivaiive inanelal matruments - 239 - 938
Total assets - w39 23597 236,018
Liabifiteas.
Dwrivative hnancial natrments - 1,010 - 1,010
Todal kabdites - 1,010 - 1,000
AL31 March 2023
AL
Imiastmont propartics = - 2AT ALD 237 480
Dasisative financial instrumends - B - aoa
Tolal pssats - =r) 3T 46D 238,278
Liabifibas
Dt financial mstruments - Tig - ra k]
Total Kabdites - e - e

Thearo wade ne tranafars bofwoan this thioe levels during the year (2023: M),

The Group's paliey is 1 recognise ranshens inlo and oul of lair value hierarchy kels as of the date of the avent or change in
circumsiances thal caused the transfar.

{ii) FairValue Disclosura

Thea casrying values less impairment proisien ol rade recenvables and the camying valies of rade payables, accruals, bank
daposits, amouni due 1o a non-coniroling intoresi and borrowings thal am expectod 1o be recovedred of sellled within one
yEar e a ressenable approdmation of their [air values due to thelr shori-iemm maburities.

Thea fair values of amount due o a joint veniure, borrowings, linbilty component of convartible bonds and accnuals, thal ame
oapected 1o b seftied alter ong year anm based on mankel prices or e estmaled by using the expeated lulune payrmanls
discountad at markel interest ries.

1408 Link Roal Estee kwosimonl Trsd
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30 Mote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
{a) Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities

(b)

024 N3
Maba HKS'M HES'M
[Loss)prodit bodore laxation and lansactions with Unithaldars (@15} 18,200
Lang-tarm incentiva schame awarnds 49 30
Degpreciation chags 16 2] B4
Loss on disposal of preparty, plant and equipmeant 18 T -
Inimrest incoma (581} (106
Finance costs 2319 1,754
Lass on disposals of financinl assats al amortisad cost L]
Sham ol nat losses\profits) ol joint venures 627 (BS)
Exchange difference 14 41
Changa in kair values of inastmant proparties 7361 (2.367T)
Impairmant of geodwill and proporty, plant and eguipmant 458 50
Decraase in irade and other eceivablos, deposits and
propaymanis 3ar 45T
Increasa in restricied bank deposits (167) -
Decrease in irade payables, rmeeipls in advance and aceniabs (153 (478)
Increase in security depesils 30 13
Long-tarm incentive schema settled (T6) {74y
Ineoma tx paid (858) {BBE)
Nit cash gonerated (rom operating acthvitles 8481 76541

Major Non-cash Transactions

Dring the year, disiribulions amounting to HES966 million (2023: HEKS1.310 million) wara paid o Unitholdars in the form of

acchlionsl units under the distributon reirastmant sohanmie.
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30 Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Cantinued)
(c) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

Darivative
Corvertibile fnancial Ortkar
Borrowings beonds Accrnmls  instruments linbilities Total
HKSM HKS'M HESM HES'M HES'M HES'M
Asat 1 Apnil 2023 60,750 4,163 157 {90) 4,164 63,174
Changes from financing cash fows
Preseseds irom bormowings, net ol
Imrsaction costs 6322 - - - - 6322
Repayman| of bomowings 12,084} = = - = [12,084)
Advances from a non-controling
inborost - - - - 2 2
Internst sxpansas paid = (155) (2559} = [119) {2813
Setliement ol derfvatve linancial
instrumants - - - 510 = 510
Paymanis of lease kabditas - - (8} - - 18}
Total changes from lnancing activilies {5,782} [155) (2547} S {117} {@,071)
Man-cash changas
Acquitsition of & subsickary B5E - - - [250) 597
Additians lo peoperty, pland and
equipment - - 13 - - 13
Changes in tairvalues {8} (163 - (348 = {578}
Interos1 mpansis and othar
barowing costs T 147 2,588 - 134 29
Exchange adustmants and o [15.9] - - - (13 (Ga%)
Total non-cash changes 25 0 2554 {345 (138} 2374
A at 31 Masch 2024 55,223 4,006 EL H 3,800 47T

148 Link Roal Estee kvosimoni Trsd
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30 Mote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
() Reconciliation af Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities (Continued)

Derivative
Camerlible linancial Orhetet
Barmowings bonds Acenuals msbriments lobdlitiea Todal
HKS'M HES'M HES'M HES'M HES W HKS'M
As a1 Apeil 2022 45T14 4,011 135 15 3,048 Eaan
Changos Iram linancing cash Nows
Pmcaeds from comvartible bonds,
fiedl ol FENSSCHSN COE - 3,268 - - - 3289
Pmceeds from bomowings, nat of
IFANSACTan Costs 7162 - - - - 37182
Rademplion of comvartible bonds. - [3213) - L . a3y
Rapaymant ol bormowngs 21,058 - - - - (21,052
Achancis lrom & non-ooninalling
inlernsl - - 2 2
Achances rom a joind venbure - - - - b1 281
il piss! enprasngss paid - {81} {1,524) - (o) (713
Sattlenent of dommtive financeal
insirumenis = - = 130 = 130
Payments o kease Enbdtes - - (3 . - {3
Total changes Irom linarcing activies 18,137 25y {1,527) 130 =] 181
Ner-cash changes
Acrpusition of a subsidiary 181 - - = = 10
Addimions to proparty, plant and
equipment - - ] - - 18
Changes in ke values (28 = - {238 - (a8
Inlorest mpenses and cihar
bﬂ?ﬂﬂﬂgm BE 135 1,580 - o 1.508
[Exchange adjusiments and othars [1.003) = = : 7 [1.00%)
Total non-cash changos [1,109) 157 1,579 123583 20 420
As a1 31 March 2023 50,750 4,163 187 [Lov] 4,164 5,174
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31 Acquisition of Assets

On 12 May 2022, Link REIT, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, enened into equity transisr agresments to acquin the enie
registonnd capitals of 5R% R {9 B R R 2 B and % P 5 9 0 EE R R 2 B) at an adiustod cash consideration 1otaling
RAEB455 million {equivalent to approcmatedy HES513 million). Link REIT incurred acquisition-related transaction costs ol HKSS million
in tatal, The transactions ware complied on 11 April 2023 and 12 May 2003 respoctvoly, 58 0 08 (500 W8 7 02 S0 and =R
£ N T R D owm e logistics proporbies locatied al Mo, 11 Xingda Road, Bixi Streel. Changshu and No. 29 Xinggang Road,
Changshu Econamic and Technological Devalopment Zone, Changshu respectily.

As menticned in Nate 15, the Group scquired the remaining 50% equity imenasts in 5 5 0 09802 E on 20 February 2024
ard it bacame a wholly-cened subsidiary of the Goup,

Tha abaye acquisitions tor tha yoar have boeen accounied far by the Group as acquisitons of assots as tho entities acquired by the
Giroup do not constinge a uenass.

The assels and liabiditas arising from the acquisitions are as follows:

Logistics Cikao

properies Vanke Plaza Talnd

HKE™ HES'M HKS'™

Iveastmant propariies (N 14) 523 B501 EARL]

Cagh aind carsh oquivalonts L] 17 118

Oihir aessals 3 ar 50

Amounts due frem sharehaldars - 522 B2
Bomowings: = (B5E) (56}
Securty deposits %) (142) (148}
Oittve Hiabiihes (11) {158) (168}

Purchase conskdaraton 518 Bl 6,629

Carrying amaunt of ®io squty inlerosts previously

hepécd by thar Giroup {Noto 15) = R515) [3.515)
Caonsideraton payables and retantion amounts [T} (261) {331}
Cash and cash squivalonts secgirod ] {107y [

Cash outficw onh Roquision 5] 21228 2567
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31 Acquisition of Assets (Continued)
Forthe year ended 31 March 2023, the Group acquired the lallowing assats:

On 5 Novembear 2021, Link REIT, through lis whally-owned subsidanies, entered into contracts of sale, to acquine 507% inlerests in
frachold and leasehold interests in thaeo mtail propories in Sydnay (namoly Quoen Vicloria Building ("GQVE"), The Galaries and Tha
Sirand Arcade) at an aggregata cash consideration of approximately AS538 million (equivalant lo appeoxemately HES2.877 million], Link
REIT incurmed soquisiion-rlabed imnsacton cosis of HKS177 milon. The transactions wa e complsted on 1 July 2022, Link REIT
bacomas 50 tanant in comman in VB, The Galenas and The Siand Arcade. QVB, The Galaries and The Strand Arcade am lecated
al 428-481, 500 and 412-414A George Stresl, Sydnay New South Wales 2000, respectvely.

On 12 May 2022, Link REIT, through & whally-owned subsidiary, entared nbo an equity transler agreament 10 acouire the entire
mogistared cagital of I %S 9 6T 2T ot the final considomtion of RMB4ST million (squivalent to approximately HKSSE2
millian). Link REIT incurmed scquisiton-related transacton costs of HKS4 millon in 1otal. The ransacton was completed on 20 Juna
2062, T 2 58 7% 0 0 P 0 L 2 ] wims the logistics proparty locased at Mo. 664 Shang'an Road, Xiughou District, Jinng.

On 31 Augusst 2022, Link REIT, through a wholly-caned subsiciary, acquised a parcel of land by 8 suecessiul endar with & land
pramium of HKS766 million. The land is al Lot Na. 1078 in Survay District Na. 3, located off Anderson Road, Keun Tong, Kowioon, Hong
Fang Link REIT inmtends o dovalop the land into & non-olfice commancal development with car parks.

On 28 Decerbar 2022, Link REIT, through iis wholly-owned subsidanos, enbered inta 1) sale apd purchase agesments io acquine 225
sirata lols (which ropresant 94.68% sham value) and 342 simta lots (which represent 100% shana value) in Jurong Point 1 and Jurong
Foint 2 respectively (colectvely. the “Jureng Peint®), and 9 strata lols (which represent 55.741% share value} in Thomsan Plaza (the
“Bwing By @ Thomson Plaza™), 2] sham purchase agreomants o acquin the antin issusd shares of SMCP Pa, Lid., and 3)
ecliesivity agreamsant bo acquine the entie |ssued shares of Thamson Plaza (Pevate) Limited. The aggegate cash considemtion was
apprommately SGOR2, 122 million (equivalent to approximalaly HES12 555 million), and Link REIT incumed acquisition-rkaied
transaction costs ol HES420 million in total. Tha transactions were compleled on 31 March 2023, Jurang Point 1, Jurong Point 2 and
Themmison Plaza ane located ol 1 Jurang 'Wes! Conlral 2, Singapora G48886, 63 Jurong Wes! Caoniral 3, Singapom 548331 and 301
Uppar Thomson Road, Thomsan Plaza, Singapore 574408, mepactivaly.

The above acquisitions hove been accounted for by the Group as acquisitons of assets as the entifes acquined by the Group do nat
constiiule & business.
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31 Acquisition of Assets (Continued)
The assals and liabilitas arising from the acquisitions during the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follaws:

Jurmng
50% inberests A parcel al Point and
iin three retail commercial-use  Swing By @
properiies A loglatics land off Thameon
in Bydney property  Andessan Road Plaza Total
HESM GLER HES™ HEE™M HKS™
Inestman proparties (Mot 14) 3,084 T4 188 13,207 17,781
Cash and cash equivalants - 0 - 1 "
Ottt Assals - 3 - § (]
Bairowings . (et ] {1a1)
Securily deposils - - - Z21) {221)
Othr linhiitias - - - [18p (18]
Purchase considaraton 1,054 ARG TBE 12,878 17,382
Cash and cash equivalants acquirod - (10§ i (1j
Cash oulflow of poqUESonS 2,054 574 TEE 12875 17.31
32 Capital Commitments
2024 2023
HES™™ HES™
Canirncled but nol provided lor al the and of the year;
Capital axpanditure of imsstimaent proparties TE v
Acouisition of subsidianas. - 523
Ti8 1395

Sharn of capital commitmaonis of thi jainl veniunes al the and of the year:
Coniracted but nof provided lor 1
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances

Infarmatian required o be disclosed concaming relaled party transactions (8 set out in this note urdess disclosed edsewhare in these
consolidated financial statoments,

(a) MNature of Relationship with Connected/Related Parties

Tha takle sed forth below summarnises tha names of the connected'related parties, as definad in the REIT Coda™HEAS 24
[Finised) “Fetated Party Disclosures®, and the nature ol tholr relatonship with the Group as a1 31 March 2024

Connecledirelated party Relationship with the Group

HSBG Institutional Trust Sarvices (Asia] Limied (the “Trustes") The Trustee of Link REIT

The Hangiong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Limited and its Associates' af he Trusies
subsidaries (excluding the Tnistes and its propriatary subsidiaries) (1he *HSB.C Group®)

Asdas Limited and Asdas Beljing Limiled Associates’ of drecior

*  “Agsocits” has the meaning ascribed o 0 under the REIT Code and is considaned as o conneched party,

{b) Significant Transactions with Connected/Related Parties
The kllewing significant transactions mecognised undar HEFRSs wons caried ol with connected alaled parties:

2024 03
HKS'M HES'M
Trusioa's loe paid end payable o te Trosees (Note (i) (19) (17
Transactions with the HSBC Group (Nates [iil) and (ivi)
Inerast axpensa and various financing chamges to the HSBC Group on
bammwings, corvertibls bords and dervative inanclal inatniments (58] (B4
Transaclion casts kor rights issuo to HEBC Group - {171}
Transaction costs kor units buy back o HSBC Group 1] -
Rental income fom the HEBC Group on leasing of netall wits 36 38
Iverest mcome from the HSBC Group on bank depasits n o4
Archiieciuralirenovation consultancy servces lees pad and payable 1o
Asdns Limited and Aodas Baijing Limitod (Notes (i) and [vi} o (7
Inimrest expansa io a pint ventue (Nole [§)) 4] )
Noies:
(i} Al conesctindirelabid DAty FEHACtcrn ware CAred oulin scoiancg With 1 ems ol thin eHaEnE BRfeerments Qovrning B Mmnstions and
i i eeiinaiey course of busingdh

i) The Trusses is eeritind o recohvn an annual Musies’s fee (caloudalod and pakd monthiy) al mies mngng ram 0,006% por annum 10 0L015% par
nnum {2023 maging trom 0006 por annum i 0055 per annumy of I Rins proparty vk & dolarmined 0 th atest annual vwluron
impor of fn independent ¢ y vl i oy thes e and appointed by the Trusbes: for and on behall of Link REIT from time 1o
fnay, subsject 108 minimurm of HECS150,000 per manth.

(i} Tha Insrsacions wins entesad ol arm's length on normal commancial lanms sed in osmpiancs with Link REIT s procuramant policy.

) HESEG Group and th Trusies ore memben of the same group and HSBC Geoup s consalined & rslaled party o The Geoup

(vh Adcti Limitedt aned Anciag Bijirg Limiled am aascciatis of Mr lan Kaith GRIFFITHS,
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)
(€) Significant Balances with Related Parties
Sigrifficint balancos with nalsted parties are st cut bolow:

2024 2023
HES™ HKSM
Trustes's loe payable o the Trisies i) {1}
Bosrowings with the HSBC Group [1.084) [1.600)
Mt interest recalvable from(payabie 10} the HSBG Group 3 {10)
Socurity depasits Irom the HSBGC Group 13 (3]
Transacion costs lor rights issue payable o HSBC Group - 17}
Derivative financial insiremants with the HSBC Group 118 73
Deposits placed with the HSBC Group 3,788 6,086
Architectural mnovalion consullancy services lees payable 1o
Aadas Limited and Asdas Beffing Limied - {1
Amaunt dus 1o a joind ventume - |275)

(d) Key Management Compensation
As a1 31 March 2024, koy management comprsed two Exscutive Dirsclars, ning Nan-Executive Dueciars and 15 senkor
managemean staf (2023; two Executive Diractors, 10 Non-Executive Direciors and 12 senior managemant stalf). Further datails of
thiz rermuneeation of e Deectors on & named basis am discosed in highlighted sections ol the Corporate Govemance Report

with a heading of "Audited” on pages 20, 30 and 32. Thosa sections lorm the “Audited” part of the Corpomle Governance Repor
and are part of the financial sEtements.

The aggregate amounts o emolumants of the key managemant stalf of the Growp for the year arm as follows:

24 2023

HES'M HES™

Feas 10 1]
Blasic salaries, alkowances and other banefits 176 167
Long-temn ncentive schemea svards 38 20
a2 186

154  Link Anal Eates brvwosimon Tt
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
[Continued)
{d) Key Management Compensation (Continuaed)

Thir amounts reflectoed in the amalumant bands bolaw an (hasa in the inancial stalements wder HKFRSS in the yoar 20332084,
and inchde shart tarm remunamtion paid in cash and portion of the long-term incentive scheme recognisad [although & partion of
which has not boon vested) in the yeor 20222024 altibutable o the Executive Dinectars and sonior managemant.

2024 2023

Numbaer of Number ol
Emelumen! bands (Note (1)) Individunis Imditviduals
HKS1,000,001 — HKS3,000,000 4
HES3,000,001 — HESS5, 000,000 - 2
HESS, 000,001 - HKET, 000,000 5 &
HEST, 000,001 - HKS9, 000,000 4 2
HES10,000,001 — HKS 10,500,000 1 -
HES10,500,001 ~ HKS1 1,000,000 - 2
HES1 1,500,001 = HES 12,000,000 1 =
HKS 15,000,001 — HKS 15,500,000 1 -
HES16 500,001 = HEKS1 7 000,000 - 1
HESAT.000,001 — HES1 7,500,000 1 =
HES 18,000,001 — HKS 18,500,000 - 1
HES20,000,001 - HKS20,500,000 - -
HES22 500,001 — HES23 000,000 3 s =
HESE2 000,001 — HKS52 500,000 - i
HESE0,000,001 — HKSSE 500,000 -
Totad numbser ol Exocuthve Directors and sonior managermant (Mote (il)) 18 15
Motaa:

M The caiculasen of the ol mmunarasen for the smolumant Dands S Dased on T vk of 5 NG INContie awieds reogrised during thi
wour nd S shoel 1orm mmunomiion pakd @ moogrised during th yese

(i Emclumanis paid and moogresed dar tha Emoulive Dimcions, Mr Goorgo Kok Lung HONGCHOY™ and Mr Kok Siong NG*. Detnils an sel oul in
hir “Aemunarason Awarmed o Exsculhn [inecion”™ section on pogos 23 1o 30, The nespectiv emokamonts includa thi porion of e lang-teem
inconlim schama recognised kae o year, which B doelale oo sef ool in tha "Long-leim incontia Scieme” section on pages B0 1o 62 The
imrmaining s e paid shor-lerm remunemtion.

(I dnechuchdd cna. netingd anc o resigned (003 one REskgnd) senicn MAnBgemMont sEtlsimambers
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)

(d) Key Management Compensation (Contimed)
Thie five highest paid individuals far the yoor incloda b (202 3; (wo) dinsclors whoso amoluments an mllectad in tha abova
emalumant bands. Tha emaluments pakd and meognised 1o the remaining three (2023: thres) indniduals during the year are as

Tellaws:
2024 2023
HEEM HESM
Baske salaries, alher allswances and banedits in kind 12 4
Discraticnary beaus 28 20
Long-werm ncanifve schama awards & a
a4 46

34 Future Minimum Rental Receivables

As at 31 March 2024, the analysis of the Group's aggregate future minimum rental income recelvablas undar non-cancellabla opermting
lansos is as bollows:

2024 2023

HEE'M HES™W

Within one year TH24 1.7M86
Botwoan ann and five yoars 10,565 0720
Boyord five years 1,043 1. 580
19,532 20,004

Mast of the operaing leases are on foced terms and for terms of three years (2023: theee years).

158 Link Anal Eatade bvwaaimon Trmd

367/470



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

Financial Statnmants | Netes to the Consolidated Finameial Siatemanta

35 Principal Subsidiaries
Link REIT haid the following principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars of
Issied share
Place of establistiment and kind of capitaliregistersd
e legal entity/place of operations Principal activities capital Imlerest held
rieri Firesd
Manages and ils subsidianes
*Link Assal Managemeant Limitad Hong Keng, lmied bty company!  Investman| managamant HIE52, 000,000 100% 100%
Hang Korg
Liri A ssel Mansgasnent [Australa) Ausiralia, limiied kahdey company/ Cerporain managisnent AS450 001 100% 1%
Pry Lid Susiralia service
Livk Assel Managerant (Recwoed)  Bingapors, bmiled Rabiley company' Assal managoment =3 100% 100
Private Limiod Sirgapons
Link Assol Management (Singapora)  Singapore, imited flakibty comparmy! HAssal managoment (fio1] 100% 100%
P i 5
Link Propaerty Management Serdces  Hong Kong. limited Ratslity company!  Propserty managamant HES1,000,000 100% 1129
Limitad Huang Kong
Lini [P Lirmited Fiong Kong, limited Rebilty compary!  Trademark halding HKS1 100% MR
Hang Kong
Link Proporsy Management (Rodwood)  Sngapore, imiled Rabiby company!  Property managaman uss 100% i1
Prrvatis Liestod Srgapors
L LL S (- g Pecphe's Republc o China, imited Corpomin management RMBS 000,000 100% 104
labiity companyPoople’s Republical  sorvice
China
LicriRock Rieal Estate Partners Limiled  Biritesh Virgin Eslancs, Emited liabikty Invessimen! mamagamanl uss 100% L1
companyHang Kong

Annunl Report 20253004 16T
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35 Principal Subsidiaries [Continued)

Particulams of
saued share
Place of estsblishment and kind cf caplialiregistoned
Hame legal enlityiplace of cperations Principal activitles cageial Inlereut haid
24 2
Link REIT parifola
Tk Link Hoddings Umited {nama bor  Cayrmas lslaeeds, Emied kabiity Trrepstrant hokdng uss 1005 1005
carying business in Hong Koeg: ik compamyiHiong Hong
{SPY) Haoldings Limied)
A Lnader Devalopments Limited Biritish Virgin Islands, mited Rabdiy Propety holding and UESETa 207 1005 0o
companySngaponm asing
HAford Limiled Horg Kong, mited Eabdey compary/  Inwnstment holding HX§160,539 360 1000, 100%
Heorg Kang
Alperton Ginbal {HK) Limited Hoeg Kong. leniled kabiity compary’  invasimant holding HK&1 [ 100%
Herg Kong
Apalo Luck Liriad British Viegn talands, imbod Rebdty  Prapity holding s (23] 1005 100%
compatyHong Kong leasing
Atlarte Basl Limitod Hiorg Kong, femilod kabliey company/ imestmant holding HKS2 100, 100%
Herg Korg
FEANFE () ARLE Poopio’s Republic of China, limitod PProgenty holding and UISE3%,500,000 100 00
u;'lﬂrmnp%'iﬂmﬂtd hasng
ENCHNRESEER Poopla's Rapublie of China, lmitad PPropeety holding and US5162,500.000 Lo 100%
HIRLE atalty compamPecpie’s Republic ol leasing
China
Cabect (HE) Limitad Hoeg Kong, lenilad kablity compary’  invastmant holding HK&1 [ 100%
Hong Kong
Cabect (LK) Hubbing Limited Uit Kangdam, hmiod kabity Irrstiran! hakdng Gari 1005 M
compamy/Linied Kingdom
Cabet Square Fatadl 54 el Lisermboung, liematod Eabity compamy!  IPropeety hoiding and GEPF13,000 o 100%
Ut Kergdam leasrg
Caribbwan Haro {HK) Limiled Horg Kong, femiled kabliy companyy’  investmant halding HE#1 o oo
Heeg Kang
Caertry Elte Developments (HIX) Homg Kong, lervied labiiey compary!  invesimant holding HES1 100 100%
Limited Herg Kong
Caraury Land Imvesimees Limied Horg Kong. Briled babdity company’  Propety holding aed HKS B Bfa
Heeg Kong asrg
Crina Easl Imvostmend Limied Mo Kong, milod Babiity company’  imvestmant halding HK55,000 100 100
Hong Kong
FREARRHERAARLE Peogin's Repubiic of China, lemied PProperty holding and Ffd3444,384,533 100 A
c’;‘ilih'mwm'lﬂmﬁi:d i
FERHERRNRENRLE anmnrmm IProperty hoiding ard AMBST, 550,000 100% W&
orven liatiity companyPecpie’s Republic o keasing
Diamond Siream Developmants Bintish Vingin Ielands, Imied Kbty Propeety holding and USS1,484, 121 100% 00
LLimited companySngapane lsasing
D=maond Aun Limied British Virgin lalands, imied Rabiiry Irenstmant holding LISETT 681,029 0 100
oMbty Srgapons

158  Link Aol Estee kwosimoni Trst
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35 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of
|ssied share
Pince of estabstiment and kind of capitaliregistered
Marss legal andity/place of opsratians Principal pcbivities capital Irilures] hald
v} o
Link REIT peatiolic (Continwed)
EEREAEARLE Pecph's Republic of China, milod Property folding and RMBI17, 004,000 5% L
labiity companyPeople’s Fepublic ol leaging
Dream Up imesimonts (HK) Limiled ~ Hong Kong, hmiled Ratsity company!  Imessimant holding HKE 100% 100%
Hong Koeg
Eagie Castle Vantures Limfied British Virgin Sslancts, kmited labibty Propserty Felding and USE519.843 100% 1%
compary Sngapor masng
SANNN (ERHELY Peophe's Republic ol China, miled Propecty heldieg and AMET 242 300,818 100% 100%
mwmd laasng
Firsi Veernturee ALE. Lisrslod Hong Kong, bmiled habbty company!  Irvesiman hoiding HES1 100% 100%
Heng Korg
AUENNEERLE Peophe's Republic of China, milod Propecty holding and RMET38,000 0060 6% L
wwwamm loitsng
Graat Land (HK} Limitad Hong Kong, mited Ratekty company’  Propsrty Bokding and HE$1,000,000 100% 100%
Hong Koeg lnaging
EfENIRRENELE Pecphe's Republic ol Ching, lmiied Property Folding and RMBE00, 004,000 100% %
mww*mm loitsng
EHEFVFEIBRRRLE Peuple’s Republic of China, imited Irevmimant hoiding 55205, 200,000 100% 100
m;_“rmm#ﬁonh‘iﬂmﬁd
EfEEERERRRLE Peoph's Regublic of Ghina, lmiled Property Rolding and AME1,000,000 100% 1%
ﬁmmamm leasing
Hi PD20 Helding Limisd Flang Keng lmiled habilty company!  Investmant haiding HKS1,002, 261 100% 100%
Hong Koegy
Inetant Success Vomums (HK) Limited  Hong Kong, kmited fiatslity company!  Property holding and HES10,000 100% 100
Hofig Koty WAy
Jia Him United Waeshouse Huong Kong, Emited Rebilty company’  Ivestment holding HES50,000,000 5% 5%
Irsvestrmeent Limited Hang Kong

370/470
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35 Principal Subsidiaries [Continued)

Particulam of
isaued share
Place of eatablishment and kind of capitaliregistened
Hamp legal enlityipiece of cperations. [Principal sctivities capsiial Inlerust hedd
2024 froial
Link REIT particlia (Continaed)
AR-EcRUNIARLE Pecplo's Roputile of China, limiled PPropesty holding and RAIS159,250,000 100% 100%
mwﬁmﬂ asrg
Link Austrafia Holdings Trust Ausiralia, trusyhustralia Irvostmant haiding A51,300,000,274 10 100%
Link C8 Limsted Birtish Virgin lalands, lmbed Rabiity Finarcing uss 1008, 100%
comparnyHong Kong
Link F {Smgapore) Limbed Brittsh Virgen Islands, lmited Reksliy Finareang uss [ 100%
company Sngapars
Link Gileriés Tns! Aiistralia, trust\histralia Propoety heldding and AS155,397 042 100 10
leasing
Link Manty [HK) Limited Hiorg Kong, fieitnd kabiiy company’  Propaety holding and HES 1007 100%
Heng Kang asing
Link Propsrties Limited Cayman Islarets, Smitad Eability PPropesty holding and uss 100% 100%
comparyHong Korg asng
Link QVB Car Park Trust Aliirals irUssALSTARe [Propesty holding and 51 261,561 100% 100%
lsasing
Link OVE Trusa Hausirafia, vrusy Ausirafia PPropesty holding and A%253,285,010 W0 100%
leasig
Link Strand Trust husiraka, frusyAustraiia IPropacty holding and A$118.201,254 100% 100
leasing
Dﬁ'ﬂmm Hong Kong, lited Gablity compary/ (Propedty developmant HES 1005 100%
Magical Lesp Limned British Virgin |slands, lmbed Retsity PPropesty heiding sed IS5 4 141,20 100 100%
: i
Markal Mid Trust Augiralia, trustiAussralia Immsimant holding AEX37,000, 100 100% 0o
Markat Sulb Trust Kustrafia, trustAusiralia Propaety holding and ASS15014,654 100% 100%
Basng
Presion ke [HK) Limied Heceeg Kong. lienited Eablisy company’  Investmant holing HE$1 100 100%
Fedwood F |Singapore) Limited British Vingin lelands, imited ety Financing uss! 1005 100
coMmpafy S pons

180 Link Aol Estae kvosimoni Trsd
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35 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of
|ssied share
Pince of estabstiment and kind of capitaliregistered
Marss legal andity/place of opsratians Principal pcbivities capital Irilures] hald
v} o
Link REIT pestiofio {Continwed)
LEmMESEERELE Pecpla’s Republic ol China, miled Property Felding and RMB2ET 505,000 100% 100%
mwﬁm’lmﬂ eazng
LEEAERRENRLE Now) Pecplo’s Republe; ol China, limited Property holding and AMB1 318,010,000 100% 0%
mwim.ﬁd lnasing
San Might Limeled Brtesh Virgin Rilancs, Emited liabilty Irevecstmant hoiding usE 100% 100%
coemparyHong Kong
The Link Finance (Ausiala) Prylad  Ausiralia, kemiied habdity company! Franong A56,500,001 100% 100%
Farstralia
Thae Link Financs {Cayman) 2008 Cayrran |slands, lietried kabiy Irvesatrriani =g 100% 100%
Limitnd comparyHong Kong
The Link Finance ({Cayman) 2009 Cayran [shinds, limiod kabiy Fnancng U551 100% 1041
Limited companyHong Kong
T Link Finance Limied Hang Kong, kmited fablity company!  Fnancing HKE 100% L1
Hang Korg
Thea Link Logistic Finance Limiaed Hong Kong, lmited sty company'  Financing HKE 100% 100
Hong Kong
Thetving Land Limiled Britesh Virgin Islands, kmited liabikity Irwestmant hoiding uss 100% 10 %
coemparyHong Kong
Wider Suceoas Entorpesos (HK] Heng Kerg, bmiod habilty compary! Ievestmon halding HKE1 000 5% oA
Limitad Hang Kerg
25 Cabaol Squane S4 1l Luwambourg, bmited Ratley eompany!  Property Polding and GBEP13000 100% 100%
Unfted Kingdom lnasing
" Sutrgidiatik: Pl deecty
Pocher: b= 05 09 02 U PR L2 ) Dot @) weholy-revrad pubsiciany of the Geoup upon Ihe aoquisBon of i rendining 5% equily ironests on
20 Fobruary 2024,

The Managar conskdars thal the non-contolling interasts in mspect of non-wholly owned subsidiaries ame nol indvdually matenal to the
Graup.

This Manapar is ol the apmicn that & complets list af the paniculans of al subsidiaes will be of exosssive length and tharelare, the
abave list contains only the particudars of the subsidianes which principally affect the results or assets and kabilities of the Group
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36 Qualified Minority-owned Properties

Link REIT hedd the faliewing qualified minarity-cwned propartias (as delined in the REIT Coda) as &t 31 March 2024
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Type ol jint Dividend received

Prapeity Place of operafion Usage wrangemeni daring the year Interesd

i 0
Ot ook Placra Sharghal Manlard Chira  Relad proparty lor séntalincome. Joand wersiura (Mol (]| FME 295 silfon LS o
Oueon icloda Buding Spdney, Ausvalia Retadl proparty lor sentalincome  Joind operation {Kusa (i) ASIE 2 milion BN %
The Galenss Spdney Ausmba Ratadl propariy b srial ncome Joind operation (Kite i) A56.0 milbon L o
The Susnd Arcads Sy Australs Flelad proparty kot sermal ncome Jand tperaben (Kot i) 852 million 5% 5
Mot

i As 31 Mach 2023, the Group had 50% inlarast in Qiao Vanks Plaga and [ was accouniod lor as a joinl veroseo of the Geoup, On 20 Februany 2024,

Ihe Group oquited the remaining 50% intores] in Cibeo Yankn Plar, poocedingly Oitao Vianko Plaza s roaled ns @ wholy-pemod proporty as

ot 31 Manch F00d.

{1 The Group has 50M% infedosts in corinin popertes as lenan in CoMmimon n ogusl shaims with &N axiomal thind party co-owners managed undar

oo-gwTe agreaments for the relail propeniss leasing in Sydniry, Austmba

37 Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Tha consolidated fnancial stasoments wane authornsed for ssua by the Board of Directons of the Monagar and the Trustea

on 20 May 2024,

162  Link Anal Extee kwosimon! Thisd
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2024 31
1 252,314 4,733,411
1. 73,872 1,385,839
Il I 11 178,823 3,354,719
V. 2,553,845,113
V. v 70.02 1,314

2024 31 381 7,148
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
HKSCC CCASS

0.0027
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0.002 2005 12
19 2005
FRC

2022 AFRC 0.00015

AFRC
2023 0.00565
2023 0.50

0.1
5.00
2.50
CCASS HKSCC
CCASS

CCASS
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52,000,000 976

52,000,000

2023 21 52,000,000

30,000,000
2023 21 22,000,000 52,000,000

)
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@
38 59 328
€)
23 103
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
193
Independent Auditor *s Report
®

2024
18.76
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2024 31
31
2024 2023
759,755,073  14,253,005,169 693,500,163  13,010,063,058
(759,755,073)  (14,253,005,169) (693,500,163)  (13,010,063,058)
7,175,278 134,608,215 4,178,925 78,396,633
7,175,278 134,608,215 4,178,925 78,396,633
7,175,278 134,608,215 4,178,925 78,396,633
18 31
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2024 31
31
2024 2023
7,175,278 134,608,215 4,178,925 78,396,633
7,175,278 134,608,215 4,178,925 78,396,633
18 31
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2024 31
31
2024 2023
10 9,003,001 168,896,299 9,003,000 168,896,280
5,102,341 95,719,917 4,352,870 81,659,841
3,146,384 59,026,164
11 11,693,933 219,378,183 115,724,817 2,170,997,567
11 5,611,308 105,268,138 7,198,506 135,043,973
11 627,736 11,776,327 3,694,861 69,315,592
12 300,000,000 5,628,000,000 148,000,000 2,776,480,000
12 116,502,166  2,185,580,634 153,575,385 2,881,074,223
448,540,485  8,414,619,499 444,695,823  8,342,493,639
13 82,353,509 1,544,951,829 111,164,659  2,085,449,003
14 10,000,000 187,600,000 10,000,000 187,600,000
15 264,134,033 4,955,154,459 242,834,016  4,555,566,140
11 6,552,032 122,916,120 2,371,516 44,489,640
11 1 19
363,039,575 6,810,622,427 366,370,191 6,873,104,783
85,500,910 1,603,997,072 78,325,632  1,469,388,856
16 52,000,000 975,520,000 52,000,000 975,520,000
33,500,910 628,477,072 26,325,632 493,868,856
85,500,910 1,603,997,072 78,325,632  1,469,388,856
18 31
13 31 2024 29
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2024 31
2023 52,000,000 975,520,000 26,325,632 493,868,856 78,325,632 1,469,388,856
7,175,278 134,608,215 7,175,278 134,608,215
2024 31 52,000,000 975,520,000 33,500,910 628,477,072 85,500,910 1,603,997,072
2022 22,000,000 412,720,000 22,146,707 415,472,223 44,146,707 828,192,223
4,178,925 78,396,633 4,178,925 78,396,633
30,000,000 562,800,000 30,000,000 562,800,000
2023 31 52,000,000 975,520,000 26,325,632 493,868,856 78,325,632  1,469,388,856
18 31
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2024 31
31
2024 2023
17 107,396,769  2,014,763,386 22,880,791 429,243,639
7,530,013 141,263,044 3,420,730 64,172,895
(380,000,000) (7,128,800,000)  (203,000,000) (3,808,280,000)
228,000,000  4,277,280,000 225,000,000  4,221,000,000
@) (19) (2,400,494) (45,033, 267)
(144,469,988) (2,710,256,975) 23,020,236 431,859,627
30,000,000 562,800,000
30,000,000 562,800,000
(37,073,219)  (695,493,588) 75,901,027  1,423,903,267
153,575,385  2,881,074,223 77,674,358  1,457,170,956
31 12 116,502,166  2,185,580,634 153,575,385  2,881,074,223
18 31
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HKFRS HKAS
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HKAS HKFRS

HKAS

HKAS 12

HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17 HKFRS 17 HKFRS

HKFRS 17 HKFRS 17
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2024 31 100 2023 100

4,165,000 2023 3,016,000
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2024 31
2023 2023 31
2023 2024 31
HKFRS
2024 31
BBB
90
416,502,166 2023 301,575,385
2024 2023
10,000,000 10,000,000
264,134,033 242,834,016
6,552,032 2,371,516
1

571
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2024 2023
759,755,073 693,500,163
2024 2023
724,835,298 653,958,257
1,944,324 1,914,647
25,312 24,530
1,969,636 1,939,177
273,628 (22,582)
32,676,511 37,625,311
759,755,073 693,500,163
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2024 2023
669,888,064 608,971,389
10,594,379 10,085,276
44,352,855 34,901,502
724,835,298 653,958,257
2024 2023
10,247,851 9,764,000
16,087,175 15,444,018
36,000 36,000
44,590,571 42,843,464
24,402,823 18,453,924
95,364,420 86,541,406
13
0 2017 LTI
2023
2024 2023
7.175.278 4,178,925
16.5 2023 16.5 1,183,021 689,523
(1,183,921) (689,523)
7,427,623 5,758,763
(12,072,060) (12,066,440)
4,644,437 6,307,677
2024 31
115,515,668 2023 87,367,562 )
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2024 2023
9,003,001 9,003,000
2024 31
2024 2023
1,000,000 100 100
IP 100 N/A
5,000,000 100 100
450,001 100 100
100 N/A
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 N/A
2,155
2023 2,963,882
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12
2024 2023
26,502,166 73,575,385
90,000,000 80,000,000
116,502,166 153,575, 385
300,000,000 148,000,000
416,502,166 301,575,385
13
2024 2023
111,164,659 149,053,953
48,115,575 43,906,367
(3,762,720) (9,004,775)
(73,164,005) (72,790, 886)
31 82,353,509 111,164,659
2017 10 2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI 1,420,655

2023 1,027,703
2017 LTI
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2024 2023
42,750,616 68,030,489
39,602,893 43,134,170
82,353,509 111,164,659
14
2024 2023
10,000,000 10,000,000
2009 27 10
2025 26 2024
10 2023 10
15
2024 2023
255,982,904 231,866,409
8,151,129 10,967,607
264,134,033 242,834,016
16
2022 22,000,000 22,000,000
2023 21 30,000,000 30,000,000
2023 31 2023 2024 31 52,000,000 52,000,000
2023 21 30,000,000 30,000,000
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2024 2023
7,175,278 4,178,925
44,352,855 34,901,592
(7,175,278) (4,178,925)
(1,104,206) (745,493)
104,030,884 63,335,411
1,587,198 (7.198,506)
3,067,125 225,942
21,300,017 7,591,169
4,180,516 707,946
1
(73,164,005) (72,790, 886)
3,146,384 (3.146,384)
107,396,769 22,880,791
2024 2023
15,686,794 18,540,958
14,552,125 14,500,094
729,516,154 660,459,111

29
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Management fee income

General and admindstrative expenses
Interest income

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the vear
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Mot 2024 2023
HEs HES

& 758,755,073 693,500,163

7 (759,755.073)  (693.500,153)
7175278 4,178,025

775,278 4,178,925

a : s
7,175,278 4,178,525

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements,
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R R ]

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2oy

2024 2023

HE$ HES
Profit for the vear 7,175,278 4178525
Other comprehensive income P =
Total comprehensive income for the year 7,175,278 4178525

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

RN TR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITLION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
Note 2024 2025
HES HKS
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 10 &, 00,001 9,003,000
Receivables, deposits and prepayments 5,102 341 4,252 870
Taxation recoverable = 3,146,384
Amounts due from fellow sobsidiaries 11 11,503,053 115,724,817
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1 5,611,308 7,198,506
Amount due from Link Real Estate Investment Trust 11 627,736 3,694,860
Bank deposits 12 300,000,000 148,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 12 116,502,166 158,575,385
Total asscts 448,540,485 444,095,823
Liabilities
Long-term incentive schemes provision 13 82,353,500 111,164,650
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 14 1,000,060 10,000,000
Aceruals and other pavables 15 264,134,033 242,834,016
Amoimnts due to fellaw subsidiaries 11 6,552,032 2,371,516
Amount due o a subsidiary 11 1 .
Total liabilities 363,089,575 366,370,191
Net assets 85,500,510 78,325,632
EQUITY
Share capital 16 B3 000,000 §2 000, (300
Retained eamings 33,500,910 26,325,652
Member's funds 85,500,910 78,325,632

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these inancial statements,

The financial statements on pages 13 to 31 were approved by the board of directors of the Company on
29 May 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

L 6y

-i5-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R TEALE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH zo024

Share Retained

capital carnings Tetal

HES HES HES

At 1 April 2023 52,000,000 26,925 652 78,325,612

Tetal comprehensive income for the year - 7,175,278 7,175,278

At 31 March 2024 52,0000, OO 33,500,010 85,500,010

At 1 April 2022 29 O, 000 22,146,707 44,146,707

Total comprehensive ineome for the year - 4,178,925 4,178,925
Transaction with shareholder

Issue of shares B0, CHOe0, OO - 30,000,000

Al 31 March 2023 52,000,000 26,925,632 78,325,032

The nntes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements.

-16-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FERETEORLY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH z2n24

Operating activities
Met cash generated from operating activities

Investing aclivities
Interest income received
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity of
more than three months
Receipt from maturity of bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
Investment in subsidiariss

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities
Financing activity
Proceeds [rom issuance of shares
Cash generated from financing acthvity
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Note

12

The notes on pages 18 to 31 form part of these financial statements.

-17-
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2024 2023
HES HES
107,556,769 22,880,751
7.530,013 3,420,730
(380,000,000) (203,000,000}
228,000,000 225,000,000
(1) (2,400,454)
(144,460,088) 23,020,236
% 0,000,000

S 40,000,000

(z7,073,219) 75901027
253,575,385 77,674,358
116,502,166 153,575,385




(@)

(b)

()

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
RN TEA AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Carporate information

Link Aszzet Management Limited (the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its principal activity is asset management. The address of its registered office is
20/ F., Tower 1, The Quayside, 77 Hoi Bun Road, Ewun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is licensed to carry out Type 9 “Asset Management” regulated activity under the
Securities and Fatures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company acts as the management company of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (*Link RETT™).

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HEKFRS:") and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, HKFRSs isa eollective
term which includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HEASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Accounting convention and functional curreney
“The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,

‘The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dellars, the functional currency of the
Company.

Adoption of new and revised accounting policies

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has adopted all the new standard and amendments
that are currently in issue and i

HEAS 1 and HEFRS Fractice Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Statement 2 Amendments

HEAS 8 Amendments Definition of Accounting Estimates

HEAS 12 Amendmeants Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

HEAS 12 Amendments [nternational Tax Reform— Pillar Two Model Ridles

HEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

HEFRS 17 Initial Application of HEFRS 17 and HEFRS g -
Comparative Information

HEFRS 17 Amendments Amendments to HEFRS 17

The adoplion of these new standard and amendments has not had any dignificant effect on the
results reported and the financial position of the Company.

-18-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R T L]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINTUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new and revized accounting policies (Continued)

The following new amendments and interpretation which have been published but are not yet

effective, have not been early adopted in the financial statements, These are effective for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

HEAS 1 Amendments Classification of Liahilities as Current or Non-current ()

HEAS 1 Amendments HNon-current Liabilities with Covenants (1

HEAS 7and HEFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements (1
Amendments

HEFRS 21 Amendments Lack of Exchangeability 2

HEFRS 10 and HEAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Amendments Assnciate ar Joint Ventura (20

HEFRS 16 Amendments Lease Lisbility in a Sale and Leaseback

Hong Kong Interpretation 5§ Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the
(2oa0) Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clanse ¢

o effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2024
s} effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1. January 2ozg
cak no mandatory effective date is determined vet but eardy application is permitted

The Company is in the process of meking an assessment of the impact of these pew amendments
and interpretation upon initial application.

Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
helow. Save as the adoption of new and revised accounting policies, these polisies have bean

consistently applied to all the years presented.
Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, over which the Company has control. The
Company contrals an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect thase returns through its power over the

entity.

In the Company’s staternent of financial positien, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
lesa provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are aceounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend recetved and receeable.

Wo conzolidated financial statements are prepared as exempted under HEFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements™, The Company's ultimate holding entity is Link REIT and the consolidated

financial statements of Link REIT have been prepared in accordance with HEFRSs and are publicly
available,

- 1G-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
RN L

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and ¢ash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafls.

Accruals and other payables
(i Accruals and other payables

Acernals and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenthy
measiired at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are récognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to ssttle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made, Where & provision fs expected
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virlually certain.

Provisions are measurad at the present value of the expenditures expected to be requirad
to settle the obligation vsing a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
tirne value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time 18 recognised as interest expense.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Aszets are reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicnte that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. An impalrment loss i recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount excesds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs Lo sell and value in we. Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that is subject to impairment are reviewed for pessible reversal of the
Impairment at each reporting date.
Revenie recognition
Management fee income is tecognised over time wihen services ane rendered.
Interest ineome 15 récognised on a time proportion basis vsing the effective interest method.
Expenditure
Expenditun: is recognised on an acerial basis.
Employee henefits

Employee benefits such as wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised as an expense when the
employes has rendared the service.

The employer’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund for employees are expensed as
incurred.

-20-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SR TR AT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of material accounting policies {Continued)
Employees’ long-term incentive schemes

Incentives in the form of a long-term incentive schemes are provided to eligible employees
(including directors).

Employee services rendered in exchange for the grant of the long-term incentive schemes awards
are recognised as an expense, with a enrresponding inerease in the liability incurred. This expense
fs charged to the income statement over the vesting periods. Until the linbility is settlad, the value
of the liability is re-measured at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with any changes
in value recognised in the income statement for the year. At each reporting date, estimates of the
number of long-term incentive schemes awards that are expected to vest will be revised and the
impact of the revision i recognised in the income statement. The carrying value of the long-term
incentive schemes awards iz reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external
valuers at least annually. If the awards do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts charged to the
income staterent will be written back,

Presentation of the statement of financial position

The Company bas adopted the liguidity basis in the presentation of the statement of financial
pasition as it is considered to be more relevant and meaningful to readers basad on the timing of
their realisation or settlemant of assets and liabilities az justifiad by the marke? situation.
Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk and currency risk), credit risk and Liguidity risk.

Risk menagement is carried cut by the Company. The Company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise potentisl
adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

(i)  Marketrisk
(A) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will impact the
earnings of the Company. The Company i3 exposed to interest rate sk since the
Company's deposits at banks bear variable interest rates,
As at 31 March 2024, if interest rates on deposits at banks had been 100 basis
points (20:23: 100 basis points) higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would heve been approximately HES4165.000 (2023

HES%3,016,000) higher/lowar, mainly as a resolt of higher/lower interést income
from deposits at banks.

-1
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SRR WA A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4 Financial risk management (Continucd)
(a)  Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Market risk (Continued)
(B) Currency risk

Currency risk arises on aceount of monetary assets and liabilities denpminated in
& eurrency that is not the funetisnal eurrency. The Compary has amounts due from
subsidiaries in Singapore Dollars as at 31 March 2024 (2025: The company has
amount due from subsidiarias in Singapore Dollars as at 31 March 2023). Asat 3t
March 2023 and 2024, there are no significant monetary balances that are held in
2 non-functional corrency.

(ii)  Creditrisk

Credit risk iz managed by the ultimate holding entity on a group basis, Credit risk arises
from the potential failure of the Company’s counterparties to meet their obligations under
financial contracts. The Company is exposed to eredit risk on its receivables and deposits,
receivables due from Link REIT or Link REIT's subsidiaries ("Group Companies™) as well
as cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits.

Receivables, deposits and amounts due from Group Companies,/Link REIT are sebject to
the expected eredit loss medel. The Company regularly reviews the recoverable ameunt of
each receivable and applies the HKFRS ¢ in assessing expected credit losses that is
determined as 12-month expected credit lasses which consider current and forward-locking

information to ensure that adeguate provision for impairment losses is made for potentially
irrecoverable amounts.

The Company manages its deposits with banks by limiting the level of deposits to he placed
with any counterparties. Deposits placed with any individual counterparty cannot excesd a
pre-defined limit assigned to the individual counterparty. As at 31 March 2024, all deposits
waere placed with banks with external eredit ratings of no less than “BEB".

Generally, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is past due in making
a contractual payment,/repayable demanded, and a default on a financial azset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments/repayable demanded within go days
when they past due.

The maximum exposure o credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
finaneial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance,

=32~
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R R L ]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors {Continued)

(iii)  Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from committed credit facilities and operating cash flow.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company has cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of
HES$416,502,166 (2023: HK$301,575,385). Management considers that the Company does
not have sipnificant lguidity risk.

The table below analyses the Companys fnaneinl labilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractoal maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted eash flows.

2024 2023
HES HEKS
Less than 1 vear and on demand
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow
suhsidiary 13,000,000 10,000, 00
Aceruale and other payablas 264,134,033 242,834,016
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 6,552,052 2,471,515
Amount due to subsidiary 1 -

Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability 1o
continue &% a going concern whilst seeking to maximise benefits to member,

The Company considers the eguity of the Company (as shown in the statement of finaneial position}
as its capital.

As the Company is a licensed corporation for Tvpe 9 "Asset Management” regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Keng), it has to comply with
the following requirements regarding its capital as stipulated in the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules:

{D a minimum level of paid-up share capital has to be met; and
(i) a minimum level of lguid capital has to be met,

The Company reviews the capital structure periodically and manages its overall eapital structure
through the payment of dividends and issuance of new shares. Its share capital and liquid capital
levels are closely monitored to ensure striet compliance with the statutory minimom requirements.
Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and the carrying values of bank

depesits and accruals and other payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair valoes due to
their short-term maturities.

=23
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R R R R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HEFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates_ It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements ace continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of futuee events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the foture. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the nest vear are discissed below:,

Provigion and aceriial of staff costs

Accried staff costs includes provision for staff bonus which involves management's estimates of the
bonus amounts o be paid to employvees, the estimate invobves subjective factors such as the
Company's performance, employes performance evaluations and market practices,

In reapect of the provision of long-term incentive schemes valuation, the value of awards granted is
estimated based on valuation techniques and assumplions on unit prices, outstanding length of the
awards, distribution pay-out rates and other market conditions, which management considers as
representing the best estimate of the value of the liability for such awards at the veporting date, The
carrying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is
independently valued by external valuers at least annually,

Management fee income
2024 2023
HES HES
Management fea income 750,755,073  603.500,163
General and administrative expenses
2x2yg 2023
HES HEKS
Staff costs (Mote 8) 724,885,298 653,958,257
Aunditor’s remuneration
Audit and pudit-rolated sssurance services 1,944,324 1,914,647
Others 25312 24,530
Total anditor’s remuneration 1,068,635 1,996,177
Exchange loss,{gain) 273,628 (22,582)
Others F2,676,511 37,625,511

759,755,073 693,500,163

-y
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Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
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2024 2023
HES HES
Salaries and benefits in kind 665,888 064 608,971,389
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme 10,504,374 10,085,276
Long-term incentive schemes swards 44,352 85 24,001,502
Staff costs (Mote 7) 724,835,208 653,058,257
Dirsctors’ ] t

2024 2023
HES$ HES$
Fees 10,247,851 Q764,000
Base pay, allowanee and other benefits 16,087,175 15,444,018
Contribution to pension scheme 36,000 96,000
Variable cemuneration related to performance 44,590,571 42,843,464
Long-term incentive schemes awards (Mate) 24,402,823 18,453,024
95,364,420 86,541,406

Mote: Values of the long-term incentive schemes awards are estimated based on valuation

technigues with assumptions on wnil prices, oulstanding length of the awards, distcfbution
pay-out rates and other market conditions, There is no commitment to pay out the
estimated values provided. The eventual amounts to be paid depend on the seale of
achisvement against certain performance and service related vesting conditions. For the
portion of the awards which do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts previonsly
charged o the ineome statement will be written back, Detailz on the long-term incentive

sehemes are set out in MNote 13,

The amounts recognised as expenses represent the provision of the awards granted under
the 2007 LTI Scheme recognized as set out in the accounting policy Note 9(i),
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Toaxation
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Ne Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as there is no estimated assessable profit for the

year (2023: Nil).

The differences between the Company's expected tax chargs, using the Hong Eong profits tax rate,

and the Company’s taxation for the year were as follows:

2024 2029

HE% HES

Profit before taxation 7,175,278 4,178,925

Expected tax calculated at the Hong Kong profits tax

rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 1,183,021 680,523
Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,183,921) (689,523)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7427623 5,758,763
Utilisation of previous unrecognised temporary difference (12,072,060) {12,066,440)
Tax loss not recognised 4,644,437 6,307,677
Taxation . i
Az at g1 March 2024, the Company has unrecognised tax lesses to be carried forward against future

taxable income amounted to HES115,515,668 (2023: HES87,367,562). These tax losses have no

cxpiry dates,
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments, at cost
Unlisted shares

2024 B0
HE$ HES
9,003,001 G003, 000

-af -
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LINE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
AR TEERLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINIUTED)
1o Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
The Company held the following subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024:

Particalars of
Plaes of issned share
extablishment nnd Princkpal capltal/registered
Name kind of legal entity aetivities capital Interest held
2024  202F
Lrirecily held:
Link Propecty Manogement Hong Koag, Property HES 1,000,000 i v
Services Limited lisnited liahikty company  manhigement
Link IF Limited Hong Koag, Trademark HES: oo MiA
lisnited labikity company  holding
SRR (LR People's Republic of Corporate RM DS, 000,000 100% o0
Chilna, limited tinbility management
COMmpAny sarviee
Link Asset Mansgemen: Australia, Comorate AUD4EG,601 wak ook
{Australia) Pry Lad limited labiEty compary management
service
LionRodk Real Estate Farimers  Britsh Virgin Islands, Irvestment Uss1 100% HiA
Limnited Limibed lishitity compary  holding
{formerly known a5 Right
Trade Enterprises Limited)
Link Asset Mansgemen: Singapare, limited labifity Assct US$1 0% 00%
{Singapore) Private Limited company management
Inelirecily held:
Link Asset Monggement Simgapare, Emited lighility Asset USS1  (oo% oo
[Redwood) Private Limited company mandgemertt
Link Property Management Singapore, Emited labilley Asset Uss1 0% 100%
(Redwood) Frivate Limited company mansgEment.
Redwood Asset Manogement British Virgin Islands, Darmant 5581 wok ook
(Elngapose) Limibed limbted liabilicy company
LionRock Asset Hong, Kong, fsset HES: ook HiA
Management (Prosperity) Emibed Hakility company  management
Limised and property

A BAECIHENL

-7
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
RN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Balances with Group Companies/Link REIT

The balances with Group Companies, Link REIT are mainly management fee receivables. Amonnts
due from/to Group Companies and amount die from Link REIT were unsecured, interest free,
repayable on demand, Except for the amount of HE$2,155 (2023: HE$2,063,882) which is
denominated in Singapore Doliars, all other amounts due from/te Group Companies are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

2024 2023
HES HES
Cash at bank 26,502,166 73,575,385
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than thres
months 40,000,000 80,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 116,503 166 153,575,285
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
muonths 00,000,000 148,000,000

416, 502 166 301,575,385

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are expected to be recovered
within 1 vear,

-8 -

412/470



EW

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LINE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HRRETEAREAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)}
Long-term incentive schemes provision

The movement of long-term incentive scheme provision during the year is as follows:

20324 2023

HES HES
Ab 1 April 111,164,655 149,053,953
Vested during the year 48,115,575 43,906,367
Lapaed during the vear (3.762,720) (5,004,775)
Settlement (73,164,005) (72,790,886)
At 31 March 82,353,509 118,164,659

On 10 July 2017, Link REIT adopted a new long-teem ineentve scheme (the "2017 LT1 Scheme®),
Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards may be granted to
directors of the Company and key emplovess of the groip.

During the vear, certadn directors and key employess of the Company wers granted restricted unit
awards and conditional cash wwards at nil monetary consideration under the 2017 LTI Scheme. The
restriebed wnit awards granted under the 2017 LTI Scheme, in general, will vest approximately two
te three vears from the date of grant. Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, Units will be purchased in the
granbess’ favour from open stock market to satisfy restricted units awards vested. For those
restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of Units to be
purchased in each grantes's favour upon vesting are linked to the performance of Link REIT based
on the total Unitholders return, net property income or certain vesting conditions. Conditional cash
awards wers alan granted in eonjunction with the restricted unit awards, bestowing upon each
grantee a conditional right to receive a cash payment representing an amount equivalent to the
aggregate of the distributions during the westing period, catch-up adjustments and ex-gratia
payments pursiant to the 2017 LTT Scheme, if applicable,

During the year, 1,420,655 units (2023; 1,027,703 units) purchased from the market for restricted
units awards which have vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI Scheme.

During the vesting period, a liability is recognised representing the estimated value of the awards
granted under both the 201y LTT Scheme and the portion of the vesting perfod expired as at the
reporting date. Thevalue of the awards was estimated at the reporting date by Towers Wateon Hong
Kong Limited, an independent external valuer based om valuation techniques and assumptions on
unit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-ont rates and other market
conditions, if approprizte. The change in value of the outstanding awards was charged to the income
gtatement, In the event that the vesting eonditions are not met, the amount previpusly accroed will
be written back accordingly.

The carrving amount of long-term incentive scheme provision is expected to be settled as below:

2024 2023

HES HE=
Within one year 42,750,616 68,030,489
MET one year 39#6'”2-3'93 43,134,1?13

2,953,500 111,164,659
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SRR AL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

14 Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary

2024 2023
HE$ HES
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 10,000,000 10,000, 000

On 27 March 2009, an agreement in respect of a revolving subordinated loan facility of HES10
million from a fellow subsidiary was signed among the Company, the fellow subsidiary and The
Secorities and Futures Commission amd the availability of the facility had been extendad to 26
March 2025. As at 31 March 2024, HE$10 million (2023: HK$10 million) was drawdown from the
facility.

The approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary i unsecured, interest free, repayable
on demand after two years from the drawdewn date and denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

The carrying amount of the approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary approximates
its fair valua,

15 Accruals and other payables

2024 2023

HES HES
Acerned staff eosts 255 0B g04 231,866,400
Other payables B51,129 10,967,607

264,134,033 242,834,016

16 Share capital

Wumber of
shares HEs
Izsued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2002 2,000,000 2 000,000
Issuance on 21 March 2023 30,000,000 0,000,000
At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 52,000,000 52,000,000

The Company issued 30,000,000 shares on 21 March 2023 \o Link REIT at a cash consideration of
HE$30,000,000.

-30-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Met eash generated from operating activities

Profit before taxation

Long-term incentive scheme awards

Interest income

Inerease in receivables, deposits and prepayments
Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Decrease /(inerease) in amounts due from subsidiaries
Decrease in amount due from Link REIT

Increase in accroals and other payables

Incresse in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Increase in amount due to a subsidiary

Long-term incentive scheme settled

Hong Kang profits tax refunded /{paid)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Related party transaclions

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2023
HKS HES
7,175,278 4,178,025
44,352,855 34,501,502
(7.175.278) {4,178, 925)
(1,104,206} {745.493)
104,030,884 63,335,411
1,587,198 {7,198,500)
3,067,125 225042
21,300,017 759,269
4,180,516 707,046

|_ -
(73,164,005) (72, 700,886)
3,146,384 {3,146,384)
107,396,760 23,880,791

During the year, the Company undertook the following transactions with related parties at mntually

agreed rates in the normal course of its business:

Management fee income (Note 6) from:
Link REIT

Subzidiaries

Fellow subsidiaries

224
HES

15,686,794
14,552,125
720,516,154

2023
HES

18,540,958
14,500,004
B60,459,111

The management fee income is subject to the terms agreed by the parties involved, which is based

on reimbursement of the aetual costs ineurred by the Company.

Ultimate holding entity

The directors regard Link REIT as being the ultimate holding entity.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company on 2 May 2024.

-31=
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2024 31
3.8
Hang 121A 2024
Seng Bank, Limited
3.8 1.0
G202 2023 10 31
2025
10 31
HSBC 5.2
L201 L206 2024 21
1.3
Temple Mall 2023 31

North N119

1.2 0.3
Hin 2023 12 12
Keng Shopping 2026
Centre B 12 12
118 120
12
3.7 3.8
HSBC HSBC HSBC
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited HSBC
HSBC Bank Australia Limited HSBC HSBC Bank plc) HSBC
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Hong Kong Standard on Assurance

Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information
Practice Note 740 Auditor ™ s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
i 8.18
il 14A.56

unqualified letter
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8.18
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HSBC

2024 29 50,000,000 938

77 29
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

(a collective investment scheme authorised under section 104 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong))

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), which are set out on pages 101 to 162, comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024;
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of distributions for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and net assets attributable to Unitholders
for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for

Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit relates to the valuation of investment
properties.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties amounted to HK$235,979
million in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2024,
and the change in fair values of
investment properties was a HK$7,361
million loss in the consolidated income
statement for the year, which were
significant to the consolidated financial
statements.

The valuations of investment properties
were carried out by a third-party valuer
(the  “Valuer”), using the income
capitalisation method.

The valuation of the Group’s investment
properties is inherently subjective due to,
among other factors, the nature of each
property, its location and the expected
future rentals for that particular property.

In determining a property’s valuation as at
31 March 2024, management and the
Valuer were required to consider
property-specific information such as
tenancy agreements, rental income and
direct property expenses. Management
and the Valuer applied judgments and
made estimates and assumptions, in
particular in respect of capitalisation rates
and net passing income per annum, which
were influenced by the prevailing market
yields and market transactions.

We understood management’s controls
and processes in determining the
valuation of the investment properties and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty, the judgment
involved in determining assumptions to be
applied and the susceptibility to
management bias.

We assessed the Valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

We read the Valuers reports. We, with
the involvement of our property valuation
experts, attended meetings with the
Valuer where the valuation approach and
the key assumptions were discussed.

We, with the involvement of our property
valuation experts, assessed and
evaluated the reasonableness of the
valuation methodologies and models used
by the Valuer, by comparing these
against our knowledge of the property
industry, and assessed whether these
were in accordance with applicable
financial reporting requirements.

We selected investment properties on a
sample basis, and compared the
estimates and assumptions used by the
Valuer, including capitalisation rates and
net passing income per annum, against
industry  benchmarks and  market
transactions, and our experience in the
property sector.
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We focused on the valuation of
investment  properties due to the
significant judgments, estimates and

assumptions involved in determining the
valuations.
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We performed further work on those
investment properties where assumptions
used were outside an expected range, or
were otherwise determined to be unusual,
in comparison to market data. For those
investment properties, we held further
discussions with the Valuer to understand
the reasons, and obtained additional audit
evidence to corroborate the explanations
received.

We checked, on a sample basis, the data
used by the Valuer in the valuations to
appropriate supporting documents,
including key terms of lease agreements
and other supporting evidence.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuations
were supportable in light of available
evidence.
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Other Information

Link Asset Management Limited (the “Manager” of Link REIT) is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such
internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager is required to ensure that the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Second Amending and
Restating Deed dated 30 July 2021 (the “Trust Deed”), and the relevant disclosure provisions of
Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of
Appendix C of the REIT Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk Management Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Matters Under the Relevant Provisions of the Trust Deed and the Relevant
Disclosure Provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Sean
William Tuckfield.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 May 2024

463/470



13 31
2024 31
HKFRS
HKICPA

HKICPA

HKICPA
2024

HKSA

464/470

31

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

820



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKICPA HKFRS

405

HKSA
guarantee

465/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKSA

2024 29

466/470



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financia statements of Link Asset Management Limited (the “Company”) standing alone, which are set out on pages 13
to 31, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024;

the income statement for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company standing alone as at
31 March 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") and with reference to Practice Note
820 (Revised), “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company Standing Alone section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
directors report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directorsfor the Financial Statements of the Company Standing Alone

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the

Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the reguirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements of the Company Standing Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsihility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professiona scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Standing Alone (Continued)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit)
Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 May 2024
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